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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

OVERVIEW
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s revenue

amounted to approximately HK$584.8 million, representing an
increase of 13.9% as compared with approximately HK$513.6
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in
brokerage commission, interest income from margin financing
and interest income from debt securities. Operating expenses
such as commission expenses and settlement expenses generally
increased in line with the increase in revenue. The decrease in
other expenses was mainly attributable to the listing expenses
incurred in relation to the listing of Get Nice Financial Group
Limited (“GNFG”) in prior year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company in the year was
approximately HK$297.1 million (2017: HK$341.9 million).
The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the increase in
revenue and decrease in other expenses offsetting by the increase
in finance costs arising from the issue of GNFG’s convertible
bonds (“GNFG CB”) and the fair value losses on financial assets
during the year.

Basic earnings per share decreased to HK3.34 cents (2017:
HK4.56 cents) as a result of decrease in profit and increase in
issued ordinary shares of the Company from approximately 8.1

billion shares to approximately 9.7 billion shares during the year.
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Market review

During the year under review, the investment sentiment in
Hong Kong stock market was significantly improved. In the
beginning of the financial year, the market was clouded by
uncertainties including the Brexit referendum and controversial
political and financial policies introduced by Donald Trump
after being elected as the president of the United States. The
trends of financial policies between countries were also diverging,
for instance, Canada started its interest rate hikes cycle, Japan
committed to continue its quantitative easing measures, and the
European Central Banks was revisiting the continuity of its asset

purchase program.

Nevertheless, turning into the second half of the financial year,
the global financial market picked up strongly and most of the
market indices were breaking records high. The market responses
on uncertainties were not as negative as expected. Under the new
financial policies, United States demonstrated positive resilience
and experienced bull market since the end of 2017 leading the
recovery of global economy. China also recovered steadily with
robust GDP growth in 2017. Following the lead by the two
biggest economies, investment sentiment in Europe and Asia

countries was greatly improved with confidence as well.

As a result of the improved global economic outlook in addition
to the resilient local demand, the Hong Kong stock market
reached new highs with a continuous upward trend. The Hang
Seng Index closed at 30,093 at the end of March 2018 compared
with 24,111 at the end of March 2017. The average daily
turnover on the Main Board and GEM (formerly known as
“Growth Enterprise Market”) during the year ended 31 March
2018 was approximately HK$106.2 billion, an increase of 57.6%
as compared with approximately HK$67.4 billion for the prior

financial year.

In respect of the local money lending market, more restrictions
and compliance requirements imposed on banks would offer
more business opportunities to non-bank money lenders as they
could provide more flexible lending services to both retail and

corporate clients.
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ITEREEREEBFMRRETT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the upward interest rate cycle in the United State, the
property market in Hong Kong was exuberant during the year
under review. Due to tight local housing demand-supply balance
and influx of capital, local property prices continued to rise
during the financial year. The office and industrial property
markets recorded stable growth during the year, with price and

rental increased steadily.

London is one of the key financial centers in the world. Although
Brexit has created certain uncertainties in United Kingdom, the
properties market in London still attracts various sophisticated

investors.

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded
solid performance from both its brokerage and margin financing
businesses. Operating result of the broking business increased
by 17.8% as a result of the gain on disposal of insignificant
subsidiaries engaged in broking business of HK$20 million in
current year. Interest income from securities margin financing
also went up with the increase in securities margin lending.
Revenue from broking business for the year decreased by 14.7%
to approximately HK$97.2 million (2017: HK$113.9 million)
as compared with last financial year, of which approximately
HK$22.5 million (2017: HK$43.5 million) was contributed by
the underwriting and placing business. The broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$64.9 million (2017:
HKS$55.1 million) for the year.

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s major
revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total interest
income from securities margin financing increased by 17.5% to
approximately HK$334.8 million (2017: HK$285.0 million).
Total outstanding of securities margin financing at 31 March
2018 amounted to approximately HK$4,091.5 million (2017:
HK$2,923.3 million), which was increased by 40.0% as
compared with that on 31 March 2017. No impairment charge
was recorded during the year. (2017:HKS$ nil).
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong Kong,.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, it completed 6 financial
advisory transactions (2017: 10). The operation reported a
segment profit of approximately HK$1.4 million for the year
(2017: HK$1.7 million).

Money lending

The money lending vehicle is engaged in provision of consumer
and mortgage loans. The money lending business continued
to show steady growth during the year. The aggregated loan
amount increased to HK$696.7 million at 31 March 2018 from
HK$636.6 million at 31 March 2017, with interest income
increased by 10.3% to HK$102 million (2017: HK$92.5
million) for the year. It recorded profit of HK$99.3 million for
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$90.4 million). No
material impairment loss was made on the loan book of money
lending for the year. Building on the Group’s expertise and
relationships with high net worth customers, the Group remains
positive about the money lending business and will continue to

target high net worth customers with short-term financial needs.

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group. Assets allocations are based on
expected return rates and available funding capital. For the year
under review, this division reported a profit of HK$29.8 million
(2017: HK$98.6 million), mainly attributable to the fair value
gains on investment properties of HK$40.6 million (2017:
HK$64.3 million), the interest income from financial assets of
HK$41.5 million (2017: HK$19 million) mainly derived from
the unlisted debt securities of approximately HK$449.7 million
(2017: HK$468.3 million) acquired in December 2016, and
unrealised losses of financial assets of HK$58.5 million (2017:
unrealised gains of HK$22.1 million) mainly attributable to the
drop of share prices of certain equity securities listed in Hong
Kong among the portfolio held of HK$191.9 million (2017:
HK$206.8 million).
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ITEREEREEBFMRRETT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group acquired
a commercial building in London at consideration of
approximately GBP21 million which generated rental income
of HK$6.4 million (2017: HK$ nil). As at 31 March 2018, the
Group held a portfolio of investment properties with a total
fair value of HK$788.1 million (31 March 2017: HK$513.7
million), comprised mainly the commercial buildings in Hung

Hom (under renovation) and London.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held a portfolio of equity and
debt securities and convertibles notes with a total fair value of
HK$894.3 million (31 March 2017: HK$800.2 million). The
increase in total fair value of the investment portfolio was mainly
attributable to the investment in unlisted equity securities of
HK$109.7 million during the year which relates to a properties
development project in United Kingdom. The portfolio of
debt securities mainly comprises listed and unlisted bonds and
convertible bonds issued by certain listed companies in Hong

Kong.

Outlook
Looking ahead, the economic backdrop of Hong Kong and

China remains stable and optimistic. The cross-border Stock
Connect scheme, the integration of the Hong Kong and China
markets and the reduction of the reserve ratio by the People’s
Bank of China would continue to derive strong capital inflow to

Hong Kong and create financial synergy.

Notwithstanding the recent positive performance of the
Hong Kong stock market supported by improved investment
atmosphere, our Group is facing with uncertainties in
global financial environment, expecting new local regulatory
requirements and also variation of financial policies in the
United States and China. Dealing with the future challenges,
the management of the Group would review and adjust
business strategies on regular basis with a prudent and balanced
risk management approach. The management of the Group
remains optimistic about the business development and overall

performance of the Group in the future.

The Group has utilised the proceeds from issuance of convertible
bonds by GNFG to expand our securities margin financing and
broking business and develop our underwriting and placing
service. Looking ahead, the Group will also consider other
alternative ways to provide more fundings for expansion in these

segments.
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Moreover, the Group will keep seeking quality and upscale
investment properties in both Asia and Europe, and also
investment in securities with good potential, to enhance its
investment portfolio and continue to provide a source of steady

rental income and investment gains in the future.

Given our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients
base, strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the
Group is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in
the years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and

value for all shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$5,415.9 million as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$4,880.9 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$535 million, or 11.0% over that of the last financial year
end. The movement was mainly attributable to the profit for the
year netting off dividend distributed in addition to the placing
of new shares during the year. The convertible bonds issued by
GNFG during the year leading to the potential non-controlling
interests under total equity of approximately HK$212.6 million.

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 March 2018 amounted
to HK$5,723.2 million (2017: HK$4,662.2 million) and the
liquidity of the Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio
(current assets/current liabilities) was 8.17 times (2017: 5.92
times). The Group’s bank balances and cash on hand amounted
to HK$749.4 million as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$1,069.3
million). The decrease in bank balances and cash on hand was
mainly due to the significant increase in account receivables of
approximately HK$1,117.5 million offsetting by the cash inflow
from the 2-years 2% convertible bonds issued by GNFG of
approximately HK$511.9 million and proceeds from placing of
new shares of approximately HK$418.7 million. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had bank borrowings amounting to HK$60.0
million (2017: HK$ nil) which was repayable within one year
and bore floating interest rate and the Group had undrawn
banking facilities amounting to HK$650 million (2017: HK$935
million) which were secured by charges over clients’ pledged
securities, a property as well as corporate guarantees issued by
GNFG.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The number of issued shares of the Company was 9,662,705,938
as at 31 March 2018 (2017: 8,052,255,938). The increase is
resulting from placing of new shares under general mandate

during the year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio (total
borrowings including bank borrowings, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders and liability component of
convertible bonds issued by GNFG over equity attributable to
owners of the Company) was 0.09 (2017: 0.01). The increase
in gearing ratio is mainly due to issue of GNFG CB during the

year.

Except for an investment in unlisted equity and acquisition of an
investment property in United Kingdom during the year, and its
related rental income which are denominated in British Pound,
the business activities of the Group are not exposed to material
fluctuations in exchange rates as the majority of the transactions
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The Directors consider
that a reasonably possible annual change of 5% in the exchange
rate between Hong Kong dollars and British Pound would
not have material impact on the Group’s results and therefore
hedging through the use of derivative instruments is considered

unnecessary.
The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the year end.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total loan commitments of
HK$100 million (2017: HK$80.1 million).

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2018, leasehold land and building of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$105.9 million (2017: HK$108.1
million) were pledged for a banking facility granted to the
Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

The Group did not make any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entity during the

year.
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 81 (2017: 81) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was HK$21.2 million (2017: HK$21.3
million). The Group provides employee benefits including
mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options and

performance bonus to its staff.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
NEW SHARES

The Company has received net proceeds of approximately
HK$414.5 million in connection with the placing of new shares
completed on 20 September 2017. As of 31 March 2018, all
net proceeds have been used by the Group. Set forth below is a

summary of the utilization of the net proceeds:

Intended use as disclosed AQEHHA

in the Company’s announcement —E-+tENAER
dated 5 September 2017 MiFIRECRERE
General working capital —BEEES

proceeds intended

EEER

W E-NE=ZA=+—H > A&£HEt
AU (ZF—L4F - g1fi) B & - AL H
Th ¥ PR B R - T AE KBy & W E
& B o A RE - AREE R B AH
B 1 A £521,200,000% 6 (—%F — L 4 -
21,300,000% 7C) © A< 4 [ £2 {1k 1) {8 B 18 £
45 5 AR T E - B E I 2
BE > DL K p) B T8 AR A 4T

BEHMRG ZAERERR

Ardod —F—-LtHFENRNT ZFHE
B e B R I i B BT A5 3K OE I R A
414,500,000% 7€ - B & —%F — N4 = A
= —H o ARERECET AR R IEF
B o T UG R T A OE R 2 M
Amount of net Actual utilized Unutilized
amount as of

31 March 2018

amount as of

to be allocated 31 March 2018

BE-S-\F HE-Z-N\F

RoBzE =ZR=t-H =ZR=t-H
REFE CRREAZER ZABDRAERE
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
BEET BEER BEER
(#4) (#4) ($49)

414.5 4145 -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK 1 cent per
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HK 2 cents per share for this

financial year.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 12 September
2018 to sharcholders of the Company whose names appear on

the register of members of the Company on 4 September 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the

Company will be registered:

For attendance ro 2018 : 20 August 2018 — 23 August
Annual General Meeting 2018, both dates inclusive

For entitlement to final : 3 September 2018 —
dividend 4 September 2018

both dates inclusive
(Record date being
4 September 2018)
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ITEHREEREEEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2018
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on 23
August 2018, Thursday and/or entitlement to the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the

following dates:

Last date of lodgment of transfer

Events documents

For attendance to 2018 17 August 2018, Friday

Annual General Meeting

For entitlement to final

dividend

31 August 2018, Friday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 63, is the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company and founder of the Group.
He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and
the future direction of the Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible
for overseeing the money lending and credit operation, property
development and investment of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses
over 23 years of experience in the securities and real estate
industries in Hong Kong and Taiwan. He is also the chairman of
GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
was spun off for separate listing on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 8 April
2016.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 72, is the deputy chairman
of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and future direction of the Group. Mr. Cham
is also responsible for overseeing the money lending business,
property development and investment the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 49 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

international banks.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors - continued

Mr. KAM Leung Ming, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 April 2017. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and a master’s degree in corporate governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. He has over 21 years of experience in auditing,
professional accounting and worked for several Hong Kong
listed companies of various industries and served senior roles
in financial management and secretarial functions. Mr. Kam
was the Company Secretary of the Company for the period
from 28 April 2011 to 7 April 2016. Prior to the appointment
as executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 28 April 2017, Mr. Kam was
an executive director and company secretary of GNFG (Stock
Code: 1469) for the period from 8 April 2016 (date of listing of
GNFG’s shares) to 28 April 2017. Mr. Kam was an independent
non-executive director of Casablanca Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2223) from 1 April 2016 to 26 May 2017. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Ever Harvest Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1549) and Genes Tech Group
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8257). All of the
above companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Kam
was appointed as the committee member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee (Baoshan
District) in December 2016.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3 October 2005. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Man has been involved
in the investment and financial industries for over 36 years and
has extensive experience in bullion, foreign exchange, securities,
futures and asset management business. He has held various
senior positions with prominent banks, international financial
institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Man
is currently a chief executive officer of Global Mastermind
Securities Limited which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Global
Mastermind Holdings Limited (stock code: 8063). He was also
an independent non-executive director of Global Mastermind
Capital Limited (stock code: 905) from 26 September 2014
to 18 April 2017 and Huanxi Media Group Limited (formerly
known as 21 Holdings Limited, stock code: 1003) for the period
from 10 April 2014 to 18 September 2015. All of the above
companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange in
Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors - continued

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 January 2014.
Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Monash
University in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Sun possesses over 22 years of experience in
international finance, corporate finance, corporate planning,
financial management and accounting and held executive
positions at several international banks, accounting firms, the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and an information technology
company. Mr. Sun is currently an independent non-executive
director of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (stock code:
909) a company whose shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He is also a director of Sai Gon

Joint Stock Commercial Bank of Vietnam.

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
September 2014. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for over 25 years. He is the managing director of
Fortune Take International Limited, a company engaging in
providing financial consultancy services. Mr. Siu was the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America and responsible for business
development and credit risk management. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Siu is currently an independent
non-executive director of New Provenance Everlasting Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2326) and Sage International Group
Limited (stock code: 8082). All of the above companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2018.

This Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with the
view of being a transparent and responsible organization which
is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The
Directors believe that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investors’

confidence.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year under

review is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange), titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “Code”), save for the deviation from

Code Provision A.4.1 which is explained as follow:

Code A.4.1

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. The
Company has deviated from the Code provision A.4.1. The
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term. Instead they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years. This is
in accordance with the provision of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles”). As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of this

Code provision.

The Directors believe that, despite the absence of specified
term of independent non-executive Directors, the Directors
remain committed to representing the long-term interests of the

Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE - continued
Code A.2.1

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive should be clearly established

and set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer (“CEO”) are performed by the same individual, which
is a non-compliance to the Code provision A.2.1 of the Code.
However, the Board considers that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The balance of power
and authority is ensured by the operations of the Board, which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals and meets
regularly to discuss issues relating to the operations of the
Company. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Hung Hon
Man and believes that having Mr. Hung performing the roles
of the chairman of the Board and the CEO is beneficial to the

Company as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are delegated to the Chief
Executive Officer and the senior management. In addition,
the Board has also established three Board Committees and
has delegated various responsibilities to them as set out in
their terms of reference. The Board has the full support of the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities. Details of
the delegation by the Board will be discussed in the paragraphs

below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises of six Directors, more than one-
third of these Directors are non-executive and independent
of the management. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skill
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the

requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, three of them are executives,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Deputy Chairman
and Mr. Kam Leung Ming and three of the Directors are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam,
Alick (Member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee), Mr. Man Kong Yui (Member of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee)and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee).

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors” of this annual report. As
at the date of this report, the Board members have no financial,

business, family or other relationships with each other.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as Directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment. This is to ensure the new employee
possesses an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and has full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts,
etc have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Hung Hon Man YL SR

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony NN e
Mr. Kam Leung Ming e ek
Independent non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry 2 o 5 e AR
Mr. Man Kong Yui SC I 8t 5 A
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick iR -l S
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings
adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors
have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board to
make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the
Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge

their duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 18 Board meetings and
3 general meetings have been held. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communications.
Details of the attendance of the Directors in the meetings are as

follows:

EXEREESEZEEER

PEE-E - NF=ZA=1T—HILFE
EHGRTIBREHRT GRS BRK
B o B A A S S0 E Tl a0y U R
Wik o EFE A RFENOT

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

BHEZESRY/ GERHEZESNY

Audit
Board Committee

Eze  ENzEE

Executive Directors YHES

Mr. Hung Hon Man IR 1318 NIAREH
Mt. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony HHZ S 1818 N/AKHEH
M. Kam Leung Ming (nore 2) R o) 1515 NIAREH
Ms. Tang Nga Yan Grace (note 1) WA &t () 33 N/AR#
Independent non-Executive Directors BUFHTEE

Mr. Man Kong Yui JCRISE e 1718 4/4
Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick MEBE 17118 414
M. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry Rumks 17/18 4/4

Note 1:  resigned on 28 April 2017
Note 2:  appointed on 28 April 2017

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2002 and will continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by either party giving not less than

three months’ prior notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Kam Leung Ming has not entered into any service contract
with the Company and there are no fixed or proposed length of
service with the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement

by the rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and should then be

eligible for re-election at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Hung Hon Man, and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry will retire by

rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by
the Company that (save for one of the Directors in respect of
the incident mentioned) below) they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2018.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for securities transactions
by relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and CEO are
complementary, but importantly, they are distinct and separate

with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man, the chairman of the Company provides
leadership to the Board; ensures effectiveness of the Board and

helps foster better relationships between Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Hung Hon Man
also took the post of the CEO of the Company who was
responsible for developing strategies for the Board’s approval,
executing the strategies agreed by the Board and leads the

) .
management of the Group’s operation.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the CEO are
performed by the same individual, which is a non-compliance
to the Code Provision A.2.1. Details have been discussed under
the heading “Corporate Governance Code Compliance” of this

report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board at all-time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters

required.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the three independent non-executive Directors are
independent in character and judgement and they also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively

in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the CEO and senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Pursuant to the levels of authority
approved by the Board, the senior management executes day-to-
day operations unless the subject matter exceeds the authority
granted by the Board or relates to any matters specifically

reserved to the Board, they would seek approval from the Board.

The Board has established a (i) Nomination Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee; and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seck independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable candidates for
directorship after consideration of the nominees’ independence
and quality in order to ensure the fairness and transparency of all
nominations; and (iii) to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. In identifying suitable director
candidates and making such recommendations to the Board,
the nomination committee would also take into account various
aspects of a candidate, including but not limited to, his/her
education background, professional experience, experience with
the relevant industry and past directorships. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry

(Chairman of Nomination Committee).

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There
were three meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors;
(ii) recommended appointment of an executive Director;

(iii) recommended the re-election of retiring Directors at the

Company’s annual general meeting; and
(iv) reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

The Company adopted the board diversity policy on 28
August, 2013 which aims to achieve diversity on Board in the
broadest sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business nature
of the Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including gender, age,
length of service, professional qualification and experience.
The Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director and against the
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on

the Board that would complement the existing Board.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee). The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year. There were four meetings
held during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March, 2018 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior

management of the Group;

(ii) approved the basic salary increment of Directors and staff of

the Group; and

(iii) reviewed and approved the remuneration of a newly

appointed executive Director.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board and Board Committee

Meetings” of this report above.

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors and has authority to raise questions regarding
the resignation or dismissal of the auditors; overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems and to review the Group’s interim and annual
consolidated financial statements. The Audit Committee has access
to and maintains an independent communication with the external

auditor and management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun
Ka Ziang, Henry, all of whom are not involved in the day-to-
day management of the Company. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry,
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year included (i) review of interim
and annual consolidated financial statements; (ii) review of
management letter provided by the external auditor; (iii) review
and discuss with the management about risk management
and effectiveness of internal control; (iv) review and monitor
continuous professional development of Directors; (v) review the
Company’s compliance with the Code and relevant disclosures;
(vi) recommended the appointment of Mazars CPA Limited as
auditor of the Group to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu; and (vii) reviewed the
investment policy of the Group. The Audit Committee meets
at least twice a year. There were four meetings held during the
year ended 31 March 2018. The attendance of each member of
the Audit Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings
during the year is set out in the section “Board and Board
Committee Meetings” of this report above. There has been no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee

regarding the selection and appointment of the external auditor.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the sharcholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2018. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2018 on a going concern basis.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018, the Board:

(a) adopted HKEFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(¢) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.

In financial year ended 31 March 2018, the annual and
interim results were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued
Independent auditor’s responsibility

During the year, Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as auditor
of the Group to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation

of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on

pages 86 to 93.

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2018, Mazars CPA Limited (2017:
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu), the Company’s external auditor,

provided the following services to the Group:
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Audit services AR 2,700 3,444
Taxation services i 795 AR BS 22 25
Listing and other services T R HA AR - 50
Total Mt 2,722 3,519

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance
the internal controls of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.

The Board has set up its risk management policy and risk
appetite statement which clearly defines the types of risk that
the Group is prepared to pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk
management process includes (i) identifying ownership of risks,
business objectives and risks that could affect the achievement
of objectives; (ii) analyzing the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and (iii) considering
the risk responses and ensure effective communication to the
Board/senior management and ongoing monitor the residual
risks (if any). A risk register has been maintained as a tool
for documenting risks and actions to manage each risk on an
ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimize the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are not.

The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of

the risk management and internal control systems has been
conducted and considers them effective and adequate.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDER INFORMATION

The Group acknowledge its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of insider

information as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of

Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of information
to the public through public announcements and the

company website;

e the access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis such that employees
who are in possession of inside information are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs
and only designated persons are authorised to speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external

parties such as the media, analysts or investors.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Kam Leung Ming

was the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Kam is a full
time employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company and is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. Mr. Kam confirmed that he has
complied with all the required qualifications, experience and

training requirements of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on
the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees attend and answer questions raised at the general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at

the general meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharecholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company by mail at the Company’s principal office address
in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist (s) by the Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium
Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating

to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries
y 28 q

to the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How sharcholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting” above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR BRREMNRBREEBRER &
RELATIONS - continued

Constitutional Documents BEXH

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there had been no BE-F-NF=H=+—HILFE K
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents. NCIPS QLR & T PN LI

26 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 4542 A 5RA
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Get Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively the “Group”) is pleased to present its second
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
(the “Report”). This Report provides an annual update on
sustainability performance, accomplishments, and challenges
over the past years. It has been updated to reflect the interest of

various stakeholders.

The Board is committed to contributing to the sustainable
development of the society and environment. Along with
the commitment, the Board is responsible for evaluating
and determining the risks in relation to ESG areas at Group
level. Through adjusting and defining risks, the Board is able
to formulate a clear vision and key strategies and monitor
management to ensure the proper ESG reporting measures and

systems are in place.

ABOUT GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Company is an investment holding company with our

principal businesses divided into four areas:

Money lending;

2. Property development, holding and investment in financial
instruments;

3. Real estate brokerage; and

4. Provision of financial services, including securities dealing
and broking, futures and options broking, securities margin

financing and corporate finance services.
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SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report details the ESG performance of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Reporting Period” or
“FY2018”). We apply the concept of materiality in planning and
developing the Report - unless otherwise indicated, the Report
covers the Company and its subsidiaries. The reporting scope of

FY2018 covers our principal businesses, as below:

GET NICE HOLDINGS, SUBSIDIARIES & ITS PROPERTIES
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. Get Nice Financial Group Limited (“GNFG”)
il EARA A (454 a )
. Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”)

R R IR A R ] (

Aidrag o )

*  Get Nice Futures Company Limited (“GNFCL”)
Included in this Report M EAERA A (T4 &g ]
A LA *  Get Nice Finance Company Limited (“GNFin”)

A0 BB AT RS R ([ 4

U A5 1)

. Get Nice Real Estate Limited (“GNREL”)
R ERARAF ((HFEXE]D

*  Get Nice Property Management Company Limited (“GNPMCL”)
Rl ) S A PR A ([ R 3 )
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SCOPE OF THIS REPORT - continued

Regarding the segment of property investment, with the business
growth, the Group operates the leasing of many properties at
different locations. Among those, Get Nice Centre, a commercial
building in Hong Kong, as well as a commercial building in
the United Kingdom are included in the reporting scope of
FY2018. This is based on the consideration of materiality; these
two commercial buildings bring a more significant impact to
the environment. As at end of the Reporting Period, Get Nice
Centre is under renovation and is expected to complete in June
2019, in addition to the Group commissioned a local property
management company for the lease service of the property in the
United Kingdom. The details of the above mentioned properties

are as follows:

Location/Country Property Address
ih BB X L ES Rl

Hong Kong Get Nice Centre
T e i H L

R E SIS — &
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Status

AR5

Under Renovation

FE+H

270-275 Chatham Road North, Hunghom,

Kowloon

L BEAL B 15 i 38 L 270-275%¢

The United Kingdom
B

Winton House

Leased
&

9-13 (odd) St Andrew Street and 65 Shoe

Lane, London EC4A 3AF
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Report preparation and presentation of related information
are in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The Group have prepared this Report to meet
the “Comply or Explain” provisions, of which mandatory Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) and some recommended KPIs
are disclosed. As such, the Group has been able to produce a

balanced report, focusing on our key material issues.

According to the guideline, the following principles are

underpinned:

1. Materiality: Environmental, social, and governance issues
that have major impacts on investors and other stakeholders

must be set out in this Report.

2. Quantitative: If the KPIs have been established, they must
be measurable and applicable to valid comparisons under
appropriate conditions. They must also be able to describe

the purpose and impacts of quantitative information.

3. Balance: This Report must provide an unbiased picture
of the environmental, social, and governance performance
of the Group. It should avoid selecting, omitting, or
presenting formats that may inappropriately influence a

decision or judgment by the reader.

4.  Consistency: This Report should be consistent and disclose
statistical methodologies to allow meaningful comparisons
of related data over time. Any changes to the methods used

must be specified in the Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As part of the business strategies, the Group communicates with
the stakeholders, including but not limited to our customers,
services providers, shareholders and employees in an open,

honest and proactive way.

We take active measures to promote stakeholder relations and
communications. Besides regularly issuing annual and interim
reports, circulars, and announcements to stakeholders, we
arrange stakeholder meetings regularly to provide opportunities
for stakeholders to maintain communication with the Board of
Directors, as well as in daily operations through meetings and
interviews, distribution of questionnaires to understand their

specific views on the relevance and materiality of various ESG
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aspects.
Stakeholder Rank Concerned ESG Aspects
KO E % HEHNRE HERERER
Employee 1 Employment
& & {1 ik
2 Health and safety
it Fe S 2% 4
3 Product responsibility
FEE i AT
Managing Board 1 Employment
e e %
2 Health and safety
it e L 2 4
3 Anti-corruption
&G
Customer 1 Employment
= i 1%
2 The environment and natural resources
BT M R IRE R
3 Development and training
B KA

Table 1 — Result of Stakeholder Assessment Conducted during the
Reporting Period
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT - continued

Product Excellence

With extensive solid experiences, we are well recognised in
providing a wide range of financial products with high quality to
customers. In February 2018, the Group was awarded “Securities
Brokerage for Stock Connect (Southboard)” (s A 7B o 0 2
#) by WinMoney (% ) and Metro-Finance GHI I 58 &)

FEEDBACK

The Group discloses the latest business information
regularly to investors and the public through our website:
www.getnice.com.hk. We also welcome investors and
shareholders to write to the Group or send their enquiries to

investor@getnice.com.hk and share their views with the Board.

A. ENVIRONMENT

Global climate change is one of the most concerned
environmental issues by the United Nations and the various
governments. The year-to-year increase in Green House
Gases (“GHGs”) in the Earth is closely related to the recent
extreme weathers, including heavy rains, flooding, droughts,
heat wave, etc. Apart from being an active participant in
the community, the Group acknowledges itself as a member
of the global village, therefore, we take the initiative in
better-utilising resources and reducing GHG emissions with
the aim of preserving the invaluable natural environment
for future generations. The Group places the sustainable
development as the grand vision and makes active effort
to reduce its influence on the environment through the

following measures.

1. EMISSIONS
As our Group is principally engaged in property
investment and the provision of financial services,
we do not have significant emission discharges into
water, land and air. (for instance, nitrogen oxides,
sulphur oxides and respiratory suspended particles.) In
addition, we do not produce a significant volume of

hazardous waste from our businesses.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued
EMISSIONS - continued

1.

Our environmental impacts stem primarily from the

energy use and related GHG emissions associated with

the operation of offices. Also, the Group has impact

through its vehicles, paper usage and non-hazardous

waste. Our strategy is focus on reducing energy use

and GHG emissions, purchasing sustainably certified

paper and disposing of our key waste streams in a

responsible manner.

(@)

Greenhouse Gases Emissions

The major sources of air and GHG emissions we
associated are energy consumptions in regard to
the purchased electricity used in operation and
the fuel consumption from 7 vehicles owned by
the Group for local travel, as well as one yacht for

the purpose of business engagement with clients.

The total GHG generated by the Group during
the Reporting Period was approximately 510
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, with an
intensity of approximately 6 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent per employee, comprising of
our electricity consumptions, fuel consumption

and disposal of paper waste.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued A RIE-&
1. EMISSIONS - continued 1. BB
(a) Greenhouse Gases Emissions — continued (a) L% S B PR — 4
Estimated
Emission Intensity Total
(In tonnes (Emission/ Emission
Scope of GHG Emission ~ Emission Source of COLe) Employee) (In percentage)
fhEt BB RE RERE
BEREHHNER HHRR (M—ELHER) (BEEIHNE) (2L
Scope 1
L
Direct Emission Consumption of Fuel by the Group’s 152.37 1.88 29.71%
Vehicles & Yacht
EHHEM % 5 I ) O R 0 A
Scope 2
HE2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 350.66 4.33 68.38%
il e B JEAE )
Scope 3
8683
Other Indirect Emission  Disposal of Paper Waste 9.80 0.12 1.91%
LAt B b BRI
Total 512.83 6.33 100%
@t
Table 2 — Total Green House Gas Emissions during AN il R
the Reporting Period R =
(b) Waste Management (b) Jag el 45 B
The Group upholds the principle of waste A 4R ] SR R BE R B B0 IR
management and is committed to the proper HI - B0 % 3% i PR K i E
handling and disposal of all wastes from our AP S 5 1 B 0 BT A R o
business activities. Due to our business nature, LR T PEE > A AR R
the Group did not generate a significant amount HW M EERER EE
of hazardous waste during the Reporting Period, B MTEAN EEIFAF
while the major non-hazardous waste generated JERLJy AR > R AJ2ME > AH
was paper, with a weight of approximately 2 BN 4 B T470.03M o

tonnes, equivalent to approximately 0.03 tonnes

per employee.

44 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 4542 A 5RA



RIE - HERERRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL &
GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENT - continued A RIE—E
1. EMISSIONS — continued 1. BEH—13%

(¢) Compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact concerning air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water or land, nor generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to conserving resources
for the purposes of environmental and operating
efficiency. To pursue our environmental commitment,
we implement multiple measures in enhancing energy
efficiency, minimising the use of paper, reducing
water consumption and driving behavioural changes
of employees. Through active monitoring and
managing the use of resources, we aim to reduce
our operating costs as well as our carbon footprints.
Given the Group is principally engaged in investment
and financial services, we do not use a significant
amount of packaging materials for finished products.
Nevertheless, for other resources consumed from our
business activities, the Group upholds the principle
of resources management and is committed to the
proper use of all resources. Details of energy and
water consumptions will be discussed in the following

sessions.

(a) Energy
Due to our business nature of finance segment,
we do not use a significant amount of electricity.
Our electricity consumption mainly stemmed
from our office operations. We acknowledge
reducing energy consumption can significantly
reduce carbon footprint, therefore we adopt
various initiates in our operation. During
the Reporting Period, the total electricity
consumption was approximately 440,000
kilowatt hours with an intensity of approximately
5,500 kilowatt hours per employee; the total
fuel consumption, comprised of gasoline and
diesel oil, was approximately 55,300 litres with
an intensity of approximately 680 litres per

employee.

(o AH
o A AR BN N
A AT o] 22 AL 0T B 22 SR
i = A8 PR R O
W b s Qe s A F R
E R o

BERER

AR B BT AR R DA BRI
Lo 888 AR o F AT T B R AR
7R ek FRAM i 2 JE A it R T
RE VR 2 2 ~ B AR T AR~ 3802 K
Kookt B T E AT By o i
Hix B 5% b A BB R o FRAM B
B A A B L B o B
Z ) sl i o
B o TAM i A A TR &
(9 FL 5 AR o SR > 3B R FAM 26
B 15 B B FE T A A B R > AR AR
P S R R B SRR > BO
TN P A E IR o A B RE URAE
JA BRI KRR RS LR B8

?H%O

(a) HEUR

R GRS EREE
TG A K EME - M
B AR A B A=
W o FRAM JN K KR AR BE T RE
I HE B R R B I Bk 2 B
b JE S 1 R P HE AT R ]
Jiti o fAEWIN > MIEEFEEL
£5440,000 & > W EH 5
% B 15,500 & o #4 kL FE
R 2 (L4670 S S8 ) 49 44
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued
2. USE OF RESOURCES - continued

(a)

Energy — continued

Case Study: Property Renovation Embeds
Environmental & Social Strategies at the Design
Stage

The Group adopts green building at the design
stage of the property in Hong Kong. We
acknowledge common area of the building will
consume a considerable amount of electricity
stemmed from lighting and air-conditioning.
In order to reduce resources consumption and
carbon footprint in the future, at the preliminary
stage, we have already applied green design
by separating the common area into different
zones. Through establishing isolated controls
on lighting and air conditioning in these
zones, we are enabled to better control the
use of electricity — those zones that are not in
use can be “off-electricity” temporarily. With
this application, we are able to further reduce

electricity consumption and carbon footprint.

In addition, we applied the following
environmental and social mitigation measures
at the construction sites during the renovation

period:

. Provision of wheel washing facilities, and
regular watering to suppress dust from
unpaved areas, excavation, fill materials
handling, active cuts and activities where

dust emissions may be generated

e Use of quiet plant, on-site movable noise
barriers, limits on the amount of plant and
equipment operating concurrently for noisy

construction activities

. Installation of T5 lighting, LED bulbs, and

highly efficient air conditioning equipment

e Arranging registered safety officers and safety

supervisors according to laws
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued A RIE—E
2. USE OF RESOURCES - continued 2. BRERA-&

Energy — continued
o Conducting occupational health and safety
checks and reviews at the construction site

regularly

o Adhere to relevant laws and regulations

(b) Water

The sustainable and responsible use of our water
resources is a key issue globally. We are aware
that water shortages, excessive demand and
usage could pose a serious problem. Due to our
business nature, we do not use nor discharge a
significant amount of water. However, in order
to raise the awareness on water conservation, our
Group promotes water saving practices in the
workplace. For instance, we offer tips to conserve
water and share with employees internally to raise
water-saving awareness and encourage them to

reduce consumptions.

Resources Unit
BIR B
Electricity kWh
H & [EacH
Fuel L
R It

(a) BEVR— 48
o i TTHEE HH AT R 2E (8
R T 22 2 hg A A

o BISTMIBIEANE M

(b) A
AR A B AT 4 K&
TR A RO Y R - TN
7R KR B~ oK
KA ] 5] B AR R o AR
IR B EH R RAE
Al 3Pk K &K - SR
Mo AR KRS A%
B A LA 55 P B 4B 6 B A K
[ 7 3 o B2 A F o 3R AM 4R
R Y i
B T = DU & A
KRR > NI B B T
K o

Intensity

Consumption (Consumption/
Quantity Employee)
B

RHE (BEEIRAE)

443,869.00 5,479.86

7515.03 92.78

Table 3 — Resources Consumption during the
Reporting Period
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued
3. REDUCTION STRATEGY

(a) Reduce Greenhouse Gases Emissions

We implemented a number of measures to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions in order to alleviate
impacts to the environment. For example, we
encourage employees to maximise the use of
electronic communication equipment and carry
out general discussions and communications
through long-distance telephone calls, video
conferencing, or other online communication
tools in order to reduce or replace non-essential

business trips and avoid pollutants emitted from

transportation.

(b) Reduce Paper Waste

Given the nature of our business, we use paper for
a variety of business activities such as brochures,
customer mailings and statements, as well as
daily operations within our offices. In order to
minimise the impact of paper usage, we seek to
source sustainable paper from the independently
certified programme - Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification. Since all
eucalyptus pulp comes from sustainable forests,
we believe doing so enables us to support the

sustainable development of the forest.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued A RIE—E
3. REDUCTION STRATEGY - continued 3. HigEERmE—4&

(b) Reduce Paper Waste — continued (b) W AR — 4

We also seek to use paper efficiently in our
operations. We offer and encourage paperless
billing options for customers by granting
incentive rebate. As at 31 March 2018,
approximately 70% of the GNS’s new customers
were receiving electronic statements, while
45% of the existing customers were receiving
electronic statements. Compare with the previous
year, existing customers in receiving electronic
statements has increased by 5% (FY2017:
40%). With regard to the paper reduction in
other stakeholders, we proactively encourage
the Group’s shareholders to receive financial
reports or circulars through the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Group. On average, the
number of printed copies for each distribution of
financial reports or circulars was approximately
400, which has been substantially reduced when
compared to few thousand copies in previous

years.

We also adopt smart printing methods by
modifying the format of account application
forms and client agreements to reduce paper
usage in GNS and GNFCL. We advocate reuse
and recycle of paper by placing paper trays in
designated office locations to collect recyclable
papers and envelopes. On the other hand,
we pursue a paperless office by encouraging
electronic means for communication, such as the

intranet, email, internal circular system.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued
REDUCTION STRATEGY - continued

3.

(©)

Reduce Electricity Consumption

In order to reduce our electricity consumption,
we adopt various initiatives in our daily
operations. We remind employees to turn off
electrical appliances when not in use, and place
priority in purchasing energy-efficient office
equipment. In our purchasing of production
equipment and office equipment, we take the
energy labels on the equipment into account,
try to use models with higher energy efficiency,
and switch to LED lighting systems or increase
natural lighting, thus reducing the energy

consumption of every kind.

Recycle Waste

Apart from reducing waste and resources
consumption, the Group adopts waste recycling
initiatives in the operation. Due to our business
nature, the waste emission is insignificant and
mainly stemmed from office operation, and
therefore, becomes our focused area on recycling.
For instance, waste paper is collected by reputable
recycling companies, used printer cartridges and
toners are recycled. In addition, we also establish
recycling stations in the office to collect waste for

recycling.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

4.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

With respect to our business nature and activities,
the impact of the Group on the environment and
natural resources is not significant. Consumption of
energy mainly stemmed from the use of electricity,
water and papers in office areas. During the Reporting
Period, we have stipulated a number of measures to
reduce the use of resources and disposal of waste. With
regard to the raw materials used in our products, our
product designers seek to use environmentally friendly
materials to reduce damage to the environment
throughout the product lifecycle. Our selection of
suppliers and service providers also adopt various green
initiatives, of which include a sense of responsibility
for environmental protection, delivery time constitute
part of the criteria, in addition to the quality of goods
and services. With the aim of further reducing our
paper consumption, where conditions appropriate, the
Group stored its documents, records and archives in

electronic files instead of paper.

We promote our green policy on environmental
protection through email and internal bulletin boards.
In addition, we remind our employees to minimise
the waste generated from work and actively raise
environmental awareness among them. We also
encourage our employees to make full use of electronic
means to communicate with customers and suppliers
in hopes of further reducing the paper consumption of

the Group.

We will continue to assess the environmental risks
of our business, review the environmental practices
and ensure the compliance with relevant laws and

regulations.
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B. SOCIAL

1.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

We are committed to building a strong team of
employees who share our business mission and
objectives. Human resources policies and management
approaches across our business units are reviewed
regularly to ensure they comply with requirements of
local laws and regulations, as well as support business

growth and employee development.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group
had an aggregate of 81 full-time employees. In order
to cooperate with the continuously growing business
scale, we acquire talents from different countries and

backgrounds to join our local team.

(a) Diverse and Fair Recruitment
We uphold equal employment opportunity for
all employees in relation to all human resources
matters including recruitment, training,
promotion, transfer and benefit etc., regardless
of gender, religiosity, pregnancy, family status,
marital status, race and disability. In selecting
suitable applicants for a job, all employees are
treated fairly. Selection criteria are built on their
qualifications, abilities and experience. In order
to fit different needs, our employee handbook is
available both in printed version as well as online
to let employees familiarise with the Group’s

policies and requirements.
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B. SOCIAL - continued
1. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

— continued

(@)

Diverse and Fair Recruitment — continued

We seek candidates representing a wide range
of backgrounds and experiences for positions at
all levels. In the Reporting Period, the Group
delivers internship and work opportunities for
students in local and foreign academic institutes,
and universities. Through participating in
skill-building workshops and meeting with our
senior leaders who represent their backgrounds
and experiences, we provide opportunities for
students to learn about careers in the financial

sector.
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Employee Distribution by Gender
R #7198 T M
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Chart 1 — Employee Gender Distribution during the
Reporting Period
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B. SOCIAL - continued
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

— continued

1.

(@)

Diverse and Fair Recruitment — continued

B. #t2—&
EERLTEE &

1.

(a)

Z it ~ AP RS — 4

Employee Distribution by Age Group
AR #5318 0 M

7% _ﬁ 37%
15%

Chart 2 — Age Distribution of Employees during the
Reporting Period

Promotion and Remuneration

The Group is constantly improving its
employment mechanism. We review our
employees’ remuneration on an annual basis
through performance assessment. Starting salary
may vary in different positions according to
the skill, knowledge and marketing range. We
adhere to the principle of fairness in providing
promotion opportunities for outstanding

employees.

Supporting Health and Wellness

We are continually expanding our programs
and benefits to support employee health and
well-being. During the Reporting Period, we
provide our employees with medical benefits
which cover in various areas — from general
outpatient services to physiotherapy, Chinese

herbal treatment and bone-setting treatment.
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B. SOCIAL - continued
1. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

— continued

(©)

(d)

Supporting Health and Wellness — continued

We recognise that work-life balance is an
important contributor to the health and
well-being of our employees and their families.
The Group acknowledges the prolonged duration
of breastfeeding, therefore we provide private
and hygienic room to mothers for their in need
of lactation during the office hours. We offer
flexible work hours to support parents and others
who need alternative time schedules. In addition,
we also offer marriage leave and compassionate
leave for employees in need. On the other hand,
we encourage continual learning by providing
examination leave. It applies to employees who
need to take the examinations which relate to our

business.

An Inclusive Culture

We strive to promote an inclusive and supportive
culture where our employees are treated
with dignity and respect. We achieve this by
strengthening the communication between
the Group and employees. Human Resources
Department regularly meets employees to
understand their needs and concerns in daily
operation and takes the responsibility to review
and monitor regularly on the working procedures,

benefits and policies.

For us, every new employee is part of our values
and motivations to achieve higher. We, therefore,
provide a comprehensive orientation program
to new joiners who are equipped with the

followings:

e The Group’s structure
*  Employee’s role and responsibility
*  Visiting the office

e Other procedures and regulations
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

— continued

(d) An Inclusive Culture — continued

In addition, we believe “A healthy body makes a
healthier mind and happier person”. Therefore,
we provide our employees with a nutritional
lunch at our office every working day. The dietary
includes a wide variety of cuisine such as meat,
fishes, vegetables and soup with an emphasise of
“less oil, salt and sugar”. Such free lunch has been
offered by the Group for more than 20 years and
is one of our most welcome fringe benefits by
our employees. In addition, the Group provides
varieties of fruits freely to employees at a regular

manner.

The inclusive culture is support by our Group’s
management team, who explicitly recognise
that caring employees is the shared value of the
Group. Our management team reciprocates the
efforts by providing employees with delicate
pastries and cake. For example, delicious cakes are
provided freely to employees, as well as Longevity
Bun on the seventh day (Renrl) of the first
lunar month, of which culturally celebrating the

birthdays for each employee

Photo 1 JE1
In celebration of 2018 Renri, we had Longevity

Bun together and wishing everyone a prosperous and
healthy year.

PEYW _F—NEANH  Bf1ER TFE
PARSAFTH) —FEEE P~ i e !

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l

B. &€&
EERETIER &

1.

(d)

Photo 2 [iE]2
“A healthy body makes a healthier mind and
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL &

B. SOCIAL - continued
1. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

— continued

()

Grow with Our Employees

The success of the Group relies on the employees
— the most valuable asset of the Group. It was not
merely a slogan but was reflected in the actual
commitment and loyalty by our employees. The
Board is proud of the very low turnover rate, of
which reflecting the strong employee satisfaction
and engagement with the Group. Many of our
employees have been working in our Group for
more than 10 years. As at end of the Reporting
Period, we accumulated a total of 22 full-time
employees serving the Group for more than 20
years; and 19 full-time employees serving the

Group for more than 10 years.

Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations in our employment and
labour practices. For instance, recruitment,
dismissal, promotion and remuneration of
employees regardless of where we operate. The
legitimate rights and interests of employees
are protected in accordance with laws and

regulations.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

28

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group strives to foster a safe working
environment where all individuals are supported to
succeed and can develop to their fullest potential.
Given the principal businesses of the Group relates
to investments and financial services, we do not
involve substantial safety hazards within our office

environment.

To align with our principle of providing employees
with good and safe conditions of working

environment, different initiatives are adopted.

*  Apply “Bactakleen” antibacterial treatment to
clean the air circulation system

*  Install two sets of water filtration systems to
provide healthier water for employees

*  Place air purifiers in the office area

e Purchase ergonomics chairs for employees

*  Display the safety and health pamphlets issued
by Occupational Safety & Health Council on
our intranet and notices board (For example,
Safe Manual Handling and Workplace Stretching
Exercise etc.)

* Arrange professional services providers to
clean the carpet, telephone sets and computer
equipment to reduce possible germs spread

e Prohibit smoking and drinking liquor in the
workplace during office hour

* Equip Human Resources Department with

counselling skills

The Group did not identify any casualties and
accidents, nor did the Group identify any violations
of laws and regulations in relation to workplace health

and safety during the Reporting Period.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

3.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Apart from identifying and retaining the best talents,
we offer employees with opportunities to develop
their knowledge and skills. We believe training and
development are essential for achieving a distinctive
competitive edge for the employees and the Group.
The Group encourages each employee to develop their
strength and opportunities through their own training
objective. We also welcome employees to attend
some seminars or exhibitions which are related to our
business or operation during office hour so that they

are well-equipped to their career paths.

In addition, the Group support internal and
external training programs accredited by Continuous
Professional Training for employees and accounts
executives licensed under Securities and Futures
Ordinance. This can equip employees with
professional qualifications and latest industry
knowledge. During the Reporting Period, employees
accumulated over 619 training hours, as well as
other seminars and workshop sessions attended
by employees. In addition to examination leave,
employees are entitled to subsidies for training or
examination fees for application of licenses relevant to

the Group’s business.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

4.

LABOUR STANDARD

The Group’s labour standards primarily focus on
conformity with local labour laws and regulations.
We prohibit any child and forced labour in any of our
operations and production process. We established
a strict protocol for hiring, of which our responsible
persons would conduct thorough verification of
candidate’s identification documents to ensure child

labour is not recruited.

We never force employees to work overtime, and all
overtime decisions are voluntary in nature. We provide

meal allowance to employees working overtime.

The Human Resources Department ensures the
Group’s procedure and operations comply with below

laws and regulations, including but not limited to:

*  Employment Ordinance

*  Minimum Wage Ordinance

e Sex Discrimination Ordinance

e Disability Discrimination Ordinance

e Family Status Discrimination Ordinance

*  Race Discrimination Ordinance

*  Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
*  Occupational Safety & Health Ordinance

e DPersonal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation
to labour standards laws and regulations during the

Reporting Period.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

5.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Given our business nature of finance segment, we do
not have significant suppliers within the businesses
and operations. The Group’s suppliers include a
various computer system and software vendors,
market information providers, legal advisers and other
professional business service providers. The selection
of suppliers is based on criteria such as the price,
reputation, track record of high corporate standards,
expertise, capacity creditability, business stability and

product/service quality.

Moving forward, we will continue to closely
collaborate with our suppliers to create shared
value. We will also start to incorporate social and
environmental considerations into our procurement
practices and promote sustainability in our value

chain.

PRODUCT/SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

(a) Policies and Compliance
Since we are principally engaged in the finance
segment, the Group adopt due and careful
considerations in the business activities and
are committed to comply with the rules and
regulations of various regulators in Hong Kong
such as Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited, Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission, Hong Kong Police Force (Licensing
Office) and Estate Agents Authority. The
Group also strictly adheres to the applicable
laws and regulations relating to product/services
responsibility in Hong Kong, including but not

limited to:

o Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)

o Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules

o Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules

o Securities and Futures (Client Securities)
Rules
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B. SOCIAL - continued
PRODUCT/SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

— continued

6.

(@)

Policies and Compliance — continued

e Conveyancing and Property Ordinance

*  Land Registration Ordinance

*  Money Lenders Ordinance

*  Money Lenders Regulations

e Estate Agents Ordinance

*  Antd-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance

o Drug Trafficking (Recovery of Proceeds) Ordinance

e Organised and Serious Crimes Ordinance

. United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures)

Ordinance

In order to ensure the full compliance of the
above laws and regulations, the Group established
a comprehensive structure of policies and
procedures and require operational departments
at all levels the proper implementation of the
control measures. The senior management
is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day
operations of these departments and ensuring
that the internal control procedures are being
followed. In addition, we have published and
circulated to employees written operational and
procedural manuals, which contain internal
guidelines and implementation plans to ensure

the followings:

1. Conduct business in an orderly and efficient
manner

2. Protect the assets of the clients and the
Group

3.  Maintain proper records and ensure the
reliability of financial information and other
information used within and published by
the Group

4. Prevent and detect potential fraud

5. Comply with all applicable laws and

regulatory requirements
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B. SOCIAL - continued
6. PRODUCT/SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

— continued

(@)

Policies and Compliance — continued

We also place substantial emphasis on providing
quality services to our clients. The compliance
team is assigned to receive, record, handle and
report all complaints received from our clients.
We are committed to handling complaints in
a proper and stringent manner and will follow
up within 24 hours of receipt. The compliance
manager will then review follow-up the complaint

reports following the pre-defined procedure.

In addition, we established a complaint hotline
which is handled by the complaint officer. The
hotline number is printed on the statement of
accounts sent to the clients of GNS and GNFCL.
We maintain a complaints file to ensure a full
record and the appropriate actions are maintained

on the portfolio’s file.

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies
The Group places emphasis on protecting the
privacy of its clients in the collection, processing
and use of their personal data and is committed
to the compliance of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and other relevant codes of practice
issued by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data.

The Group owes a contractual obligation of
confidentiality to the clients in terms of their
information as stated in the account opening
agreements, and therefore treats their transactions
record and personal information as private and
confidential. All the information is subject to
disclosure requirements under the relevant laws,
rules and regulations (e.g. Listing Rules or SFO).
Besides, the clients retain the rights to review and
revise their data, as well as to opt out from any

direct marketing activities.
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B. SOCIAL - continued
PRODUCT/SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY —

continued

6.

(©)

Protection of Intellectual Property

The Group manages and protects its trademark
“Qr’ through registration in Hong Kong. The
Group obrtains proper licenses on software and

information that are used in various operations.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, there were no
incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations concerning breaches of customer
privacy, loss of data, as well as the provision of

products/services.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

(a)

Policies and Procedures
Honesty, integrity and fair play are the

corner-stones of the Group’s business.

The Group strongly encourages employees to
raise concerns and questions regarding ethics,
discrimination or harassment, and to report
suspected violations of these and other applicable
laws, regulations and policies. We believe early
identification and resolution of these issues is
critical to maintaining the good relationships with
our clients, employees and stakeholders, as well as
the Group’s reputation. We exert zero tolerance
on corruption and bribery, in addition to showing
commitment to combating corruption risks and
loopholes. We established a whistle-blowing
policy to provide a robust mechanism which
allows employees to report any malpractice
existing in the Group to the audit committee

under confidentiality.

During the Reporting Period, we organised for
employees a seminar on “Anti-corruption and
Integrity” with Independent Commission Against

Corruption of Hong Kong.
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. +tg—-&
7. ANTI-CORRUPTION - continued 7. RES-#&E
(b) Money laundering (b) VEHEEE

In order to detect and prevent money laundering
and counter-terrorist financing activities, we
established various policies and procedures in
compliance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Our employees are required to
comply with the relevant Hong Kong laws and
regulations and the anti-money laundering

guidelines adopted by us.

Our anti-money laundering and counter-terrorism
policies and procedures consist of four main

components:

1. Client Due Diligence
We approach a third-party professional
vendor to maintain name search in the
database system. This enables us to screen
each new client against current terrorist and
sanction designations, and check whether the

client is a Politically Exposed Person;

2. Ongoing Monitoring
We regularly review documents, data and
information of our clients and monitor
activities of the clients. This enables us to
identify those complex, large and unusual

transactions;

3. Suspicious Transaction Reporting
We establish a comprehensive internal
protocol of which suspicious activity is to be
reported to the compliance team. Whenever
the team holds reasonable grounds to justify
that the clients or activities are indeed
suspicious, we shall then file suspicious
activity reports to the Joint Financial

Intelligence Unit as soon as possible; and
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B. SOCIAL - continued

%o

ANTI-CORRUPTION - continued

(b) Money laundering
4. Record Keeping
We trace individual transactions by an
on-going data and information keeping. This
enables us to establish a financial profile
of any suspicious account or client. These

records are then kept for at least six years.

(¢) Compliance
During the Reporting Period, no legal case
regarding corrupt practices was brought against the
Group or its employees. Also, no whistleblowing
concerning a criminal offence or misconduct was

reported.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group acknowledges a sustainable business is
dependent on the stability and well-being of the
community where it operates. In addition, we regard
improving the community well-being as an important
way to realise our values. During the Reporting
Period, the Group participated in various types of
public benefit activities and encouraged employees to

participate in these activities:

(a) Donations
. HK$58,000 to Po Leung Kuk (December
2017 & February 2018)

. HK$10,000 to Hong Kong School of
Martial Art Limited (November 2017)

*  Second-hand shoes to Caritas Bamenda
(November 2017)

. HK$14,000 to Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals (July 2017)

*  Second-hand books to World Vision (July
2017)
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. #t €&
8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT - continued 8. HIEWH-E

Photo 3 Photo 4
3 4

The Group cares the community by participating in various donation activities. We donated
shoes (Photo 3) and second-hand books (Photo 4) to those in need.
AEEE M2 B AF A G BELE - M AFFEANLBEE (F3) k&
& (E4) -

(b) Services (b) M

e Participated a fundraising walk held by Po o ZHMRRR I D

Leung Kuk (January 2018) TEFEE) (ZF— )\ 4
“H)

*  Collected the used red pocket for Greeners . B ek SEAT B 14 [ )2 o)
Action’s “Lai-See Packet Recycle & Reuse WCEE R R AT E | i S A A
Programme” (March 2018) EH(ZE—/FE=H)

e Supported ibakery - Tung Wah Group, o SCRPMUEE =BT TR A9 AL
a social enterprise focuses on enabling K% L[5 ibakery — #ll #f &%
disabilities working in the society (December NS0 NG bt O =
2017) ¥ CE—-LFETA)

*  Supported Heep Yunn School for the o Rl R B M ITAE
Work Experience Placement Programme BEEAH (—F L4
(September 2017) )

Community Service Excellence B - i R

The Group is committed to serve and create A4 [ B IRBS AL 1> 3 A

positive impacts on the community. In March At I A A IF T R 2 o i K

2018, the Group was awarded “Excellence Merit —/NFE=H > AEEERR

in Group Fundraiser” ({3 3K A 52 48) by Jay 98 8% T K A0 3 3 A 1 2

Po Leung Kuk (PR =) #2 |
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. t €&
8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT - continued 8. HIEWH-E
(b) Services — continued (b) JRB — #

Photo 5
[ 5

Teamed up by our employees, the Group participated in the fundraising walk organised by Po Leung Kuk in
January 2018. (Photo 5 and 6)
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The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) money lending, (ii)
property development and holding and investment in financial
instruments; (iii) real estate agency and (iv) the provision of
financial services, including securities dealing and broking,
futures and options broking, securities margin financing
and corporate finance services. Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on pages 94 to 95.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to
approximately HK$96,627,000 in aggregate was paid during
the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.01 per share to the sharcholders on the

register of members on 4 September 2018.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2018

is set out on pages 211 to 212 of this annual report.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, 1,610,450,000 new shares were issued and

allotted as a result of completion the placing on 20 September
2017.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company with details
are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
98 to 100.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's

shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 March 2018, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to sharecholders were approximately
HK$3,138,251,000 (2017: HK$2,892,453,000) which
comprised the share premium, special reserve and retained

earnings.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Kam Leung Ming — appointed on 28 April 2017

Ms. Tang Nga Yan Grace — resigned on 28 April 2017

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Man Kong Yui
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of the audit committee,

nomination committee and remuneration committee)

Mr. Hung Hon Man and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Being

eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange:

Name of Director  Details of change

Mr. Hung The monthly salary of Mr. Hung was
Hon Man increased from HK$12,600 to HK$13,230
with effect from February 2018.

Mr. Cham Wai Ho The monthly salary of Mr. Cham was
Anthony increased from HK$27,300 to HK$28,670
with effect from February 2018.

Mr. Kam Leung The monthly salary of Mr. Kam was
Ming increased from HK$31,500 to HK$33,080
with effect from February 2018.

Mr. Man Kong Yui The monthly director fee of Mr. Man was
increased from HK$7,500 to HK$8,800
with effect from February 2018.

Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, The monthly director fee of Mr. Sun was
Henry increased from HK$7,500 to HK$8,800
with effect from February 2018. Mr. Sun
was appointed as a director of Sai Gon
Joint Stock Commercial Bank of Vietnam

on 18 April 2017.

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, The monthly director fee of Mr. Siu was
Alick increased from HK$7,500 to HK$8,800
with effect from February 2018.

EEEWmE

DIRECTORS' REPORT

K8 AN T AR R GE A R DA R R R
%o BRARM A ST EE F A WIEERE
R} 5 Bl 5 JE AR R B 5 TR R B BRI ([ B
ML D) 5513.51(B) (1) T A4 8 -

EEns

B e

UEAE Sistan

Hoe W ek

SCH) 5 e

#o R ek

LRl s

BEHER

55 e S ANE: S £ [ R 5
22 H#HE H12,600% T b
1 313,2304 ¢ ©

hoZF— \4F AR 1k
2 H#H B H27,3000 ot b
1 %228,670#% IC °

HaENZF— NF
HE> HAEEZHBHCH
31,5004 JC L # $£33,080
on

& — \4F AR S0k
EZHAEREMWED H7,500
oo i1 58,800 IC ©

B oF— /FE AR R%
Az AERMEC 17,500
#s T bR £8,800U 0T - 1R 5%
AR FE—LFENHA +/\H
W ZZ AT 7% Sai Gon Joint Stock

Commercial Bank of Vietnam

ZHEH o
M oF—/VEZHE >

EZHAERMWED H7,500
oo i 58,800k T ©

Annual Report 2018 F3

71



72

EEEHE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to

16 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man and
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director
is for the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy agreement

Transaction

X% REHUF LR

Tenancy made on 1 June Legend Creative
2015 (monthly rental:
HK$42,000), renewed on
5 June 2017 (Note)

AN F-REANA—H
AL T
(7 : 42,0004 70)

N F LA ATH
A ()

Enterprise Limited
as the tenant

U EARA A
(fERA)

Note: The tenant is an associate of Mr. Hung Hon

executive Director and Chairman of the Company.

Name of counterparty
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REXS KEBRERS

1. HEWHS

Term of agreement

1 3% F

Address of premises

V¥ 2 ik

1 June 2015 to 31 May

2017, renewed on

Workshop C9 and C10
11/F, Block C, Hong Kong

Amount

&8
HKS$
i T

504,000

5 June 2017 for two Industrial Centre, Nos.

years to 31 May 2019 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
“E—-HENA—H Kowloon, Hong Kong
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

2. Brokerage services and margin loan financing

BEXRS &

t

BEXS

it
i

W)

REBRBRABEERBRE

Name of connected person BEALHSA
Executive Directors: HOTES:

Hung Hon Man and his associates B RHBEAL
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and his associates EREREBREAL

Kam Leung Ming and his associates (note)

Directors of certain subsidiaries of
the Group:
SREIAEBEAL
USRI EN ] YN
WEHLAEBREAL
RERLREBEANL

Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate
Hung Sui Kwan and his associate

Cheng Wai Ho and his associate

Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate

e R R AL (it

FEREETHEARZES:

Brokerage

commission Margin loan Maximum
income paid interest paid amount of
to the Group to the Group margin loan
for the year for the year for the year

FRE ERE
NFEEHE NFEEHE ER
2R ZREE  REREX
kA ON BERAE ZREEH
HK$ HKS$ HKS$
ot ot ot
2,044,272 322,205 22,468,104
52,603 - -
57,957 71,852 1,141,164
6,431 - -
19,046 2,379 463,852
6,038 1,239 58,468
300 03,289 685,534

Note: Mr. Kam Leung Ming was appointed as Director of the
Company on 28 April 2017.

Save as disclosed in (3) below, the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, were of the
opinion that the transactions listed above were on normal
commercial terms where all of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) on an annual basis
calculated under the Listing Rules were less than 5% and
the annual consideration was less than HK$3,000,000. The
transactions were thus exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Asia Smart Group Limited

On 30 August 2017, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),
a subsidiary of the Company and Asia Smart Group
Limited (“Asia Smart”), a company wholly owned by Mr.
Hung Hon Man (an executive Director and the chairman
of the Board), entered into (i) the financing services
agreement (“Financing Services Agreement”, as amended
by supplemental agreement dated 12 September 2017),
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Asia Smart and/or its
associates from time to time during the period from 20
November 2017 to 31 March 2020; and (ii) the broking
services agreement (“Broking Services Agreement”)pursuant
to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon request from
Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide broking services
and services incidental thereto by GNS or any company
amongst the Group to Asia Smart and/or its associates
during the period from 30 August 2017 to 31 March
2020. Details of the terms and conditions of the Financing
Services Agreement and Broking Services Agreement can be
referred to the announcements dated 30 August 2017 and
12 September 2017 and circular dated 18 October 2017.

During the period from 30 August 2017 to 31 March
2018, (i) the interest income earned from Asia Smart by
GNS amounted to HK$212,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$8,500,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018); (ii)
the maximum amount of margin loan granted to Asia
Smart amounted to HK$19,587,000 (with annual cap set
at HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018);
and (iii) the brokerage commission earned from Asia Smart
by GNS amounted to approximately HK$1,149,000 (with
annual cap set at HK$8,000,000) for the year ended 31
March 2018.

Pursuant to the rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be); and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them during the validity of the agreement periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Asia Smart Group Limited — continued

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised
the Board in writing (with a copy provided to the Stock
Exchange) that the transactions: (i) have been approved by
the Board, (ii) were, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group were the transactions
involve the provisions of goods or services by the Group;
(iii) have been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the their respective

annual caps.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions/
Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 73 to 76, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of

EERRSTRAEZKROES -

o]

1. AATEREEIEBIZEBR Y

the Company B
Number of
issued ordinary
Name of Director Capacity shares held
e &7
BEEnS EEME EBREE
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 2,898,049,874

PESCEE Mz H A (i)

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

of the Company
EARDTERT
A=

29.99%

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
2,898,049,874 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

At UEEE SO AR WA 2 BB A Honeylink
Agents Limited$f i Z & A
2,898,049,874/5 & @ Bt 2 HE 4 o
Honeylink Agents Limited /4 17 7% i J&
RSB SLZ HARAR > KA
AT I A by U S e A A

H o

2. RADAZFZEMBRAAZFRES
BRAA((HFES]) 2BREELO
BIzBREEEERZHFR

Percentage

Number of of the issued

non-voting non-voting

deferred deferred share

Name of Director Capacity shares* held of GNS

LT ES

Fris\RER CRITERER

EENA EEME EERBE EZERZBIL

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
LT e A A

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
A AR e A HamEA A

40,000,000 100%
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EERRSTRAEZKROESR -

INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued i
2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of 2. RARAZHKZEMBLARABEHES
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), ERAG((#FEE]) 2BREELO
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company — BIZERERELER2HFR &
continued
* The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to 45 5 T ME IR AE 7 ED PR b A RE i IR
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at JB S o I AR S A5 e B AT A IR R
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of PN R R DN A B
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary VAR - A Rl o I L o T
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall WA N LR SRR A
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares N 2 8 ST R DL 3o A I A
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and 1,000,000,000,000%5 JT 2 3 JH T 4 78
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred REtsA N - 0 A DUAE A By 2
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on TR AR F B0 T T A 5
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong PEMRIERE A N > &SI EF 2 EE
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in 3 T O 7 R N o 3 il 4
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on e 5 AT Tl AL 3 I 2 B AR B S
such ordinary shares respectively. BB e 4R e
3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 3. REARFIZENBRARAGEHSASE
each of GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the BRHEHEIIETZEBR 2HR
Company
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of GNFG
EEFER
FRisE #4T ERTRA
ESnS EaEtE EBREE ZED
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 50,309,829 2.01%
Pt hZEEREA (L)
Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in FE o PRSI AN 2 BT B Honeylink

50,309,829 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
Honeylink Agents Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Hung Hon Man.

A -

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Agents Limited®f A Z &5 I 4 fil
50,309,829 /i & % it Z H % -
Honeylink Agents Limited /4% i 3 &
RS MR 2 ARAA > K
R HEAT BOAS L SO A AR

B b SCRT 488 Ak > i —F — N =
H=+—H - R¥EE I & w5
35246 28 i A 1) 2 W T P sk AR
A5 e ST BT 1) A 23 ) R B 58 T A Y
I > AN F) R R AT LN B
WA A ) SCHAT T A I ik (O 3
TR I B ) B R ) SEXVER) 2 AT AT

73 SR B R 63 B9 A ) HEE 4 BROR AT o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.1 cach in the Company granted under the
share option scheme during the year are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no options were granted to any director of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had

exercised any such rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the

Company were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name Capacity

=L EmtE

Hung Hon Man
B H 2Pk WA (i)

Beneficial owner (Note)

Ha A N (B aE)

Honeylink Agents Limited
(“Honeylink™)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in 2,898,049,874
ordinary shares of the Company which are held by Honeylink, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Held by controlled corporation (Noze)
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"R
KL m] BE R AT (0. 178 70 2 2 8 R
Number of issued Percentage of the
ordinary shares issued share capital
held of the Company

FRBE®RT GHARXASEHT
EBERHE BREZED L
2,898,049,874 29.99%
2,898,049,874 29.99%

Bt - U SC SR AR B B BE A B Honeylinkdf A
LA H]2,898,049,874 /W M Ik 2 B4 o
HoneylinkZ% 17 5% J8 3 4 B 5 53 Aoz 2
FBRAT > HAE 8 AT A f b 305k
AEAEA o

B b SCRT B8R A - R S F — NAE = A
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$82,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 17 to 36 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l

BE BEOHEELHRES

PEE-E - NF=ZA=1T—HILFE
Ay ) B AT AT B 2~ ) S~ )
i B A R A TR

FEEFRMHER
REE T NEFEZA=Z+—HILFE-
B R E T AL 2 A5 E 4 AL A
46 188 LB R 30% o

B AR B B 2 MR > AR A I A
TR

RHAZABERE
RAFARBE-F - NEZA=T AL
6 S — B LA 2 O R IR

B
ER S ANEEEME 2 2B AR A St
82,0009k JT

BEFF 2 REEX

AR T MR 9 2 R A B AT R
e 1T AR % 35 0 A T A o 5 S 0 1 S
RBBE AR BRBE % \FE=A
Sf e HORAE RN B

BrhRERTA
B 4 R RS TR I AR L4 2

SEEIR ST A Z RN MR A F A 17236
EPAEE S GE Sl



EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and is decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2018 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 13.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of

this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry
and properties investment sector, the Group is facing significant
strategic risks on its capital expenditures and working capital
requirements when changing the strategic plans to adopt

theunexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institution. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses, or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan, including but
not limited to implementation of cyber security control and
comprehensive cyber testing programme, to protect the Group

from risk of interruption to its business continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2018.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
two years ended 31 March 2017 were audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). Deloitte resigned as auditor of
the Group with effect from 23 March 2018 and Mazars CPA
Limited (“Mazars”) was appointed on 23 March 2018 as the new

auditor to fill the causal vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 were audited by Mazars whose term of
office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Hon Man
CHAIRMAN

27 June 2018

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

BUFHTESHRIB LM

AN A R A AL JE AT AR B
LRI 553,134 i JFC B S 1 B 2 4 AE T RR
F oo RN AR SL AT E RN E
F— /FE=ZH=+—H IR EUAFE R B
TR 2 WA T LA RSl AR A AT R AR A e R
TR RS A R S -

=B AR

AERKRE _F—-—LFE=ZHA=T—HILW
A 2 45 A B R T th 1 8 « BB PRy
GEHEIAT (TFE8) ) &% - iy —F— N\
B A 2 = BT A 4R A R T
W R (W) & 5 Al A R A A
(ThERARD R -F—-NF=A=1+=H
8 3 AT 15 40T A B DA S Al [l Iy 2 B o
AEBREE —F - /NFE=H=+—HI14
2 AWM BERR P ERBRES . H
AT 300 346 A R Jie IS SR 4 4 K B Je T o — T A

v 2 L R AR A A BT 2 R A I
B it BB R AR R R AR R

NEESFE

EY3
BB

—EZ—=NMENHA T EH

Annual Report 2018 F3

87



86

78 3L 1% S0 B 3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MAZARS
P B X K

™

TO THE MEMBERS OF GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 210, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

Mazars CPA LimiTED

HO B SRR (o) i e g A R
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
TSP 18 SR P IRy 42 M

Tel FE#: (852) 2909 5555

Fax 5 (852) 2810 0032
Email FET: info@mazars.hk
Website #d1ik: www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

Impairment losses on loans and advances

B R Bk 2 i (7 15

HRELEE- K

Related disclosures are included in notes 2, 4, 6 and note 24 in the consolidated financial statements.

LA BERFENFE2 4 6 R24TTHZ MBI FE

Key Audit Matters
HREELER

At 31 March 2018, loans and advances amounting to
HK$697 million, net of collective impairment allowance
of HK$7 million, represent 9% of the total assets of the
Group.

N E-NE=ZA=Z1+—H > BRKEZXE
697,000,000%5 o (F11 B £E B 6 (A % #57,000,000%
go) o A BAEMEEBEZ9% o

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the judgment required to assess whether objective
evidence of impairment exists and the estimation of
the individual impairment allowance, after taking into
account the value of underlying collateral, repayment
records of borrowers, the latest financial position and
other information available of the borrowers in default
of settlement, and the collective impairment allowance.
The impairment assessment process consists of both
individual and collective assessment.

A A% BRI 0 S B A R T e R
R A R 5 A A 25 B U (EL R R A w18 1) Dok (8 A (7
2 T8 AH BRI 2 A E RN RG> DL
AT G 2 R A RN B T ) 2 B IR D B oAt T
BT 2 ERHE) DL R SR B8 I (B B A6 P = 2 HI B o M
P Ak 0 R 4 A8 ) B B2 i REA

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

BN ESTONMEEERESSH

Our procedures, among others, included:

T L e 45) 2 fe a4 -

° evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
loans and advances and the measurement of the
impairment allowance;

Al LB BEAR o B A A 9 (R
B Kwt B E R 2R

D examining, on a sample basis, the loan credit
files and other evidence, including the repayment
records, obtained from management for any
objective evidence of impairment;
fih bR A A S B R bR R AR T
(ORCRIERS Fix JEN-SIVPIEES T ik -I8

e evaluating the collective impairment assessment
performed by management and checking
management’s calculation of the collective
impairment allowance; and
Al E A R A AT 2 SRR (R A > WA
Bl AR HE WU 2 A [

e assessing the fair value of the secured properties for
the loans and advances of the Group by making
reference to the recent open market value of similar
properties at nearby locations.

A8 22 25 AT Hb L8 [7] SR 36 2 B3 4 B (38
B4 B B A R R A R SE 2 8 i
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Key Audit Matters — continued

BMREZEER-K

Impairment losses on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the business of dealing in securities

A5 FET A 2 AR B B ORI i (H fE 1A

Related disclosures are included in notes 2, 4, 6 and note 25

O BEREN 2 4 6R25F# 2 W B 7E

Key Audit Matters
BEELER

At 31 March 2018, the accounts receivable from margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
amount to HK$4,074 million, net of allowance of
impaired debts of HK$17 million represent 52% of the
total assets of the Group.

REF—NFE=H=1T—H BLEXHEHELZ
138 4 % P EU IR IE £54,074,000,00085 76 (F0BR I (H
B B 17,000,0008 70) - 1 BEEMEEEELZ
52% °

The accounts receivable from margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities which give rise to
the greatest estimation uncertainty are typically those
with exposures that are subject to potential cash flows or
collateral shortfalls.

WHRAL G EGEEZRBESEF BIRES B &
KA T Al 22 1k — i R T 3 T A B 4 U = K A
w8 R 2 R o

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance and significant judgement
in determining whether objective evidence of impairment
exists and the related estimation uncertainty in the
measurement of impairment losses.

A A BRI A% 1M B A A B R A R T T R
A B 5 o 2 EE B DL R E R T A A B A R
Jiv ¥ R 22 B R B K R A A 9 (A 4R 2 AR B A R
AT E M o
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in the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

EMHESAMMEERRESSE

Our procedures among others, included:

M CLP ) 2 r e :

e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the
measurement of the impairment allowance;

AP Al LB A BEAR > B 4 kAR
%5 REWCRIE DL B vt B BUE B 2 R

D checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with
reference to closing market price;

AR SRR SO 2 25 Wi il 2 O S O A
TE B DL R H T i (] 4 B 2 HE R

e comparing the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral with the accounts receivable from each
individual margin client to determine whether there
was any shortfall; and
1% R 5 IR i 22 T W [ < R B AR AR e
J5 B WS R T AR L DA S R A A A T R
w K

e assessing the sufficiency of the impairment loss
recognised with respect to accounts receivable with
the above shortfall, after taking into account other
factors like credit worthiness, past collection history
and repayment subsequent to reporting period.
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Key Audit Matters — continued

HRELEE- K

Initial recognition and valuation of convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary

L1 I 4 F AT B BRI 3 B2 T S KA

Related disclosures are included in notes 2, 4, 6 and 34 in the consolidated financial statements.

AEMBIRFEM 2~ 4 6 R345T# .2 1 B %

Key Audit Matters
REELER

The Company’s non-wholly owned listed subsidiary,
Get Nice Financial Group Limited (“GNFG”) issued
convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$525
million which can be converted into ordinary shares of
GNFG at a fixed conversion price.

HA A2 I 4 F i B 2 W) A5 e 4R A R A
Al (&5 4l ) 88474 4 %0 45 525,000,000 56 2 7]
e SR I T i [A] E 40 B it oy 265 o < L A I

The debt component and equity component, which
were recognised as potential non-controlling interests,
were measured at approximately HK$299 million and
HK$213 million at the issue date respectively. The
liability component was recognised at amortised cost
subsequently.

FUIE R o S A TR 0 (RERE oy Y7 T 122 BOME 2 ) 7R 3%
A7 H 53 %9 £4299,000,0009 TT £ 213,000,000 TG
B TR 0 AR e B B A R o

Management has engaged an independent professional
valuer to provide assistance in the estimation of the fair
value of the convertible bonds on the issue date.

LT O 2 AT 8 ST S A L R LA Bah Bl A R AT B
FINEITHZARME -

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance and significant
estimation and judgement in determining the fair value
of the convertible bonds, including the determination of
valuation techniques and the selection of financial inputs
in the model.

A% BT S19F S R A A B R A% SR T > T R
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

BEMHNESANMEERRESSEE

Our procedures among others, included:

M) CHAP ) 2 r e

. reviewing the agreement and other related

documents of the convertible bonds;

28 o] W ek L mT 40 e M 2 HL A AR BR ST AF

*  obraining direct confirmations or performing
alternative procedures from the bondholders to
confirm major terms of the instruments;

PEWE 5 15 A N\ 2 HLHE R R BUE 1T B U
DAl 8 E K

o evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the valuer;

AT AE Al (2 IR ~ BB SR B

e assessing the appropriateness of the work of the
valuer by making enquiries of the valuer on the
bases of valuation and obtaining corroborative
evidence on the input data;

AT (B AG (A 2 T AR 75 5 8 > 1) il (L R 25 afy 4
(B LB 2 8 i A\ R 2 AL IR

e considering the relevance and reasonableness of key
assumptions and valuation methods used, and the
relevance and accuracy of the source data used in the
valuation; and
% BT AR AR T A R A B S S B
VA B AG (B B i} 2 R AR U5 75 A B S Ve Tl 5 T

* evaluating appropriateness of management’s
application of HKFRSs in the accounting of
convertible bonds.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2018 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

,
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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BT &
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obrain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
gh the publ benefits of such

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 June 2018

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate Number: P04793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TSEeE =TS AR E S
Year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
i &1 THERT THTT
Revenue Wy 7 584,840 513,600
Other operating income At 3 g A 9 5,066 7,265
Other gains and losses oA i 25 & s 18 10 4,261 77,826
Amortisation and depreciation Y K T 18 (7,757) (7,792)
Commission expenses 114 B2 (15,304) (14,381)
Staff costs B TR 11 (21,230) (21,341)
Finance costs il & A 12 (59,020) (5,900)
Other expenses HoAth B 32 (37,492) (60,700)
Profit before taxation B AR R 13 453,364 488,577
Income tax expense Jr 45 % B 32 15 (80,364) (73,291)
Profit for the year REFRA 373,000 415,286
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hur2mEWE (BAX)
Items that are reclassified or may be HL 1 77 K 2K AT BE T
reclassified subsequently to DI E W 2 HH
profit or loss
Exchange difference arising on o T A0 SEH I A 2 T O
translation of foreign operations FEER 173 (3)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale HERER S EERGEZ
investments reclassified to At B RE 2 A RE
profit or loss upon disposal Wit 2,181 -
Fair value (loss) gain on At EREZ A RE
available-for-sale investments (5 18 i 4 (7,400) 2,614
Deferred tax arising on revaluation EAGA L EREEE
of available-for-sale investments JE SL B TH 862 (431)
Items that will not be reclassified to NEEW P E R HA
profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of properties Y 2L R 842 374
Deferred tax arising on revaluation YT AN A 2 IR AL B IA
of properties (140) (62)
Total other comprehensive (expense) ZANF E Hth 2 H (BAX) W&
income for the year nE (3,482) 2,492
Total comprehensive income AEEXHEHWGEATE
for the year 369,518 417,778

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A



GEEZREMEEIRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
fh 5E FERT T#C
Profit for the year attributable to: UTALTEEEREERR :
Owners of the Company EN/NNSIE/ ZEDN 297,143 341,945
Non-controlling interests I 12 R HE 45 75,857 73,341
373,000 415,286
Total comprehensive income LTATEGAZEKRERE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NNSIE ZEDN 293,471 344,353
Non-controlling interests I 2 IR HE 4 76,047 73,425
369,518 417,778
HK cent HK cent
& il AL
Earnings per share BEREF
Basic FAR 17 3.34 4.56

AnNuAl Report 2018 F3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=_ZF—\E=A=+—H
At 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it & THERT THTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepaid lease payments, TE A RIE DL K
property and equipment LE YN 18 116,455 122,850
Investment properties ECQ-L7/E 19 788,073 513,670
Intangible assets Y & 20 8,410 8,963
Goodwill [ 21 15,441 15,441
Other assets HoAth & = 23 7,041 6,069
Deferred tax assets A JE B VE & 35 1,266 1,281
Loans and advances B R 24 146,387 5,607
Investments in securities i I R 26 233,055 559,881
1,316,128 1,233,762
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivable I IR IR 25 4,118,049 3,000,547
Loans and advances B K 24 550,353 630,971
Prepayments, deposits and T RIA ~ e M
other receivables A R A 3 TE 27 22,325 18,927
Tax recoverable A [ T 59 343
Investments in securities BN 26 661,239 240,282
Bank balances — client accounts RAITHB-KFIRP 28 419,637 649,170
Bank balances — general accounts AT H BR—— IR P S Bl
and cash 29 749,354 1,069,341
6,521,016 5,609,581
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable JiE AT B JE 30 482,464 722,780
Accrued charges and other payables JRE st 2 R A R A BRI 32 11,699 10,170
Amounts due to non-controlling R 2 T e SRR I
shareholders 31 96,673 52,684
Tax payable JRE A5t i 1A 146,935 161,707
Bank borrowings AT 33 60,000 =
797,771 947,341
Net current assets REEEFEE 5,723,245 4,662,240
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 7,039,373 5,896,002
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A BRI R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R—ZFE—N\FE=A=+—H
At 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT T T
Non-current liabilities FFBEE
Deferred tax liabilities % B TE B fi 35 6,992 7,627
Liability component of convertible i NG L
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary n] % A IR 2 B AE T A 34 350,840 -
357,832 7,627
NET ASSETS EEFRE 6,681,541 5,888,375
Capital and reserves BEXKf#E
Share capital i A 36 966,270 805,225
Reserves e A 4,449,588 4,075,647
Equity attributable to owners ARBEEAEIEER
of the Company 5,415,858 4,880,872
Non-controlling interests FERER
Existing WH 1,053,064 1,007,503
Potential VBT 34 212,619 —
Total Equity g 6,681,541 5,888,375

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 210 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Hon Man
HEX
Director

#HH

FOAHEHE20HZ AR A MRl E R g
i ZF— NN H - H M XA HE T
o i N R ACREE

Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
RS
Director

#H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ZE-N\F=ZA=+—

BLIEEE

Year ended 31 March 2018

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ALTREAES

Property Investments Noan-
Share Share  Special revaluation revaluation Translation  Retained controlling
apital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
HES RE
ke BRBEE HARE ERRE EURE EARE RE8EA A% FBRER 2
Notes HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000
Mk T#x  TEx TiEx  TEx  TEx  Ti#x  Téx  TEx Tz T#Ex
(note i) (notei)  (noteiii)  (note iv) (note v)
(M) (3R M) Ok (3
Ac1 April 2016 REF-RENA—H 671021 2691752 12337 14148 (1354) 387 1340068 4839359 29,642 4869001
Profit for the year RERA - - - - - - M5 M9 T3ML 41586
Other comprehensive income (expense) Et2EME (Fx)
Ttems that are reclassified or may be HEEGHERTREN
reclassfied subsequently to profitor s A EHHZEH
- Exchange difference arising on ~BRENEREL
translacion of foreign operations ZERER - - - - - 0) - 0) - 0)
- Fair value gain on availableforsale — —T[ ik B E 2
investments Sctie - - - - 2,614 - - 2,614 - 2,614
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation of ~ —H ] it 4t &
available-for-sale investments Bk RIERE - - - - (431) - - (1) - (1
Trems that will not be reclasified 10 FEEHIHE
profit or logs Ha A
~ Surplus on revaluation of properties  —YIEE (R - - - 73 - - - 73 101 374
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation -WEEfEEZ
of properties EEHE - - - (43) - - - (%) (17) (62)
Total other comprehensive income Att2ERE (BX)
(expense) ag - - - 8 2,183 0) - 2,408 84 249
Total comprehensive income TEERENE ()
(expense) for the year HE - - - o8 () 31945 34433 T4 4778
Transactions with equity holders AREREAZRE
Contributions and distributions HERAF
- Issue of shares under placing ~ AR E BT 36(a) 134,204 167,755 - - - - - 301,99 - 30199
~ Dividends to owners NN E:! 16 - - - - - - (161,046)  (161,046) - (161,046)
- Dividends to non-controlling “HEEEHELR
interests of a non-wholly B R
owned subsidiary RHRE - - - - - - - - @72y 47,2
134,04 167,755 - - - - (161,0d6) 140913 (47.071) 93,642
Changes in ownership interests ROEREH
- Distribution in specie ~Eik 450 - (163981 35810 - - - - sy 1817 -
- Deemed loss arising from ~RlE 2 BB A
apitalisation of inter-company ZEARAT
balance due from a non-wholly MEREALT
owned subsidiary EE B EEE (0 S S - S = - (108,159)  (108,159) 108,159 -
- Deemed disposal of partial interest -HELEREARZ
in a subsidiary without W s
loss of control 5 FE 45(0) = = = = - - (20743)  (207423) 714977 507,554
- Contribution from non-controlling ~ —FFE M4 i &
interests 45(c) - - - - - - - = 400 400
- (163981) 35810 - - - (1558)  (443,753) 951707 507954
At31 March 2017 RoB-tF
ZA=t-H 805,225 2,695,526 159,147 14,376 829 384 1205385 4880872 1,007,503 5,888,375
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mEREEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

RRTHE AR FERER
Property Investments
Share Share  Special  revaluati luation ~ Translati Retained
apitll  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  Existing  Potential Total
nE k%
BE  RARE KARE ERRE EHEE EXRE REEA &g BE bt 3
Notes HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Wk Tkt TEx T Tk Tk Tk T TEx T Téx  T#x
(note i) (note ii) (note i) (note iv) (notev)  (note 34)
O R i) (ke (R (e
Ac 1 April 2017 RZF—LEM-H 805,205 2695526 19147 14376 829 384 1005385 4880872 1,007,503 - 5888375
Profit for the year AR - - - - - - 9743 297,143 75,857 - 373,000
Other comprehensive income (expense) At 2EbE (BY)
Liems that are reclassified or may be HETFARATETY
reclusified subsequently to profit or los AR ER#HZFH
- Exchange difference arising on -BERNEREE
translation of foreign operations AR - - - - - 173 - 173 - - 173
- Fair value gain on availableforsale - HEREHMEE
investments reclassified to BaithEd
profit or loss upon disposal G2 AR ERE - - - - 2,181 - - 2,181 - - 2,181
- Fair value loss on available-forsale — — W EH &2
investments AEER - - - - (7,400) - - (7,400) - - (7,400)
- Deferred tax arising on revaluarion  ~Z {57 fh Bt B
of available-for-sale investments EZERHR - - - - 862 - - 862 - - 862
Items that will not be reclassified to FEEHIH i
profit or loss ZHH
- Surplus on revaluation of properties - WEE R - - - 614 - - - 614 228 - 842
- Deferred tax arising on revaluasion - ) EEHEEL
of properties EEHE - - - (102) - - - (102) (38) - (140)
Total other comprehensive income Rb2EhE
(expense) (A% 28 - - - 50 (43 173 - B 190 - (34
Total comprehensive income REE2ENE ()
(expense) for the year BE - - - S ) 73 98 14T 7604 - 18
Transactions with equity holders HREREAZRS
Contributions and distributions HERA T
- Issue of shares under placing - RAEREBRTRL 36(b) 161,045 257,673 - - - - - 418,718 - - 418,718
- Dividends to owners - W#EAZBE 16 - - - - - - (7150 (177,150) - - (177,150
- Dividends to non-controlling interests - 3 2 BHHE A
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary MR 2 - - - - - - - - (30389) - (303%9)
161,045 257,673 - - - - (1771500 241,568 (30,389) - 21,179
Changes in ownership interests R
- Convertible bonds issued by - FHEA A%
alisted subsidiary Ak idse 34 = = = = = = = = - 1269 212619
- Acquisition of additional interest in -~ — WERBARZ
a subsidiary R 45(c)(ii) - - - - - - (53) (53) (97) - (150)
_ - - = = = (53) (53) ©07) 22619 212,469
At 31 March 2018 R=B-N%
=ZR=t-A 966,270 2953199 159,147 14,888 (3,528) 57 1325305 5415858 1,053,064 212,619 6,681,341
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REREEEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

TSEeE =TS AR E S
Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes:

)

(i)

(iid)

(iv)

)

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par
value.

Under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for distribution
or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The special reserve of the Group arose as a result of the group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) completed on 16 May 2002,
which principally involved the exchange of shares of the Company
with all the issued share capital of Get Nice Incorporated. The
details are set out in the prospectus dated 24 May 2002 issued by
the Company.

An amount of approximately HK$123,337,000 represents
the difference between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries together with the net book value of a subordinated
loan capitalised at the date on which they were acquired by the
Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares, as well as the difference between
the consolidated sharcholders’ funds of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the Get Nice Incorporated’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares.

As set out in the prospectus of Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(“GNFG”), a subsidiary of the Company, dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”), shareholders of the Company would be entitled
to one share of GNFG for every 40 shares of the Company held
on the Record Date (as defined in the Prospectus). An amount of
approximately HK$35,810,000 represents the difference between
the proportionate share of the interest in GNFG and the net assets
value on the Record Date in relation to the distribution in specie
arising from the listing of the shares of GNFG on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net
changes in the fair value of the available-for-sales investments held
at the end of the reporting period.

Translation reserve of the Group comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from translation of the financial statements of
the Group’s subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A
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HAERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
(i FTHET TH T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Profit before taxation T4 I 36 ) 453,364 488,577
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation r e 18 7,757 7,792
Gain on disposal of property B W 2 K 2 W s

and equipment - (5)
Impairment loss on loans and B FGR 2 WE  1E AR

advances, net 24 1,099 1,612
Fair value changes on investment WEWHEz A RHES

properties 19 (40,606) (64,270)
Finance costs Tl A 12 59,020 5,900
Interest income F B e A (480,104) (400,326)
Fair value changes on financial assets Fe N FufE A 18 i iR 2

at fair value through profit or loss BHEERNA REEE) 58,508 (22,1306)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries th B BB N W 2 W s 43 (20,000) -
Operating cash flows before 8- 1Pl

movements in working capital W SN E 39,038 17,144
Changes in working capital S E S

Other assets HoAth 5 (972) (849)

Accounts receivable TR 3K (1,117,502) 316,944

Loans and advances B B K (61,261) (10,714)

Prepayments, deposits and other AT RIE ~ Hed K

receivables A R SRR T (2,919) 1,603

Financial assets held for trading HFEE 2 S REE (31,248) (120,484)

Bank balances — client accounts WATEEGR-FFIRP 229,533 (246,761)

Accounts payable JRE AT i TE (238,832) 228,853

Accrued charges and other payables JRE st T e L At £+ iR T 654 2,703
Cash (used in) from operations K8 (TR s Bl (1,183,509) 188,439
Interest income received EAINSY PN 479,428 390,754
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid AT A ik R 15 B (94,765) (94,446)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED K& %% (Fif) iBERE

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (798,846) 484,747
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HRERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

TSEeE =TS AR E S
Year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt & THERT TH T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEHK
Purchase of available-for-sale W E ATt B R
investments (119,350) (38,431)
Purchase of financial assets designated i B 45 & £ ¥ 25 SR {H A
at fair value through profit or loss 18 4 e R 2 b Al (61,895) (492,700)
Proceeds from disposal and redemption 8 & I [] 5 7 2 4% A fe(H
of financial assets designated at A8 5 ﬁﬁ R MEEZ
fair value through profit or loss T 45 31 JE 71,939 25,800
Proceeds from disposal of o B AT :':I::' BEREZ
available-for-sale investments Fr 5 3% 38 26,685 41,064
Purchase of property and equipment =LY/ E YN &S 18 (520) (3,286)
Purchase of intangible assets il B Y 20 - (8)
Purchase of an investment property R EY 2k 19 (233,797) (379,750)
Acquisition of additional interest in WA I o 2 W) 2 B AR A
a subsidiary 45(c)(ii) (150) -
Net cash flows arising from disposal H [ s 22
of subsidiaries 4 A 43 19,281 -
Proceeds from disposal of property B W2 R 2
and equipment T A5 3 H - 5
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXEBHMAZERE
ACTIVITIES (297,807) (847,3006)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEXEK
Capital contribution from IE Ve e 2 ) &
non-controlling interests - 507,954
Interest on convertible bonds issued SRR Y AR L
by a listed subsidiary paid AJ R AR 2 2 FLE (5,250) -
Interest paid 2T FLE (1,311) (5,900)
Dividends paid AT (177,150) (161,046)
Dividends paid to non-controlling SRy FA]
interests of a non-wholly owned ¥ IO 2 2 I B
subsidiary (30,389) (47,271)
Proceeds from convertible bonds ETHE A A T2
issued by a listed subsidiary, AJ R R AR SR 2 T 15 AROH
net of issue costs 34 511,875 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT BT A5 2)0E 1,374,990 1,330,000
Repayment of bank borrowings &R AT E & (1,314,990) (1,765,000)
Proceeds from issue of shares BEAT A T 159 3OH 36(b) 418,718 301,959
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEXBFB2FRE
ACTIVITIES 776,493 160,696

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT Tt
Net decrease in cash and cash BHEeRBESEEEBEEERD
equivalents (320,160) (201,863)
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEERSB o HEFH
changes, net 173 (3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the BREHNEERRESEEEE
beginning of the reporting period 1,069,341 1,271,207
Cash and cash equivalents at the end %R LEHRESRES
of the reporting period, represented ZHEEBR A :
by cash and bank balances — general R 1T &5 &} —
accounts and cash —REEFRES 749,354 1,069,341
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r & B S AR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Get Nice Holdings Limited (“the Company”) was

incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its substantial shareholder is Honeylink Agents Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability of which the entire share capital is
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man, who is also a
director of the Company. The Company’s registered office
is located at P.O. Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket
Square, Grand Cayman, KY1-1001, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is located at 10® Floor, Cosco
Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road,
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBER

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,

unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2017 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both

changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The adoption of the amendments results in the additional
disclosures in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional provisions
therein, the comparative information is not presented in the

first year of adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

Amendments to HKAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
Jfor Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify, among others, how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at

fair value.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle: HKFRS 12 —
Clarification of the scope

The amendments clarify that except for the summarised
financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in which the interests are classified or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, the requirements of HKFRS 12
apply to interests in entities within the scope of HKFRS 5.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at revalued amounts or fair value, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an

acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise on conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interest even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interest having a

deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

0%

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in ownership interest — continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or

others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the

acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired business over the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as an income from bargain

purchase.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

TESBR-&

REEE_&

A T B — A

ikl A% 48 ] K% 25 38 O 28 W) 22 4 i E
AR R E A Z R E RS W L 2R
At ()RR BRI B EUE
0% FeAE BELAT o] £ B ME £ 2 o AR E 2 A
B i) A 2 2 4% i HE 5 1R JB8 o i L%
AR AT I P BBOHE 4 2 B (L i) K
B MR AR o ST H At 4 17 0 45
Tl 8 A B BTt A A WD 2 e
Fe SR % B 24 W) B A B
BE 2 A — HEHE G IR o 7 AT T8 2
PR B 2 AT AT 5 R A X AT i i
R AR R A O P R H R
BUB R DUA AR 2 e A E ~ B
Al A A e A -

]
W S 36 5 E A 2 i R A T A 2 AR
TR~ WM T 2 AT AT S 2 JBCRE £
FCURE ) e AT e - i 7 45 WS i D7 P
R ARESR 2 28 Su(d (Wsd ) i 2
W S5 SR 55 o O A ATl ) I o R 4fE
B2 W H N 2 2T -

;4

W S B R A 2 TR R R — TH
SEEEE o 3 % AR I R 1R 5
B o Sl A AR HEAT SE AR B - S AT
B A BN LA B T B R T (AT
RE ) B30 (2R - J) 2R AT M 9 2 W
(EL R o A0 O (A B M i E M 2
Ve T & 7 ) G = A BB
A B 2 (R R 1R A AT 3 [

F—J7 W R E R R R > B Ok SE
B BT AR TR A
W il Y < U L P AR A~ R i
7 2 A AR I 428 S M i e L (BB )
T M5 7 - T A A O T A 2
NREZ BFEM AR 25 (E) >
RV A 4 2 R A (AU 2 WO o



R R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up to
the amount previously charged and thereafter to property

revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBEK-E

110

— continued
Property and equipment — continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment
over their estimated useful lives from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at

the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 29 years
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the term of

the lease, or 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are
classified as operating leases. The premiums are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
and are amortised over the remaining lease terms of land on

a straight-line basis to profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by owner
to earn rental income and / or for capital appreciation.
These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating
lease, which satisfy the definition of investment property

and carry at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Investment properties — continued

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is based on market value, being the estimated amount
for which a property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein
the parties have each acted knowledgeably, prudently and

without compulsion.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised undil its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.
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0%

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade

date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial

liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

1)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss.
They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain
and loss recognised in profit or loss which includes any

dividends or interest earned on the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not financial
guarantee contracts or not designated and effective as

hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss only if (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains
or losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are part of a
group of financial assets and / or financial liabilities
that are managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk

management strategy.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

2)

3)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including accounts receivable,
loans and advances, deposits, other receivables and
bank balances are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are not held for trading. They are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, except where receivables are interest-free loans
and without any fixed repayment term or the effect
of discounting would be insignificant. In such case,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment loss.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition over the period to
maturity. Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are

recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other categories
of financial assets. They are measured at fair value with
changes in value recognised as a separate component of
equity until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in other comprehensive income
shall be reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

4)  Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
payable, other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders and bank borrowings.
All financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant,

in which case they are stated at cost.

5)  Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the
Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments unless otherwise specified.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried
at amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.
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Year ended 31 March 2018

0%

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

When an available-for-sale financial asset stated at fair value
is impaired, a cumulative loss comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition
of impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of
impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit

or loss.

Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary

Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary that can be
converted to equity share capital of the listed subsidiary
at the option of the holders, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity

component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary is measured
as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of fair value of the compound instruments over the amount
initially recognised as the liability component is recognised
as the equity component which is recognised as potential
non-controlling interests. Transactions costs that related to
the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated
to the liability and equity components in proportion to the

allocation of the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary
— continued

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expenses recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using the
effective interest method. In particular, once the convertible
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary were exercised by the
bondholders, the equity component would be transferred to

the non-controlling interests.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the amount
previously recognised in potential non-controlling
interests, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares

issued.

If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference
between the amount paid and the carrying amount of the
liability component is recognised in profit or loss and the
amount previously recognised in potential non-controlling

interests is released directly to accumulated profits or losses.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For classification in the statement of
financial position, cash equivalents represent assets similar in

nature to cash and which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the

following bases:

e Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income on a trade date basis;

o Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreement or deal mandate

when relevant significant act has been completed;
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0%

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

e Advisory, proof of funds commission and clearing and
handling fee income are recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant services

have been rendered;

e Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
on a time proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the effective

interest rate applicable;

e  Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s

rights to receive payment have been established;

*  Rental income from operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on a straight-line

basis over the lease terms; and

*  Management fee is recognised when the relevant

services have been rendered.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or

losses are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currency translation — continued

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

*  Income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate and

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its prepaid lease
payments, property and equipment, intangible assets and
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

As lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Employee benefits — continued

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based transactions-share options granted to

employees

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange for shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.

TESBRR-&

EBEREMN-&

R &

AR A A AR M6 9] > A 48 T A = 3 AR S
ZFAT TR R BV AR ] % 1
Gil ) Sy & SR I
B o BL AR Y (T T A R AL SRSk R
SR GB 2 BUE > M A0 BR AT AT A B
EE 2N S (E (B A6 R % R AR A B A
)

URBERNRS
LITER 5 LI 5 15— 1% T 1
ﬁz/gﬁﬁx%

AL 2 R (BRE ) & DB 32
i 22 5y & MBI > 4% Ut R B LR
AR5 52 4 R0y B T BBy 2 HEA)

C RS 2~ RE2 %R B
Jr 452 S B ME 2 0% o (EL T 7R E > Sl DA
L AR i B B N S > U A
2 J R T B B B e > B R 4% H
S YSEE o Sl A T b £

TP B PR AR AT (0 IR DA A B S o
i Tl 5 K T A e o T
e HE 7% B S 1 A o U A A e i
EJWH% T B ST T B AR e A e

R a R 2R E R, REHE

ia °

SLIF R BN A AT DURE 25 45 5 DL 6
A BZ By 45 B Wi R i IR B 2 8 AL
ERF& - MEAES R(E LT AR 2
B UL % BT IR 2 T H 2 2 e fE s
BERARLT > XEGRAE
P A P o 25 4R R B R E

it

Annual Report 2018 F3

121



122

r & B S AR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Related parties — continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.
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Year ended 31 March 2018

0%

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
early adopted.

Annual Improvements to  2014-2016 Cycle: HKFRS 1

HKFRSs and HKAS 28!
Amendments to Transfers of Investment
HKAS 40 Property!
Amendments to Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions'
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKEFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts!
HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers !
HKIFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration!

Annual Improvements to  2015-2017 Cycle?

HKFRSs
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HKIFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
Amendments to Employee benefits?
HKAS 19
Amendments to Investments in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures?
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation?
HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
# The effective date to be determined

Except for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as set out below, the
directors do not anticipate that the adoption of other new/

revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKEFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the

Group are:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading or contingent
consideration for a business combination) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

recognised in profit or loss.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have

occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs — continued 3. ERUMKREERZAREE

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. The Group’s available-for-sale investments of
carrying amount of HK$233,055,000, which are currently
stated at fair value, will either be measured as fair value
through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject
to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition, the
expected credit loss model may result in early provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to
the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The Group expects that the application of the expected
credit loss model will result in earlier recognition of credit
losses and will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the

year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction contracts and the related

Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the new

standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

© Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation
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3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers —

continued

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in
more disclosures. However, they do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on
the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the future

reporting periods.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment losses on loans and advances and accounts
receivable from margin clients arising from the business of

dealing in securities

The Group periodically reviews its loans and advances and
accounts receivable to assess whether impairment losses
exist. In determining whether impairment losses should
be recognised, the Group has individually evaluated its
loans and advances and accounts receivable for impairment
after taking into account the value of the underlying
collateral, credit worthiness, past collection history and
repayment subsequent to reporting period of each borrower,
repayment records of borrowers, the latest financial
position, other information available of those borrowers
in default of settlement to determine the net present value
of expected future cash inflow. If the financial conditions
of the clients of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make repayments,
additional impairment losses may be required. At the end
of the reporting period, the carrying amount of loans and
advances and accounts reccivable from margin clients in
the business of dealing in securities are HK$696,740,000
(2017: HK$636,578,000) and HK$4,074,154,000 (2017:
HK$2,905,970,000), net of allowance for impaired
debts of HK$7,149,000 (2017: HK$6,050,000) and
HK$17,321,000 (2017: HK$17,329,000), respectively.

Fair value of investment properties/building at revaluation

The fair value of building in revaluation model and investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom
was determined by independent firms of professional
valuers and by the directors of the Company. The valuation
performed was arrived at with reference to recent market
transaction prices at the end of reporting period and / or
market rental value for similar properties at similar locations
with total fair value of investment properties and buildings
approximately HK$788,073,000 (2017: HK$513,670,000)
and HK$35,844,000 (2017: HK$35,630,000) at 31 March
2018 respectively. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
recent market prices would result in (i) changes in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or
loss; and (ii) change in the revaluation amount of the buildings
of the Group and corresponding adjustments to the amount of

gain or loss reported in other comprehensive income.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS - continued
Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Tax provision and tax losses

In year 2014, the hotel complex and certain assets related
to the hotel and entertainment operations (the “Assets”)
were disposed of, resulting in a gain on the disposal,
and realisation of fair value gains previously recognised
in respect of investment properties. The management
has made a tax provision in respect of these gains with
the assumptions that (i) the tax losses of Grand Waldo
Entertainment Limited (“Grand Waldo”) brought forward
from previous years, which have been tentatively agreed by
the local tax authority, can be utilised against the profit
arising from the disposal of the Assets, (ii) the allocation
basis of the proceeds from disposal of the Assets between
Great China Company Limited, which was the subsidiary
which owned the properties comprising the Assets, and
Grand Waldo is appropriate and will be eventually accepted
by the local tax authority as it is in accordance with the
sale and purchase agreement, and (iii) the cost base of the
Assets has been approximately determined for the purpose
of calculating the gain on disposal for tax purposes. In case
where the local tax authority raises further comments on
the tax losses brought forward of Grand Waldo, or does
not agree with either the calculation of the cost base of
the Assets or allocation basis of the proceeds from disposal
of the properties, recognition of significant amounts of
additional tax in the profit or loss account may be required

in the future.

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
HK$92,983,000 (2017: HK$93,288,000) due to the
majority of the balances are subject to further approval
by the local tax authority. In addition, the realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are more than expected, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such

recognition takes place.
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Year ended 31 March 2018

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4, BRESTETRALE - &

AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

Fair value of the liability component of the convertible bonds
issued by a listed subsidiary

The fair values of the liability component of the convertible
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary (“GNFG CB”) in the
principal amount of HK$525,000,000 that are not traded
in an active market are estimated by the Group based on
the valuation performed by an independent valuer. The
fair values of the liability component convertible bonds are
determined on the issue date of GNFG CB using Binomial
Option Pricing Model with reference to unobservable
market data, which is higher than the principal amount.
As a result, the day-one loss, which represented difference
between the principal amount and the fair value of GNFG
CB at the issue date, is resulted and not recognised in profit

or loss immediately but is deferred.

The deferred day-one loss is allocated to the liability
component and the potential non-controlling interests in
proportion to the normal value. The deferred day-one loss
in the liability components were amortised over the term of
GNFG CB on a basis similar with effective interest method
and is included in “Interest on convertible bonds issued
by a listed subsidiary” in profit or loss and the deferred
day-one loss in the potential non-controlling interests will

be realised through conversion and redemption.

Total interest expenses (including inputted interest and
amortisation of deferred day-one loss) on GNFG CB of
approximately HK$57,709,000 were recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018. The carrying
amount of the liability component of GNFG CB as at 31
March 2018 was approximately HK$350,840,000. Further
details are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt when applicable,
which includes the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements, the GNFG CB as
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SE(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. E@MIH

(a) Categories of financial instruments a HEEWMIAE
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$’000
TET THT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through YNNIk
profit or loss 2 E
— held for trading —EEE 191,853 206,814
— designated at fair value through — 8RN AT
profit or loss 18 4 ffE 58 469,386 491,729
Loans and receivables, including bank BRI B WO I
balances and cash (BLARSRAT 45 B B &) 6,004,852 5,373,263
Available-for-sale investments, A ERE > A
at fair value 233,055 101,620
Financial liabilities tHas
At amortised cost HE B R A (995,701) (780,163)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BHEEMEEEEREEK
The Group’s major financial instruments include AL E 2 T2 T H AL SR
investments in securities, accounts receivable, loans BE - BEICHRIE - SR L #E »T)\
and advances, deposits and other receivables, bank ¥ 4 Ko FCMb BB e 3R0E > SR AT &5 ik

balances and cash, accounts payable, other payables,
GNFG CB and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

KB G ~ BEAT AR IE - Eﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ
TH ~ &5 07 < Rl AT R 6R 2 B R OIE
2 1 JBe o T R R AT 1R B o AR

4R TR 2 FEAE A A B R B
% o % 4l T B TR A > R B
DL K AR A B R B 2 B S a0
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in
fair value of a financial instrument due to changes
in interest rates, equity prices or foreign currency
exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable rate bank borrowings. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Group closely manages its
exposure arising from margin financing by allowing an
appropriate margin on the interest received and paid
by the Group.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
instruments are detailed in other section of this note.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from the
Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

A 50 basis points increase or decrease on accounts
receivable and bank borrowings is used while 5
basis points increase or decrease on bank balance is
used when reporting interest rate internally to key
management personnel. These represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of each
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
If the interest rate had been 50 basis points higher /
lower on accounts receivable and bank borrowing and
5 basis points higher / lower on bank balance, the

Group’s profit after taxation would increase / decrease
by HK$17,230,000 (2017: HK$12,720,000).

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rate
arising from the Group’s debt securities.

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as the
directors of the Company consider the debt securities
are not subject to significant fair value interest rate
risk.
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

6. EMIA-&
b) HEEBEEABRICE - &

— continued
Market risk — continued

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and listed
debt securities. The directors of the Company manage
the exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of
these financial instruments. The fair value of these
financial instruments will be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes in the
closing market prices of the relevant listed equity
securities.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 20% (2017: 20%) higher/lower,
and held other variables constant, the Group’s profit
after taxation for the year would increase/decrease by
HK$32,040,000 (2017: HK$34,538,000), as a result
of changes in the fair value of listed equity securities.
If the prices of the respective debt instruments had
been 20% (2017:20%) higher/lower, and held other
variables constant, the Group’s other comprehensive
income for the year would increase/decrease by
HK$24,661,000 (2017: HK$20,324,000), as a result
of changes in the fair value of listed debt securities.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of
the transactions and financial assets and liabilities of
the group entities are denominated in the functional
currencies of the respective entities and, in the
case of Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and United States
dollars (“US$”), the exposures are limited as MOP
are pegged to HK$ and HKS$ is pegged to USD.
Besides, investment in certain unlisted equity and
an investment property in United Kingdom, and
its related rental income are denominated in British
Pound. The Directors consider that a reasonably
possible annual change of 5% in the exchange rate
between Hong Kong dollars and British Pound would
not have material impact on the Group’s results
and therefore hedging through the use of derivative
instruments is considered unnecessary. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis has been presented on the currency
risk.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
loan facilities provided by the Group arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the amount of contingent
liabilities in relation to loan facilities provided by the
Group as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which
is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Impairment allowances
are made for losses that have been incurred at the
end of the reporting period. Significant changes in
the economy or environment of a particular industry
segment could result in losses that are different from
those provided for at the end of the reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it
undertakes in relation of accounts receivable, loans
and advances, other receivables and debt securities
by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted
in relation to any borrower or issuer, or groups of
borrowers. Such risks are monitored on a revolving
basis and subject to a quarterly or more frequent

review.

The management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. Each client
has a maximum credit limit based on the quality of
collateral held and the financial background of the
client. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Margin calls
are made when the trades of margin clients exceed
their respective limits. Any such excess is required to
be made good within the next trading day. Failure to
meet margin calls may result in the liquidation of the
client’s positions. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

6. EMIA-&
b) HBEAREZEERBEEK - &

— continued

Credit risk — continued

The credit risk on bank balances is limited as the
counterparties are banks with high credit rating

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The exposure of credit risk on debt securities is limited
as they are issued or guaranteed by companies listed on

the Stock Exchange.

The Group’s maximum exposures to credit risk
relating to loan commitments unrecorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position is
HK$100,000,000 (2017: HK$80,100,000), as set out

in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers
and customers. To address the risk, the treasury
team works closely with the settlement division on
monitoring the liquidity gap. The Group manages its
liquidity risk through maintaining sufficient cash, the
availability of funding from the market in the capacity
of a financial institution, and the ability to close out
market positions. As part of the measures to safeguard
liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding

sources and spreading out the maturity dates.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities according to the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows. The
difference between the “Total undiscounted cash
flows” column and the “Carrying amount at the end
of reporting period” column represents the future
contractual cash flows attributable to the instrument
which are not included in the carrying amount of the
financial liability on the consolidated statement of

financial position.

6. €RITH_&

MERBEEZEEERBEE - &

RBETEE - &

B B R 5 B 7Y &

R A AR AR B R R
E IR R 2 B R A IR o T
FARYR B ORI BB B
(P AL B A] e R OR 2 2
H) T B o R R AR FLE A
GHEWRE - [ RITRBRERER
R — B BT o R 22 e £
—HlZ - (URARTA
AL R A & H Bl i B A B
B 4 L I A B B AR AR
B MBIR IR Z MR -

Carrying
Repayable amount at
in Total  theend of
Repayable less than Within undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month 1 year 25year  cash flows petiod
AR-EA AER RREHK
LESS |- niEE -£h  WERF RERBEE  KAE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§000
Tt Fix T T Tt Tt
At31 March 2018 R-2-NE=A=+-AR
Accounts payable TR 320,263 162,231 - - 482,494 482,464
Other payables HA R 30E - 5,724 . B 5,724 5,724
Amount due to non-controlling RFBRBR A
shareholders 96,673 - - - 96,673 96,073
Bank borrowings BiTHE - 60,034 - - 60,034 60,000
Convertible bonds issued LB AA%RL
by a listed subsidiary A 5 — = 10,500 529,375 539,875 350,840
416,936 227,989 10,500 529,375 1,184,800 995,701
Loan commitments BHRE - 100,000 - 100,000 =
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6. TWMIH_&
b) UHEAMETEEEREE - &

REBESEE - &
B B R #m g Y % —

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Total the end of
Repayable less than Within ~ undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month 1 year cash flows period
BR-18R AEE  RBEHR
EREXEE hEE -Ef  BERELE ZEEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt T T

At 31 March 2017 R-B-tE=A=1-H
Accounts payables FEfHIRIR 256,923 465,954 - 722,877 722,780
Other payables AR 308 4,699 - - 4,699 4,699
Amounts due to non-controlling sharcholders €2l e 52,684 - - 52,684 52,684
314306 465954 . 780,260 780,163
Loan commitments BYkiE - - 80,100 80,100 -
The following tables detail the Group’s expected TR AR 1 Rl E 2 T
maturity for its financial assets. The tables below have FIMH o N RARE S G E R

been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
maturities of the financial assets, including interests
that will be earned on those assets, except for those
financial assets which are not repayable on demand.
The analysis is based on when the Group anticipates
that the cash flows will occur. The difference between
the “Total undiscounted cash flows” column and the

“Carrying amount at the end of reporting period”

BLG BN OL (45 5255 B A A%
BRI 2 U)o e 1 SR A
B R EBRAN o AR Y
H A A e [ YRU0) B O R R
AT It B 1T A 4 o T oA W B B 0
A — 3 BT R R 2 iR
HfE | =52 B E5 - EA R
THBEAG R AR B &R

column represents the possible future cash flows A BB U A R
attributable to the instrument which are not included R EEA BRI R Z T E - H
in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the EA MEESERBFEEHAME

consolidated statement of financial position. The
inclusion of information on financial assets is necessary
in order to understand the Group’s liquidity risk
management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset

and liability basis.

S B U Bk B
G R A AR A B U )
B 4 A R A ZH Y o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

6. M I H-&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) BERBREEEEREE -&
— continued
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued A Y G IEY N Sl
Carrying
Repayable  Repayable amount at
Repayable between between  Repayable  Repayable Total  the end of
Repayable in less than 1to3 3 months between between More undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months tolyear lto2years 2to5years than 5 years Undated cash flows period
AR
AR -fiRE AR AR AR REB
ZE  -fiAm @AM ZEREZ -£Z REE RENE MEEHE
EREE fig g -fnEE WEAME IEAERE  BBIF £88 48 kAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fibx Fibx Fibx Fibx Fibx Tk T Fibx Fibx
At31 March 2018 R-g-NE=A=1-H
Gross accounts receivable TR 4,092,875 43,901 - - - - - - 4136776 4135,370
Less: impairment allowance W RERE (17,321) - - - - - - - (17,321) (17,321)
Net accounts receivable TR 4,075,554 43,901 - - - - - - 4119455 4,118,049
Bank balance - general accounsand csh - RATEEB - —RIRF RBE 649,510 89,736 10,127 - - - - - 749,373 749,354
Bank balance - lentaccounts RGH-FFEF 15138 268515 - - - - - - Q9753 419637
Loans and advances VSt - 1M 26 143405 95,712 67,197 - - T89S 696,740
Deposits and other receivables 14 REf s 2,072 - - - - - - - 21,072 2,072
Financial assets held for trading HRERZARGE - - - - - - - 191,853 191,853 191,853
Financial assets designated at fair RERRAAER
value through profit or loss RiED 2 2RKE - - 9390 469,170 35 - - - 7888 469,386
Avallableforsale invesments ik &R - - 1522 10,118 12,99 79,599 15451 139,089 B9 233055
4897374 571,550 274,275 622,693 109,027 146,796 15,451 330,892 6,968,058 6,899,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TMITH-&|
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) BEEEEEEEREE -&
— continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued A Y G IEY N Sl
Carrying
Repayable  Repayable amount at
Repayable between between  Repayable  Repayable Total  the end of
Repayable in less than 1to3 3 months between between undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months tolyear lto2years  2to5years Undated cash flows period

AR
AR -fRZ AR AR A RER

ik -BA =zEAR ZzfiAE -£Z REE RENE MEEHE

EREE  ARE EE -FAEE AEAME EEAME  EAA B8 REE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK§000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000
Tién T T T T T T Tién Tién

At31 March 2017 R-2-t§=R=1-8
Gross accounts receivable EIERAH 2,924,120 94,577 - - - - - 3018697 3,017,876
Less: impairment allowance W BERAE (17,329) - - - - - - (1739) (1739
Net accounts receivable IR 2,906,791 94,577 - - - - - 3,001,368 3,000,547
Bank balance - general accounts and cash Bish-—MEFREE 784,390 271,716 13,379 - - - - 1,069,485 1,069,341
Bank balance - client accounts RhEB-EFRF 53,059 596,171 - - - - - 649,226 649,170
Loans and advances HRR#H -0 19480 26400 5744 - - 663753 636,578
Deposits and other receivables Hes R BAGR 17,627 - - - - - - 17,627 17,627
Financial assets held for trading HRERZARGE - - - - - - 206,814 206,814 206,814
Financial assets designated at fair KERRARERES

value through profi or loss HReBEE - - - 62760 486,000 - - 548760 491729
Avilable-forsale investments i B - - 1,403 5,135 6,538 52981 64,806 130863 101,620

3,761,803 1,234,573 174,262 294315 498,282 52,981 271,620 6,287,896 6,173,426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following presents the assets and liabilities
measured at fair value or required to disclose their
fair value in these financial statements on a recurring
basis across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, with
the fair value measurement categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement. The levels of inputs are defined as

follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement

date;
e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly;

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TRMTH-
(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - continued (0 DABEFE-&
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) BARBIEZEHEE
Correlation between
Significant significant unobservable
Fair value as at Fair value unobservable inputs and fair value
31 March hierarchy  Valuation techniques inputs EZMELERL
Financial assets R=B=t-H and key inputs EEMELRE BABBHEAREZ
tREE AR MEER HERARIEZRARE ZBAHE HEBR
2018 2017
-N\F |23t
HK$’000 HK$000
TR Tk
Available-for-sale
investments
TRAERE
— Listed debt securities 123,307 101,620 Level 2 Quoted prices from brokers N/A N/A
- LifH#E % CI B e | TER RER
- Unlisted equity securities 109,748 - Level2 Net asset value N/A N/A
- LA B Kl TER TER
Financial assets
held for trading
KEEEZEHEE
- Listed equity securities 191,853 200,814 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market N/A N/A
- LA %R i RS R TER Nl
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
EERRLAER
BREIZSREE
- Convertible notes 19,692 23424 Level3 Discounted cash flow method Discount rate of Discount rate increases/decreases
and binomial tree model, 11.47% by 5% (2017: 5%), fair value
based on spot price, (2017: 14.75%) would decrease/increase by
volatility and discount rate approximately HK$8,000,000/
HK$10,000,000.
(2017: HKSnil/HKSnil)
~ TR #=J8 WHASREERARBR  BERBL4%  WHEELA/ THs%
BEREREER HER  (Z3-tE: Z?*tﬁ‘ﬁ% AE
kS 14.75%) Hoh/ 88,000,000 12
/10,000,000 (“F—t
F: R/ Fhn)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-&
(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - continued (0 DABEFE-&
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) BARBIEZEHEE
— continued -
Correlation between
Significant significant unobservable
Fair value s at Fair value unobservable inputs and fair value
31 March hierarchy  Valuation techniques inputs EEMELERL
Financial assets RZA=t+-H and key inputs EEMELEE WARBENAEZ
tREE ZARE MEER HERRRIEZRARE 2B HE HEBR
2018 2017
IE-NE | ZE-tE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR T
— Unlisted debt securities 449,694 468,305 Level 3 Discounted cash flow method Discount rate of ~ Discount rate increases/decreases
(subject to carly and binomial tree model 11.85% by 5% (2017: 5%), fair value
redemption) based on spot price, (2017:7-18%)  wwould decreaselincrease by
volatility and discount rate approximately HK$1,658,000/
HKS$1,643,000
(2017: approximately
HK$1,098,000/HKS1,104,000)
— 7 LT E %ZE MR EE R AR BRRRILS%  WHEELA/ TH
([ {RHI ) BRREHEER (ZB-t&:  (ZZ-tFsw) AR
L3R 7-18%) [ / 1,658,000
/1,643,000 (~%F
—L 41,008,000 1T
/1,104,000 7T)
There were neither transfers between Level 1 and RERE_F - NFR_E
Level 2 fair value measurement nor transfers into —tE=A=+—HIL4
and out of Level 3 fair value measurement during o B —ERE A RE
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. TR W e > HO2R 3

I8 SUfERHE D A S,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - continued

@)

(ii)

£RTH-
() AREHE-H&

Financial assets measured at fair value (i) BAREGTEZZHMEE
— continued -
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements GREES Z A REF '
of financial assets Z B

HK$°000

Tt

At 1 April 2016 I FE—REMHA—H 10,076
Purchases i 492,700
Disposals e (25,800)
Realised gain in profit or loss MR 2 BB Bk 2,600
Fair value gains in profit or loss AR = E A/ I W= R 12,153
At 31 March 2017 RE-F—tHF=A=+—H 491,729
Purchases i 61,895
Disposals & (71,895)
Realised loss in profit or loss R4 2 O E B 1R (44)
Fair value losses in profit or loss JiISE =B /NI F =] (12,299)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZZ2-NF=A=+-—H 469,386

The unrealised losses of HK$12,299,000 (2017:
unrealised gains of HK$12,153,000) for Level
3 investments held at the reporting date are
reported in “other gains and losses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial liabilities not

measured at fair value

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.

(ii)

RS H RS SRR A
2 REHE1E12,299,0007 7T
(2% —b4F R H Bk
12,153,000%% J0) WA 48 & H 4%
T Al A T i 25 2 R T He At il
o MRS 4R JTE N 2R -

WHBEAAEFTEZETHE
ERTHAER

A A A B R R AR G
B R B A B R 2
il A T B 2 MR T
SLA B 2 0 SR AR A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject

to offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below
include financial assets and financial liabilities
that are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers

similar financial instruments that are either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement

of financial position; or

* not offset in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as the

offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net
settlement made between the Group and Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
(“HKSCC”) and a broker, the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and a broker
on the same settlement date and the Group

intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the accounts receivable and
payable with its retail customers in the Group’s
brokerage business (the “brokerage clients”)
that are due to be settled on the same date with
reference to the settlement method set by the
HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these

balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled
on the same date which are being offset, amounts
due from/to HKSCC, a broker and the brokerage
clients that are not to be settled on the same date,
financial collateral including cash and securities
received by the Group and deposits placed with
HKSCC and a broker do not meet the criteria
for offsetting in the consolidated statement of
financial position since the right of set-off of the
recognised amounts is only enforceable following

an event of default.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject

to offsetting — continued

6. TRITH-

(0 DREFE-&
(i) EHEEHSHE B IEH

n

Gross amounts
of recognised  Net amounts of
financial ~financial assets
liabilities presented in
set off in the the Related amount not offset
Gross amounts  consolidated  consolidated in the consolidated statement
of recognised statement statement of financial position
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impaired position position  instruments received  Net amount
HEE  RERRME
BER RARE#He RESHE TERGEHBRRRD
tHEE CEHER MRREIZ BHERSE
an BEAE CREEFE $RIE EHERD 8
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThR TER TR TiEn THR ThR
At31 March 2018 R=%
Accounts receivable arising L B(E;ﬁ
from the business dealing in £Kh
securities and future contracts 4,292,929 (174,880) 4,118,049 (1,009) (4,088,949) 28,091
Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets  Net amounts of

At 31 March 2017

Accounts receivable arising A RS
from the business dealing in EHHEE

securities and future contracts

set off in the
consolidated

Gross amounts statement
of recognised of financial
financial assets position
after impaired
Bk RN

B MRFEEHZ

SHEE TR

AR RE4E
HKS000  HKS'000
T T
356,31 (195,685)

financial assets
presented in
the consolidated
statement

of financial
position

&R B
& 212
SHEERE

HK$ 000
T

3,000,547

Related amount not offset
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

Financial Collateral
instruments received Net amount
GRERE AR HRRET
inibail
SRTIE  BlRERY i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fibx Fibx
(4,328) (2,915,915) 80,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject

6. EWTH-&
(0 AAETE-E&
(iii) THEEHTHEBZHH

to offsetting — continued _iE
Net amounts
Gross amounts of financial
of recognised liabilities
financial assets  presented in
set off in the the Related amount not offset
Gross amounts  consolidated  consolidated in the consolidated statement
of recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
RGEHE
RRREHZ REEHE TERGRNBRRED
BRR  CRIER HRREdZ ik ] x
SHEELEE BENE CRAEFE $RIE CHEAERY #H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TiEn Tin Tin TiEn TER TEn
At 31 March 2018 R=B-NEZB=+-H
Accounts payable arising A RMERE A
from the business of dealing in BRI
securities and futures contracts (657,344) 174,880 (482,464) 1,009 - (481,455)
Gross amounts
of recognised Nt amounts
financial of financial
assets liabilities
setoff in the  presented in the Related amount not offset
Gross amounts  consolidated ~ consolidated in the consolidated statement
of recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged  Net amount
RERIH
RAZEEZ  REAME GREREABHRA RS
CHER  CHRER RUEENZ inibail
sHARLR REAE SRAfREH ERIA  CHMERY A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At31 March 2017 Rog-tE=f=+-f
Accounts payable arising from the BERIMEREAY
business of dealing in SRR MR
securities and futures contracts (878,469) 155,685 (722,780) 4318 = (718,452)

The amounts which have been offset against the

related recognised financial assets and financial

liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position are measured on the same basis as

the recognised financial assets and financial liabilities,

which is amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

7. REVENUE 7. W
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT TH T
Brokerage commission A i 66,896 49,876
Underwriting and placing commission 85 K e 5 A 4 22,484 43,520
Proof of funds commission 4 e A AR 4 3,600 12,680
Other commission ,ﬂ‘:ﬁﬁ 14 257 12
Interest income from loans and receivables B R B K I 2 R R A
— clients —-%F 436,869 377,502
— financial institutions — G 1,386 1,495
— clearing house — &5 4 2
Interest income from financial assets 6 78 By 4% o FOAE R 18 45 e 3R
designated at fair value through profit or loss 2 4 il % & 2 Il S U A
— convertible notes — n] $ i 22 4% 2,083 4,369
— unlisted debt securities — Ik LT E R R 32,807 9,148
Interest income from available A fit B R 2 R A
-for-sale investments
— debt securities —[E BB 6,584 5,518
Clearing and handling fee income G N TR A 2,525 6,203
Advisory fee income R R 2 A 1,360 1,825
Management fee Y 21 94
Property rental income WM IR A 7,964 1,356
584,840 513,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into five operating
divisions, namely broking, securities margin financing,
money lending, corporate finance and investments. These
divisions are the basis on which board of directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
reviews the operating results and financial information. The
principal activities of these divisions are as follows:

TEHEHR

A A5 9 B 23 A 7 A o R AR
A R IR M R
HoURBE - ZEMMRARFE
FE (B E R E R ) o B AC 8 2
BB Bk 2 HEE o B ER 2 E
TRBME

Broking —

g

Securities margin financing -

PR a8 < i E -

Money lending -

Provision of stockbroking, futures and options broking and

underwriting and placements

PRI A ARRAS ~ W8 S IR RS AR DL B £ 81 B i B

Provision of securities margin financing

YRS I R A5

Provision of mortgage and consumer loans

Holding of investment properties and financial inscruments

THAR — R R B R

Corporate finance — Provision of corporate advisory services
€ & — SR SR s

Investments -

B - FPHBEYERERM TR

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources
between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain prepaid lease payments and property
and equipment, club memberships, goodwill, certain
other assets, certain prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, certain bank balances, certain tax
recoverable and deferred tax assets.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain accrued charges and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, bank
borrowings, certain tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and liabilities component of convertible bonds issued
by a listed subsidiary.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain amortisation and depreciation,
certain finance costs, certain staff costs and certain
other expenses incurred for strategic planning by the
Group.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment information about these divisions is presented

below.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2018

DERE R - &
WA I 2 5 3 RER R B A0 T o

2R EE

LATR 7 35 780 7 ol SRR o i e i 2
A P i g e SERI 0 BT

BE=-ZFE-NFZA=+—HULFE

Securities
margin Money  Corporate

Broking  financing lending finance Investments Consolidated

BHERE
gL THE HE LX@E RE )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER TER FER
Segment revenue pEitien 97,218 334,806 101,981 1,397 49,438 584,840
Segment result YIRIE S 64,889 334,806 99,329 1,369 29,813 530,206
Unallocated corporate expenses 7+l > 3 % ] (19,133)
Unallocated finance costs RO E WA (57,709)
Profit before taxation 4 Al i 453,364
Year ended 31 March 2017 #HE_F—LFEZH =1 —HILFE

Securities

margin Money ~ Corporate

Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
g EME WE  hEEE #E ge
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TE T Ter  FEr Fhe FEE
Segment revenue inlE 113,896 284,975 92,491 1,847 20,391 513,600
Segment result HESR 55,110 284,895 90,362 1,697 98,621 530,685
Unallocated corporate expenses A7 Bl f £ % H (42,108)
Profit before taxation BT it A1 488,577
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. PHER -E&
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and PAR 2 3570 T ity Mo A8 ‘%’ﬁjﬁﬁf
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. A G E KA ]J\*
At 31 March 2018 R-FE-NE=ZF=+—H
Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking ﬁna.ncu;é lending finance Investments Consolidated
_ #ER s .
Fgs) tRE BE LEmE k& BE
HK$000  HKS000 HKS000 HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TET TExT TExT TExT TExT TExT
Segment assets HEE 376,330 4,371,825 1,030,107 8,566 1,858,430 7,645,258
Unallocated assets (note i) FOEEE (k) 191,886
Consolidated assets GREE 7,837,144
Segment liabilities IR E 179,064 315,238 904 - 53,760 548,966
Unallocated liabilities (note ii) KAEEGE (ki) 606,637
Consolidated liabilities ARG 1,155,603
At 31 March 2017 BBt H = —H
Securities
margin Money ~ Corporate
Broking Lﬁnancigé lending finance  Investments Consolidated
875 it ‘ o ‘ \
) SHE WE  GERE HE kel
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T THT
Segment assets B E 881,759 3315860 727,485 8,426 1375907 6,309,437
Unallocated assets (note i) ROEEE (k) 533,906
Consolidated assets GAHERE 6,843,343
Segment liabilities 71 i £ 15 487,600 256,923 7,472 - 5,073 757,068
Unallocated liabilities (note ii) A4 il & & (Jff Lii) 197,900
Consolidated liabilities AR 954,968
Notes: M -
(i) The balance comprises bank balances of HK$55,438,000 (i) ﬁ%ﬁzﬁ 5 SR AT &5 755,438,000
(2017: HK$390,606,000). JC (—F—-E4 : 390,606,000457T) °
(i) The balance includes amounts due to non-controlling i) HH %ﬁ%@f T RIE PE B B R 3K
shareholders amounting to HK$52,684,000 (2017: 52,684,0003% 7C (—F—-L4F : 52, 684000
HK$52,684,000) and liability component of convertible W os) M b T JE A\ A AT 2 A] ik
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary of HK$350,840,000 5z AfE %[525350 840,000%5 76 (&
(2017: HK$nil). —t4E T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\F=A=1+—HIFE

Year ended 31 March 2018

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

2018

Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or
segment asscts:

Additions of property and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payment, and depreciation of
property and equipment

Additions of investment properties

Net recognition of impairment loss
on loans and advances

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Fair value gains on investment
properties

Fair value losses on financial assets
- held for trading
- designated at fair value

through profit or loss

Interest income (including revenue
and other operating income)

Finance cost

Commission expenses

At B R M B

HEEFAZHE

VEY T FaN
B AT & 5082 B8 R
VELE L PEL

REWEZRE

EEVEtva f:l4
2T R

th 2 7 2

BEWEZ ARG

EMEELARHER
~FFEE
~HEREARER

R

HERA (EHRAR
DN

ME A

LEAD

Broking

HEK$000
THR

513

1,109

20,000

3

1 )436
1,311
15,304

Securities
margin
financing
RRE
THE
HK$000
TR

334,806

8. DEHEHR -

]

ZE-NEF
Money  Corporate
lending finance  Investments  Unallocated ~ Consolidated

HE  LERE

R& KR &8

HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TER
- - - 7 520

- - 191 6,457 7,757

- -y - By
1,099 - - - 1,099
- - - - 20,000

- - 40,606 - 40,606

- - 46,174 - 46,209

- - 12,299 - 12,299
101,981 37 41,474 369 480,103
- - - 57,709 59,020

- - - - 15,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TE-N\F=A=1+—HIFE

Year ended 31 March 2018

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

2017

Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or
segment asscs:

Additions of property and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payment, and depreciation
of property and equipment
Additions of investment properties
Net recognition of impairment loss
on loans and advances
Gains on disposal of property
and equipment
Fair value gains on investment
properties
Fair value gains on financial assets
- held for trading
- designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest income (including revenue
and other operating income)
Finance cost

Commission expenses

it B R M B R A
NIRRT AZE:

WERSEHRE
H AT &SRz B4 R
VEErE

BEWEZRE
LEVEt v
REERZ DR
4 % s 2 e

BEmEZ LA
SREEZ MM

~HEEE

~HEABARER
Bamka

FLEMA (BB R

BHELA)

RERA

iE4iB3

Broking
&y

HKS 000
Tk

2,840

958

1,511
5,880
14,381

Securities
margin
financing
# R
SHE
HKS$'000
T

284,975

8. DEHEN-&

Hitn EHER
S

Money Corporate
lending finance  Investments
K LERE 74
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
i T T
- - 102
- - 120
- - 379,750
1,612 - -
- - 64,270
- - 9,927
- - 12,153
92,491 22 19,035

Unallocated

KR
HKS 000
T#x

344

6,714

2,292
20

Consolidated

b
T

3,280
7,792
379,750
1,012

5
04,270
9,983
12,153
400,326

5,900
14,381
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. AWMEH -
Geographical information & & B
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the AL EBARF W R EE (T
United Kingdom (2017: Hong Kong). —L4E  Fil)
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s RS e SRS N AR B e
revenue from external customers by geographical market: SRR P Z WL 48 2 5 b
Revenue by
geographical market
RENHE 5 2 WaE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F| “EF L
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T#C
Hong Kong i 578,436 513,600
United Kingdom e 6,404 -
584,840 513,600
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of PLTF £ 4 6 B AE i) 7 2 JF i B
non-current assets by geographical area in which the assets FE 2 MR (B 22 73 T

are located:

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FRBEEZREE
2018 2017
= g - }-\ ﬂE — 2‘ /{: EF‘
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THs T
Hong Kong s 704,477 666,993
United Kingdom P 230,943 -
935,420 666,993
The non-current asset information above excludes financial PR EEE 2 R ARG T
instruments and deferred tax assets. H G EIER TEE E -
Information about major customers EBETXTERXF2ER
During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there WEE - FE - NER - —-LE=H
were no customers contributing 10% or more of the =t+—HIL4ERF > FmEE P E LA E
Group’s total revenue. A £510%EE DA =2 B R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. HtEERA
2018 2017
=F-NF| ZEFtF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTERT TH T
Bank interest income SRAT AL E M A 370 2,292
Sundry income HAth e A 4,696 4,973
5,066 7,265
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Htb s K B 18
2018 2017
—E-NFE| —“Z—LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET T#s T
Fair value changes on investment properties BEWMEZ N AREEE)
(note 19) (Kff5E19) 40,606 64,270
Net recognition of impairment loss on loans B3 M # K 2 W (H M5 18 2
and advances (note 24) T RE T A (M 5E24) (1,099) (1,612)
Net realised losses on error trades S ERHATAC By 2 O B 1R
TF# (60) (35)
Fair value changes on financial assets BREEZ N EEE
— held for trading —fFEEE (46,209) 9,983
— designated at fair value through profit or loss  —%§ & 2%/ FUAE R
18 48 e 3 (12,299) 12,153
Realised gains (losses) on disposal of financial assets HESMEEZD
HBL i (E518)
— held for trading —FHEEE (1,495) (10,209)
— designated at fair value through profit or loss —J8 7 By s SRR
{H i R (44) 2,600
— available-for-sale investments — ] it R 2,749 100
Net exchange gains B 52 g 4 T 2,112 569
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 8 4 3 K 5% 2 I #5 - 5
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) e I S F 22 I AR
(B 5E43) 20,000 -
Others HoAth - 2
4,261 77,826

Included above are losses from listed investments
of approximately HK$46,352,000 (2017: losses of
HK$126,000) and losses from unlisted investments
of approximately HK$12,343,000 (2017: gains of
HK$14,753,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

11.

12.

13.

STAFF COSTS 11. ET A
2018 2017
—E-N\F = e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Staff costs including directors” emoluments: B T A (645 3E M 4)
Salaries and other benefits B 4 K HoAh A7 ) 20,395 20,484
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B ORAE A 5 ) 4t 835 857
21,230 21,341
FINANCE COSTS 12. B & B A
2018 2017
—E-NFE| —“Z—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Interest on bank borrowings PRAT 5 B 2 FILE 1,165 5,759
Interest on clients” accounts EERF 2 F B 146 141
Interest on convertible bonds issued TR A R EE T 2
by a listed subsidiary A R 2 2 FLE 57,709 -
59,020 5,900
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. Bt Al Al
This is stated after charging (crediting): B EFnBR (FFA) T A4
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E L4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Auditor’s remuneration % B Rl B 4 2,750 3,444
Listing expenses relating to spin off 7B Pr— B E A 7l 2
of a subsidiary il — 21,647
Recognition of impairment loss on B MBHZ BEEBRZ
loans and advances, net (note 24) il g Al (B 524) 1,099 1,612
Operating lease rentals in respect HEY¥EZ REHHHE
of rented premises 1,669 1,580
Direct operating expenses relating to BEAMERAZRE
investment properties that generated WA R BHREE
rental income B % 269 269
Direct operating expenses relating to BiL 7 4 2 A FH A Z
investment properties that did not BEY AR H#%
generate rental income Z8 4% B 1,622 1,212
Rental income from investment properties BEY M BRA (7,964) (1,356)
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 8 ¥ 2 K 54 2 s — (5)
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

(2017: ten) directors were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2018

14. EERTHRARKEEMN

(@ EERITHARNS :
effe M2 (ZF -t +

Z)EEFAZMEWT

BE-—ZE-\E=ZA=+—HLEE

Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
g% fings
M. Ms. Mr. M. M.
ChamWai ~ Mr.Kam  TangNga ~ Man Kong Sun Ka SiuHi  Mr Hung
Ho, Anthony ~ Leung Ming ~ Yan, Grace Yui Ziang, Henry  Lam,Alick  Hon Man Total
BRELE HANLE BEF2E XWHAE ERBRE BERAE MEUEE an
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
TiEn TiEn TiEn THER TiEn THER TiEn ThER
(note v) (note iv) (note ii)
(W) (W) (&)
Fees e - - - 93 93 93 - 79
Other emoluments: L2
— Salaries and other — %% JOLH AR ()
benefits (Note i) 330 350 25 - - - 152 857
- Contributions to - BRI AL
retirement benefit
schemes 18 17 1 - - - 9 45
- Performance and - KB LWL
discretionary bonus (W)
(Note viii) 41 47 - - - - 19 107
- Commission -z - - - - - - - -
Total emoluments ams 389 414 26 93 93 93 180 1,288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—NESA=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

n

14. EERTHABREENE

— continued
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration — @ BEBERTHAZNS - &
continued

Year ended 31 March 2017 BE X tbFE=H=t+-HILFE

Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
g2 fings
Mt
Mr.Cham  MrShum  Mr.Kam  Ms Tang Mr. Mr. Sun Ka Mr. i M. M.
Wai Ho, Kin Wai, Leng ~ NoaYan, Lung Man Tiang, Hi Lam, Hung Hung
Anthony ~ Frankie Ming Grae  Honlui  KongYui Henry Alik ~ HonMan  SuiKwan Toul
BREEE SERRE HRWR: BERLL EERRE UHHAE BRER: EEEAY MENEE AEERE a8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tt Thx T T T Thx T T TR T TEx
(note vi) (note v) (note iv) (note vii) (note i) (note ii)
(ki) W (R (K (ki) (ki
Fes e - - - - - ) ) ) - - 28
Other emoluments: LMz
~ Salaries and other benefits -H4 REMER (k)
(Notei) 316 - - 295 - - - - 146 - 7
~ Contributions to retirement ~ IR IR
benefit schemes 16 - - 15 - - - - 8 - 3
- Performance and discreionary — ~ %R RIVHRTEAL (i)
bonus (Note vii) 3 - - 3 - - - - 18 - 88
- Commission -4 - - - - - - - - - - -

Toral emoluments Filik il - - 341 - 6 8 8 17 - 1142

Notes: Rt 5

(i)  The balances shown above for executive directors, () FAIEBATE S (RIS se A -
namely Mr. Hung Hon Man, Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, O EE e~ H e B e A JOBRE T %
Kam Leung Ming and Ms. Tang Nga Yan, Grace B &5 B T W RACETEE AL
were mainly for their services in connection with the B A B T 2 5 T AR AL 2 IR S
management at the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

(i) Mr. Hung Hon Man was appointed as the Chief (i) dEEEAE R F—NFENAEH
Executive Officer on 7 April 2016. METAT BATBREH -

(iii) Mr. Hung Sui Kwan resigned as an executive director (i) dtEmiHeAE R —F—NENH EH
of the Company and the Chief Executive Officer on 7 f%# AN AT 3 S AT B o
April 2016.

(iv) Ms. Tang Nga Yan, Grace was appointed as an (v) BT Lt —F— N4FWH L H

executive director of the Company on 7 April 2016 and

resigned on 28 April 2017.

BERERARNFRRITES R —F
—tFMA =+ /\ HEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
— continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration —

continued

Notes: — continued

(v)  Mr. Kam Leung Ming was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 28 April 2017.

(vi) Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie resigned as an executive
director of the Company on 7 April 2016.

(vii) Mr. Lung Hon Lui resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 1 March 2017.

(viii) Performance and discretionary bonus is determined
with regard to the Group’s operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

Mr. Hung Hon Man is also the director of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the director of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.
In addition, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office for the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
— continued
(b) Employees’ remuneration:
The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included zero (2017: zero) directors of the Company.

Details of their emoluments are included above.

The emoluments of the five (2017: five) highest paid

individuals for the years are set out as follows:

14. EERTHRARKEEMN =

n

b EEME
A 45 B A v B8 BN &
B (ZF —B4F - FA47) AL
> HHE R RO B3

FAL (AR A7) B
GIPNS Wi Xl et (T N

2018 2017

—E-N\F =

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT T

Salaries and other emoluments 4 N HoAh N 4 6,383 7,378

Discretionary bonus 19 15 1€ AL 194 143
Contribution to retirement B AR A ) AL Kk

benefits schemes 54 36

6,631 7,557

The emoluments of the individuals are within the

following bands:

B 4F 2 &7 DU T i

Number of employees
EE#E
2018 2017
—E-N\E —F L4

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 JC £ 1,000,000 JC 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %% JC %21,500,000%% 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 4% JC £ 2,000,000 7C 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % JC £2,500,000 JC - 1

BE-_F - NEN_FT—LHE=H

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including director of the
Company and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

—t+—HIIEFE - ZM% l%ljt,ﬂémﬂu
o AR 0N - (LIS A A R H#E S
18 B) SCAHE AT i 4 > 5 2 i 25 fin B A
$ W 2 WS AR S > 8UE B BBk
HitE 4% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

15. TAXATION
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of

16.5% on the Group’s estimated assessable profits arising

15. 18

FHNEBIHEE T EL
E—-tLHE=ZHA=+—HILFEE 247
JE SR AL U5 F LA16.5% R 5 -

from Hong Kong for the years ended 31 March 2018 and

2017.
2018 2017
=F-N\F| % tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T
Current tax B HA % 18]
Hong Kong Profits Tax i A A B 80,916 72,620
(Over) Under provision in prior years DLAE AR BE GRS ) B
A e (639) 545
80,277 73,165
Deferred tax i SE B IR
Origination and reversal of temporary T IRy 25 E AR R B 438 ]
differences 87 126
Income tax expense EEE 80,364 73,291
Reconciliation of income tax expense eI 2YER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E L4
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#T
Profit before taxation A0 g A 453,364 488,577
Income tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% %% FI i ¥ 16.5% (—=F—+L
(2017: 16.5%) - 016.5%) w5 Z BTGBl 74,805 80,615
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AN AR SE 2 BB
for tax purpose 23,113 5,513
Tax effect of income not taxable R IERRBL A 2 B 5 2
for tax purpose (19,577) (17,561)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised oK ke L JEL s 18 2 B B 2,444 4,046
(Over) Under provision in prior years DU AR B GRR E 34
A2 (639) 545
Others HAt 218 133
Income tax expense for the year A A JEE B 458 B 32 80,364 73,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

16. DIVIDENDS 16. IR 5
2018 2017
—F-N\F | ZZF—4F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#T
Special interim dividend by way of 553 4% — R B JBg 2 m) 28 57
distribution of shares in a subsidiary in b DA W 00 TR 5% Y B
respect of its spin-off and separate listing a2 7 R EE 2
5 8 IS - 128,171
Final dividend for prior financial year, oAy EMBUFEEZ
paid — HK 1 cent (2017: HK 1 cent) per share A< £ 5 — & BE 15 {1l
(B4R 1l 80,523 80,523
Interim dividend for current financial year, EA o A BB 2
paid — HK 1 cent (2017: HK 1 cent) per share A R — B s A
(& — B4 1Al 96,627 80,523
177,150 289,217
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March BE T NF=H é—f—# H k4R
2018 of HK 1 cent (2017: HK 1 cent) per share, amounting AR By B s Al (B4
to approximately HK$96,627,000 (2017: HK$80,523,000) L AID > HL R £596,627,0009 T8 (=
% — L4+ 80,523,000% 0) > ML H A

has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to the approval by the owners of the Company in

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

N E S R N - ZN/NETE 7 E]
AHAEVEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

17. IR B F
AR B A 2 ) PR HE R 1 3 R S 4

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on

profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company

908 1% o M ST 249 i A ) 2 A

and the weighted average number ordinary shares in issue ABFZFHENEMT
during the year as follows:
Earnings g
2018 2017
—E-N\F| “F -+t
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT TH T
Earnings for the purpose of basic FA st A A
earnings per share B 2 i A
Profit for the year attributable to AL A ERERR AN
equity shareholders of the Company JEE A 4 79 Vi ) 297,143 341,945
Number of shares BRBEHAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F LA
’000 ’000
TR T
Weighted average number of TR &t A B A
ordinary shares, for the purpose B R 2 ke
of basic earnings per share - 4 35 7 i B H 8,903,809 7,497,055

For the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no diluted

earnings per share was presented because there were no

potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND 18. ANHERBURMER RSB
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Prepaid lease
ments Property and equipment
BhaRHA WEREE
Motor
Leasehold Leasehold vehicles and Office Furniture
land Buildingf imérov‘egnents yacht eqtu ment and fixtures Total
HELH ? HENEEH mﬁﬁﬁﬂ FEREE At
HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0 HKS 0@ HKSOD  HKS000
T T T T T T T
Cost or Valuation ﬁﬂiﬁmﬁﬁ
Ac 1 April 2016 F-nEMA-H 103,780 35,882 2,204 26,696 12,512 784 181,878
Additions E - - 470 2,392 358 66 3,286
Adjustment on revaluation imﬁ?& - (252) - - - - (252)
Disposals & - - - (560) - - (560)
At31 March 2017 RZF—L%
“A=tH 103,780 35,630 2,694 28,528 12,870 850 184,352
Comprising: uf:
At cost AR 103,780 - 2,694 28,528 12,870 850 148,722
At valuation A - 35,630 - - - - 35,630
103,780 35,630 2,694 28,528 12,870 850 184,352
Additions e - - 286 - 221 13 520
Adjustment on revaluation B AE - 24 - - - - 24
Disposal of subsidiaries HETE A - - (1,880) - (7,290) (757) (9,927)
At 31 March 2018 BoE— N
=H=1-H 103,780 35,844 1,100 28,528 5,801 106 175,159
Comprising: f5
At cost AR 103,780 - 1,100 28,528 5,801 106 139,315
At valuation 4 - 35,844 - - - - 35,844
103,780 35,844 1,100 28,528 5,801 106 175,159
Accumulated depreciation 2 FEREE
and impairment
Ac T April 2016 RoZ—~ENA-A 7,149 - 1,647 14,924 10,443 733 54,896
Charges Bl 2450 626 2 3,648 752 i 7,792
Eliminated on revaluation T LS - (626) = = = = (626)
Disposals hE - - - (560) - - (560)
At 31 March 2017 RoF—LE
“H=T-H 29,599 - 1,936 18,012 11,195 760 61,502
Charges Bl 2451 628 43 3,606 622 7 7,757
Eliminated on revaluation Eﬁﬂﬂ&fﬁ - (628) - - - - (628)
Disposal of subsidiaries T B/ = = (1,880) = (7,290) (757) (9,927)
Ac31 March 2018 RZE—N\E
=A=+-H 32,050 - 479 21,618 4507 30 58,704
Net carryinE values REE
At31 March 2018 RZB-N\E
ZhA=t-H 71,730 35,844 621 6910 1,274 76 116,455
At31 March 2017 RZF—L%
=R=+-H 74,181 35,630 758 10,516 1,675 90 122,850
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Year ended 31 March 2018

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND 18. ANHEHEREBEURMERRE

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

The buildings of the Group were valued at 31 March 2018
and 2017 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”) on
an open market value basis. RHL is not connected with
the Group, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the

relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest and

best use of buildings is the current use.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period,
the management of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair
value measurement. The management of the Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
buildings is the unit sale rate ranging from approximately
HK$6,000 per square foot to HK$29,000 per square
foot (2017: approximately HK$5,000 per square foot to
HK$25,000 per square foot), taking into account age,
location and other individual factors such as size and levels
of building. A decrease in the unit sale rate would result in
decrease in fair value measurement of the buildings by the

same percentage decrease and vice versa.
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- &
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R A > R RIS KPR E B A I RT
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(2 DR MS o 855 21 Wi AR 8 1 Iy
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S A BE R BA B (N TR
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(ZF—L4  Z8T FHW5,0009 02
FFJ5IR25,000%0T) ) - F R E S
B~ 0 R A AR PR (n B R/
FIMERG) o B8 6 A T M E i 5
20N SUAE T B HAR R B 43 B R T R
B> RZIRER ©



R R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

18.

19.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2018 and 2017. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would have
been included in these consolidated financial statements
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses of HK$17,012,000 (2017:
HK$17,616,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasechold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledges are set out in note 41

to the consolidated financial statements.

18.

RNEEREURYNERRE

- &

W _EF—NFEK _F—LHF =H
=t —H  MTEELSEAEN REEE
3 EMEE - ER-E L
FZHA = IR EER S N e
o A3 E o

5 5 B S AE EAG > BB R
SO A W R R T &R EFIE E
5 2017,012,000% 0 (—F — L 4F -
17,616,000%570) 745 & W £ 51 ik -

AL AR B T AL i S
THEA > AF A 45 F 1 42 4R A T*E:%E
AR o A BR K R BN AR
A S R Wt aE41

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REW =
2018 2017
ZE-N\F| “F-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Fair Value DNRE
At the beginning of the reporting period A A5 B ) 513,670 69,650
Addition N 224,460 379,750
Addition — Capital expenditure WE-EARMX 9,337 -
Net change in fair value recognised in AR A TERR 2 N Ao 5 )
profit or loss V%A 40,606 64,270
At the end of the reporting period A i B R 788,073 513,670
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

19- *ﬁﬁ%% - IIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F| —“F-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAR Tt
Located in: A

Hong Kong (note a) i (H5Ea) 557,130 513,670
The United Kingdom (note b) s (B EED) 230,943 -
788,073 513,670
2018 2017
—E-N\FE| —“F—-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T T

Unrealised gain on investment T A H A 0 7 e s 18 2
properties included in other gain and losses P& ERE BRI 40,606 64,270

(a) Investment properties located in Hong Kong

Investment properties located in Hong Kong with fair
value of HK$540,730,000 (2017: HK$499,670,000)
at 31 March 2018 was valued by RHL. RHL has
appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant location.
The valuation was arrived at by adopting the direct
comparison method based on price information of
comparable properties and adjusted to reflect the
condition and locations of the subject properties.

The valuation of other investment properties situated in
Hong Kong was performed by the directors of the Company
with reference to recent market prices for similar properties
at similar locations at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties located in Hong Kong is the unit
sale rate approximately HK$4,500 per square foot (2017:
HK$4,400 per square foot) for industrial buildings,
HK$17,000 per square foot (2017: HK$15,000 per
square foot) for residential buildings and ranging from
HK$10,000 to HK$52,000 per square foot (2017:
ranging from HK$9,000 to HK$49,000 per square
foot) for commercial building, taking into account age,
location and other individual factors such as size and
levels of building. An increase / decrease in the unit sale
rate would result in an increase / decrease in fair value
measurement of an investment property and vice versa.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

(@ NREBEBZREWE

MhEFEBZHEWER —F— N\
E=ZA=Z=+—HZARHEA
540,730,000% JC (& — L 4F :
499,670,000% 7C) > J4 B Ak A AT A
o AFNAT B A B 2 B KT
A B M BB 3 2 A (A B
A BRI ARE o] LUy 2 2 fE A%
T B AN B b 3 O A A
HE DL W) 2 2R S o

W E T — R F— L4
“H=Z+—HIEWEERE > A%
A E OS2 B 2 B
S 2 T B A 3 0
2 HAM Y TG

G A E R A b —IH 3
MBI A B R TERE 2
A7 85 85 18 49 51 77 W4, 50095 o0 (-
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FEERE 2 A EEL R T W
17,000 7 (=% — L4 : P
15,0009 76) K i 36K 2 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

(b) Investment properties located in the United

19- ?ﬁﬁ%% = IIE
(b) WREBZREWH

Kingdom

Investment properties in the United Kingdom,
which were acquired on 17 August 2017, were
valued by Savills (UK) Limited (“Savills”). Savills is
not connected with the Group, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
commercial units were valued by an income approach
method of valuation with reference to market rental

value.

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties located in the United Kingdom
are the market rent at a weighted average of £53.07
(equivalent to approximately HK$583) per square
foot and equivalent yield at 4% per annum. An
increase / decrease in the market rent and in turn an
increase / decrease in the equivalent yield would result
in an increase / decrease in fair value of an investment

property and vice versa.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties located in Hong Kong and
the United Kingdom, the management of the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the management of the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of each
reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurement. The
management of the Group will first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from
observable quoted prices in the active market. When
Level 2 inputs are not available, the management of
the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations

will be reported to the directors of the Company.

MREREZREYWEIR _-ZF
—tHENHA+T+EHWE JIH
Savills (UK) meed [ — KT 3
HEHT ) A FT o 55 — KT A By B
ztx%l%ljm&%’aﬁ 3l B A2
R K g T A B R R 2
Z AN KRB o A B SE AL TR
2% A A DAl TG A -

B4 B 2 G W EHEAT AL
(ERE RN 3P T3 N
P8 2 I RE V¥ A A A T
77 53,0795 85 (AH 5 i #5837
JC) B 5B AR IR 4 4% o i (B FH
itf’r/T A AF (E IR 48 R
EF TR ERREMEZ A
A BT R IRZIRER »

7 £ [ 1Y A HELRE AF R S G

T B4 1) R AR AT Al A 2 I 0 A
R e BibEie §7/E A}
{E o 55 1R o AN BT IR - AR SR
P A7 2L 5 = O 5 AR
P SRR SUTDECS<E7/E S
P g 1R S R - AR 4R R A
g BLANIE 5 A A TR AR S
YE > SR &I S2 K U 5E 8 G 19w Al
I7 8 B3 IE N FAE R A o
A4 Y T 5 R R
T2 MG A - BEA 2 I R
35 B B N BB AR - H2E
T AN T8 W > AR SR TR G
5B R P 645 7E 265 3 1 iy A 19 T
1?575“‘755‘ HEERN A REE R
S IR > 58 ) 119 5L IR 6 B BEE A
7%%
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

(b) Investment properties located in the United

19- *ﬁﬁ%% . IIE
(b) WRRBZREWH*-&

Kingdom — continued

Investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom are classified as Level 3 under fair
value hierarchy at 31 March 2018 and 2017. There
were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

All of the Group’s investment properties located in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

No investment properties were pledged at 31 March
2018 and 2017.
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BEEE

Trading
rights in
Hong Kong Club
exchanges memberships Total
ERXB
2R’ e aF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#IT T#T T#IT

Cost A

At 1 April 2016 B E =N —H 5,850 6,701 12,551
Addition VNNCR — 8 8
At 31 March 2017 R oE—-tHFE=ZHA=+—H 5,850 6,709 12,559
Disposal of subsidiaries HEE I N ) (FfEEE43)

(note 43) (3,678) - (3,678)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-NE=ZA=+—H 2,172 6,709 8,881
Impairment WA
At 1 April 2016 and 31 R F-RFENA—H K&

March 2017 E—LEZH=Z1—H 3,196 400 3,596
Disposal of subsidiaries B B A R (B E43)

(note 43) (3,125) - (3,125)
At 31 March 2018 R=ZZE—-NEF=A=+—H 71 400 471
Carrying value IREE
At 31 March 2018 R-ZBE-NE=ZA=+—H 2,101 6,309 8,410
At 31 March 2017 R _E—-tHFE=A=+—H 2,654 6,309 8,963
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Year ended 31 March 2018

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

21.

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to HK$500,000 (2017:
HK$1,053,000) were no longer utilised to generate profits
to the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing on
these trading rights, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on secondary market prices and no
impairment was made at 31 March 2018 and 2017. The
recoverable amounts of other trading rights with carrying
value of HK$1,601,000 (2017: HK$1,601,000) held by
the Group have been determined with reference to the
recoverable amounts based on a value-in-use calculation.
Details of the impairment test on other trading rights are set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets amounting to HK$6,309,000 (2017:
HK$6,309,000) represent club memberships. For the
purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on
the second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No
impairment loss was recognised in years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 with reference to the recoverable amount of
the club memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading
rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

20 B EE- &

ALE [ 2 B g R A A5 T £ $1500,000
W oT (& — L4 1 1,053,000 00) 2
2 5 HE TS BE DA Ay A 4R 1 E AR R
Fil o 7E ¥ 0645 38 5 RE A AT ek (E A B
> Hoal ikl &2 E AR~ Fiihm
EmEE - A F— /FERF—+L
EZA=Z+—H W EEE - A%
A B i H £51,601,00088 T (. F — &
411,601,000 70) 2 HoAth 32 5 HERY AT
Wl &% B2 % al il &4 > R
o PR A (B BT B kR e o HoAth 32 ) b
2 W E T 6 S B A S S R A R
22 4 EE o

5 #6,309,000% o0 (. F — L4 :
6,309,000% J0) 2 B & = f5 & fir &
ot eir ey WEmNmE - K
A ] <5 B TG AR R T T B AR A R
ERATMEE - 25 G a8z ik
Bl &FE > RHEF - NEEFE
—tEZH =+ H Ik E R
WAE 18 -

RN FIEEGR S > K o WG TR
FL A 48 PR 08 ) 473

GOODWILL 21. HE
Broking
HK$’000
FHET
Cost RRAS
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 WZFE—ARENH—H - ZF—Lt4H=H
and 31 March 2018 =t+—HE -F - NHFE=ZHA=+—H 15,441
Impairment IE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 R FEARENH—H - ZF—-LtHE=H
and 31 March 2018 =t+—HE=F—-NE=A=1+—H -
Carrying values SREE
At 31 March 2018 RZEBE-—NE=F=+—H 15,441
At 31 March 2017 W _E—LE=ZH=+—H 15,441

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill
are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights and goodwill with indefinite useful
lives set out in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements have been allocated to the broking CGU (see
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements for details of
segment information). The carrying amounts of goodwill,
net of accumulated impairment losses and certain trading
rights, net of accumulated impairment losses, at 31 March
2018 and 2017 allocated to the broking CGU are as

follows:

22. BEREMR S E 2R ERR

%kEA,m/\ﬂﬁm%i&%%MTu£20212lz:zf%:
B E AR A3 5 RE e R E 4

K840 5 2 Al BLE A ( ﬁ%/tﬁg
ﬂz#r% s wh 2 B A5 A IS T SR BT

o J1 it 7 5% AE AL AN BB A 2 A (41
%%ﬁm%%h Rt ¥ Gy e — %
—NFER_F—-LHF=H=1T—HK
HRTEE T -

(a) Goodwill @ ®E
Broking
HK$’000
AP
Carrying value at 1 April 2016, NEFE—RFENMA—H - ZF—+L4F
31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 =A==+t k=% /\fﬁ
“HA=+—HZEmHE 15,441
(b) Trading rights b) XRH#E
Carrying value at 1 April 2016, NE—RFENUA—H - ZF—+L4F
31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 “H=+t—H Kk Z=F—/\4F
—H=+—HZIEm®H 1,601

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
goodwill and certain trading rights have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2017: 12%) and at zero (2017: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to
fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU.

AEHERAE TS S B B

A 2 w] i (] 4 36 R 95 76 A (E 51
T T o RE RN R AR R A L R
ZHAEMBEE LA 12% (& — L4
12%) Z REBLR DA ST (& — L 4F
F) M ERETBH SR EEN - A
ZHWERBEREET AL Z EE2R
B0 TR R TIMRPE UAE 2 R KLE
B g 34 T 5 4 e 2 B BT R E o
JE MG AR Z AR & AT B2
S R U A BN B B 2 AR T
Wi 1] 4 4 K T 46 A BN B LA 2 A RTIR
T -
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Year ended 31 March 2018

23. OTHER ASSETS 23. HWEE

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

Hofth & 2 EBACKRN T AR5 B )
BT 235 E e H A o A B A
jﬁ*%‘t‘a%\ 4

24. LOANS AND ADVANCES 24. ERRBK

2018 2017

ZB-N\F| “EF-LF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THs T

Fixed-rate loan receivables TE ) R B 703,889 642,628
Less: allowances for impaired debts ICARRC RERE T 4] (7,149) (6,050)
696,740 636,578

Secured PEEiEil 148,671 75,141
Unsecured e I 548,069 561,437
696,740 636,578

Analysed as: T B

Current i) 550,353 630,971
Non-current JE i 146,387 5,607
696,740 636,578

At the end of the reporting period, loans and advances
with carrying amount of HK$140,472,000 (2017:
HK$75,141,000) are secured by first mortgage of
properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate fair value of
HK$359,110,000 (2017: HK$133,700,000); carrying
amount of HK$8,199,000 (2017: HK$115,800,000) are
covered by second mortgages of properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate fair value of HK$25,150,000 (2017:
HK$1,044,410,000). The fixed rate loan receivables carry
interest ranging from 8% to 24% (2017: 9% to 24%) per
annum. The outstanding balances are repayable on the

respective maturity date.

The Group determines the allowances for impaired debts
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts and management’s judgement, including
assessment of change of credit quality, collateral and the

collection history of each customer.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l

i i B3R > MR T (H 45 140,472,000
JC (=& — B4 ¢ 75,141,000 J5) Z
B 3K S BGER h 88 fe(H £5359,110,000
ot (ZF— L4 1 133,700,000% 7C)
ZEWYEZE — B AE LKA R
1] A £58,199,000% G (& — L 4 ¢
115,800,000 JT) 2 B3 S Bk A8
FeH £525,150,000% 76 (—F — L4 ¢
1,044,410,000%50) 2 HFik W2 56 —
T 5 1 By R 78 o [ 8 A1) 20 0 i B 3K %
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

24. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued 24, BERRBR-E

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 65%
(2017: 78%) of the total loans and advances are due
from the Group’s five largest borrowers. The balance
includes an aggregate amount of HK$458,000,000
(2017: HK$495,000,000) which is neither past due
nor impaired, of which the carrying amount of HK$nil
(2017: HK$55,000,000) is secured by a first mortgage of
a property in Hong Kong with an aggregate fair value of
HK$nil (2017: HK$95,000,000) and carrying amount of
HK$nil (2017: HK$100,000,000) is secured by a second
mortgage of a property in Hong Kong with an aggregate
fair value of HK$nil (2017: HK$1,000,000,000). The
remaining carrying amount of HK$458,000,000 (2017:
HK$340,000,000) represents unsecured loans with
personal or corporate guarantees. The management
closely monitors the credit quality of the loans and there
are no indications that the loan receivables neither past
due nor impaired will be uncollectible. The directors of
the Company believe that the allowances for impaired

debts are sufficient.

Aging analysis
Aging analysis of loan receivables (after allowance for

doubtful debts) prepared based on loan commencement or

renewal date set out in the relevant contracts is as follows:

B 2 R R B B P 65% (L F
— L 78%) J2 ME YA 4R 1B LR AE K
NZRIE » A 48 [ 1 345 B4R PRl 2
WL o 3% 4500 5 A4 55 458,000,000
JC (ZF—L4F 1 495,000,000% 7t) 3 I
1 1A IR A (2 BT o E P RR T (E
oo (—“F — L4 1 55,000,000% 70)
Z BB RN B B R (T
Z— L 4F 1 95,000,000% 7C) 2 —HF
W) 2 2 8 — F e VE B 4K - TR
i B Z W0 (& — L 4E 1 100,000,000
W IT) 2 B M BGR B A Al B B
J6 (=& —-E4 : 1,000,000,000% 7C) 2
EENELY/E A e K (W E L N7
U TH1 {H458,000,000%% U6 ( & — L 4F
340,000,000% 7T ) 18 2% i A N 52 A
LR S B - E L R B R
HZAGRHE R > M PF 5 BRI 858 1
S I (E 2 MR A B G SRl B o AR ]
AR AE W A A A o

fR#R 2 4T

JE WS B R (KR AT BR R MR B AR IR A
B A A0 B i 2 B KB b SR ) O AR
RZIRE AT

2018 2017

ZB-N\F| “F-LF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET T

Less than 1 month Dok —10 A 196,416 128,700
1 to 3 months — & ={8H 44,775 44,753
4 to 6 months AN (W= 89,608 89,417
7 to 12 months +tZE+ A 90,803 129,950
Over 12 months A E 275,138 243,758
At the end of the reporting period i i I R 696,740 636,578

The loans and advances with a carrying amount at 31
March 2018 of HK$696,740,000 (2017: HK$636,578,000)
are neither past due nor impaired based on contractual due
date. In view of the repayment history of these borrowers
and collateral provided, the directors of the Company
consider the amount to be recoverable and of good credit

quality.

There are no loans and advances that are past due but not

impaired.

MRoFE—-NE=ZH=Z=+—H E®
{8 £5696,740,000% & (— & — L4 :
636,578,000 7T) 2 B3k M BRI S
)21 B 2 M7 4 56 10 O S Uk o B
52 S8 AN 2 1 BGRE Bk DA K BT A 2
S > AAFEFR LA B RIES
A DA ] B HoAf RGF(E B R o

ANf7 488 L 488 30 7 A 981 < B AR B K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

24. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued

Movements in the allowances for doubtful debt in respect

of loans and advances

24, ERR BN - &
ERRBRZREREZED

2018 2017

—E-N\F =

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET AP

Balance at beginning of the year X 5B 6,050 4,438
Amount written off SRR (407) -
Impairment loss recognised Al 8 ok (E M 18 1,506 1,612
Balance at end of the year AR SR 7,149 6,050

Loans and advances are netted off by allowances for
doubtful debt of HK$7,149,000 (2017: HK$6,050,000)
which included no individual allowance and collective
allowance of HK$7,149,000 (2017: HK$6,050,000). No
further impairment allowance was considered necessary

based on the Group’s evaluation of collectability.

TR BT FR R B 7,149,000 00
(—ZF—1H4F 1 6,050,000 50) FrEy
L FE AR I 4 AR R S T R SR B A
7,149,000% 70 (—~ZF — L4 1 6,050,000
WETT) o AR A A BB R RO B
AL o B A B EFH R AE — D B R o

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 25. B BRIE
2018 2017
—E-NFE| —“Z—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET Tt
Accounts receivable arising from the EHEEEEFPEAZ
business of dealing in securities: JE Wi R IH
— Cash clients —HEEF 23,460 13,641
— Margin clients: —REEEF
— Directors and their close family members —H B N B
FIEW A 23,113 1,819
— Other margin clients —HMRAESEF 4,068,362 2,921,480
— HKSCC —HIBEE 4,438 65,591
Accounts receivable from futures clearing MEEEGHERTESE
house arising from the business of REHELE T2
dealing in futures contracts R Wi R T 15,997 15,345
4,135,370 3,017,876
Less: Impairment allowance S DR R ] (17,321) (17,329)
4,118,049 3,000,547

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days
after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures

clearing house are one day after trade date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued 25. B BRIE - &

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of HK$1,597,000
(2017: HK$162,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period but which the directors of the Company
consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which
are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting

period, the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as

BEEF 2 BUCRE S - 645k s
B 2K @ 1A T AR T 2% 1,597,000 TG
(. F—-E4E 1 162,000% 70) 2 FE K
TH > MEA /N A R R 2 A B EKE G 4
WRAE - R B ERE 2 A B R I 4
K 58 B T KB 4 MR TG (E 2 R AR

'é'_'o
=3

390 309 OR L 00 E 7 e e (> B
%P EWCHRIA = > A B R AT (i
FC MEREGT S DI U

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E LR
HK$’000 HK$°000
FB T
0 - 30 days 0%F 30K 1,586 125
31- 60 days 31260k - -
Over 60 days LR SITIBS 11 37
1,597 162

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of HK$21,863,000 (2017: HK$13,479,000) are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting
period and the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that the amounts are recoverable.

Loans to securities margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of HK$18,438,760,000
(2017: HK$15,308,956,000). Significant portion of the
pledged securities are listed equity securities in Hong
Kong. The loans are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date and carry interest typically at Hong Kong
prime rate plus 2% to 4.45% per annum as at 31 March
2018 (2017: Hong Kong prime rate plus 2% to 4.45% per
annum). Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios
for calculating their margin values. Additional funds or
collateral are required if the outstanding amount exceeds the
eligible margin value of securities deposited. The collateral
held can be pledged and can be sold at the Group’s
discretion to settle any outstanding amount owed by margin

clients.

A BOR > R THI{E 421,863,000 JG
(=& — L4 113,479,000 70) 2 fE
WH 4 % P 2 MR T b 3If 0 d 1 S R ek
18 > A ) H#E F 50 5 A BH SKE £ T LA
W =] o

BTESERESEEFZEXBHUEF
AR HERM . ARESZ AR
1B /518,438,760,000% 70 (& — L4 :
15,308,956,000%5 J6) ° 7 #5 b T A
7 I3 Ak O MR8 S5 P A B AR A o iR
TE-NEZA=ZT—H FRER
TE 55T B AR ZE A N R K > W R
2 4 ) 2R U I P B SN 2 22 4,45
JE (2 — LA 7 i i A R 2
JEZE4.4508) 5HE - EHRWIR THEZ
PR e R LAt H AR S - &
REENEEREGFAZELENEE
MRS EME - AlgEREFRIMEHE
HNE G SIS o BT REA Z AR A AT
DLFEHEAH > T A R [ AT I A 2
DL T IR 78 & K P AT 2 AT o] R AH 22
H o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 44% (2017:
44%) of the total loans to securities margin clients was
due from the Group’s ten largest securities margin clients.
The balance due from the ten largest securities margin
clients includes an aggregate amount of HK$1,805,143,000
(2017: HK$1,300,258,000), which is neither past due
nor impaired and is secured by clients’ pledged securities
with an aggregate fair value of HK$6,211,773,000 (2017:
HK$4,863,529,000). The Group believes that the amount
is considered recoverable given the collateral is sufficient
to cover the entire balance on individual basis. No ageing
analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of securities margin

financing.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are
margin loans with an aggregate outstanding balance of
HK$37,108,000 (2017: HK$20,978,000) which are not
fully secured. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk on these loans, with exposure spread over a
number of clients, and which are closely monitored by the
Group. The Group held collateral of listed equity securities
with a fair value of HK$13,731,000 (2017: HK$4,452,000)
at the end of the reporting period in respect of these
loans. As at 31 March 2018, impairment allowance of
HK$17,321,000 (2017: HK$17,329,000) has been made
for the shortfall portion of those margin loans amounted
to HK$23,377,000 (2017: HK$16,526,000). No further
impairment allowance is considered necessary for the
remaining margin loans based on the Group’s evaluation
of their collectability after considering, among others,

repayment subsequent to the reporting period.

In determining the allowances for impaired loans to
securities margin clients, the management of the Group
considers the margin shortfall by comparing the market
value of stock portfolio and the outstanding balance of loan
to securities margin clients individually. Impairments are
made for those clients with margin shortfall at year end and

with no settlement after the year end.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

25- EI‘I&;I\EIE - IIE

B 7B SRR S R PRt 2R
HKH44% (T F — L4 @ 44%) J& HE U
AREME T+ RBEHFMRESEF ZHIE >
A B2 [ T B AR R B 2 1 DL o
G N8 P Rl B U E ook e
#H 551,805,143,000% 90 (—FE— L4 -
1,300,258,0007% JC ) Mf7 48 783 H 7R 4 3l (i
Ko DLHES SR8 556,211,773,00085 96 (—
FT— L4 4,863,529,000%00) 2 KT
HE AP 38 F A A 2 BOIE o 3 4K
Fo AR A e R DU B RS R AR
¥ A % < B G AR A m] DA Ie] o g
WA OR B ER 2R AT
R MR o b 0 S ME A
1M SN 40 B 5 B B 43 AT o

A AR B 2 i R T AL S AR R 1B R A
% 7437,108,000% JC (=& — L4 ¢
20,978,000 J0) Z P 4 8K 0 A B
BB 40 48 2 T AT o AN 4 [ 4 A
Bz BRI m W G aE T
RS > A B RS 9 R B £ 4% F Il H
ALY ELR - R R A
B R% S AR I A
FAE 13,731,000 00 (= F — L4
4,452,000 0) 2 FTREARRE SR >
F—NFE=ZA=Z1T—H CWEZHE MR
R BN 2 B 923,377,000 I
(= F—LE4F 1 16,526,000% 7)) 1E I
(H B #517,321,000% 70 (—F — L4 -
17,329,000%5 7)o AR §5 45 4 8 48 %% 8
(HC o B 45 ) i 15 0 4% 28 K 40 R 1% 3 ik
] K TE R B BEAG o R O AR
PR 4 B0 R o — 20 (A

AAR R S RS R R E T
B WA > SRR RE S
HERZBRFAGHEETF A2 R
B8 B AR A8 BR AR HL > A 1T 25 IR R
EZHEREH - ARBERFEHAZE
5 R e R K e ORAE&S HAR IR &5
) A e



r B B T 8 SR B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Movement in allowance for impaired debts in respect of the

loans to securities margin clients are as follows:

25 JEI‘I&;I\EIE . IIE

fETRFREEFF 2 HRZ BEM
B man T

2018 2017

—E2-NF| “EFLF

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET T

At the beginning of the reporting period RS 17,329 17,329
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) I S | (B 5E43) (8) -
At the end of the reporting period T 3R 4 1 4% 17,321 17,329

In addition to the individually assessed allowances for
impaired debts, the Group has also assessed, on a collective
basis, a loan impairment allowance for accounts receivable
arising from the business of dealing in securities with
margin clients that are individually insignificant or accounts
receivable where no impairment has been identified
individually. Objective evidence of collective impairment
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, internal credit rating and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables. No significant amount of collective
impairment allowance is considered necessary based on the

Group’s evaluation.

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due
from directors and their close family members. The details

are as follows:

B 7 AR A A D6 R 55 2 48 A A1
REEIRREBERRFEEEFEEF
Fr 2 ST E AR AR A Ml FE E Y
W MR T > B 4 A A b R 2 B
ol P B Wi IR T > L o R VA ik B i
HR TEUAEE AT W (R A - B B8 l(E 2 KB
[ TIROEREN L P& ¢ N
5 BERRAR > DA B B Wi Bk TR 0 A B
W B 5% B Hh oy A8 A DL 2 AT B AR A
B o ARPEALL I X FEAY > 5B 2 W AR
HH R Y R T (A -

8 25 2 5 S 8 1 2 R B
METFL » 6L 3 6 2 3L 95 5B L
K FERINT
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued 25. B ARTE - &
Market value of
Balance Maximum amount outstanding pledged securities
kB arBELE ERE5nE
During
During the  the year ended
Atl A3l A3l yerended 31 March At3l At3l
April 2016 March 2017~ March 2018 31 March 2017 2018 March 2017 March 2018
BE HE
“EtE IR
RoR-7E R-R-tF R-R-NE ZAZT-R ZAZT-R RoR-tE MCR-NE
Name 4 MA-B =A=t-R =ZA=t-H LFE L¥E ZA=t-B ZA=t-H

HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOo0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
T T T T Tin T T

Mr. Hung Hon Man, director of the MR (RAFAEE) 453 1,819 12,469 1673 22,469 771,490 955,351
Company, his close family members ABERRRAUREHEE

and controlling entities

Mr. Kam Leung Ming, director of the HRmEs (R-Z—tEmA A - - 644 - 1141 - 604
Company who was appointed on 28 FERIARATES) RERER
April 2017, his close family B A K- HEHTR

members and a controlling entity

Mr. Lung Hon Lui, director of the EEELE (R -F-tE=f-0 - - - 03 - - -
Company who resigned on | March BEANAES) REBRFERE

2017, and his close family members

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear DA 5 Bk 27 761 I8 S SR 28 ST 4 B A
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates P8 4 B 5 48 i Ik 2 R SB35 1Y) R 2
offered to other margin clients. FIZGHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 26. BERE
2018 2017
—E-NF| —“Z—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Held for trading: FEEE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong %%Jifﬁﬂleg & 77 191,853 206,814
Designated at fair value through EEARDABERESR
profit or loss: R
Convertible notes (note a) Al B (B sEa) 19,692 23,424
Unlisted debt securities (note b) JE F T ES R (M EED) 449,694 468,305
469,386 491,729
Available-for-sale investments: HHEHERE :
Debt securities (note c) fEH 3 75 (Ml iEc)
— listed in Hong Kong — A B 66,542 37,399
— listed overseas — AN Bl 56,765 64,221
Unlisted shares (note d) FE b R A (B Ed) 109,748 -
233,055 101,620
894,294 800,163
Analysed as: I3
Current ] 661,239 240,282
Non-current IE i H 233,055 559,881
894,294 800,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TSEeE =TS AR E S
Year ended 31 March 2018

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

— continued

Notes:

@

The Group held convertible notes with principal amount of
HK$19,500,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$19,500,000)
which were issued by Hong Kong listed companies, bear
fixed interest of 8% (2017: 8%) per annum and will be due
in 2019 (2017: due in 2018) (subject to early redemption).
The fair value of the convertible notes amounted to
HK$19,692,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$23,424,000).

The Group is entitled to convert the whole or any part(s)
of the principal amount into ordinary shares of relevant
issuers at a price determined with reference to the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes.

The fair values of the convertible notes at 31 March 2018
and 2017 were estimated by RHL, an independent firm of
professional valuers not connected with the Group.

At 31 March 2018, the Group held one (2017: two)
redeemable bond with principal amount of HK$450,000,000
(2017: HK$460,000,000) which was issued by a listed
company and bears fixed interest of 7% to 8% per annum
(2017: 7% to 10% per annum). The redeemable bond
was issued on 16 December 2016 and will be due in 2018
(2017: due in 2017 to 2018) (subject to early redemption).
Management classified these redeemable bonds as designated
at fair value through profit or loss since these investments
contain embedded derivative.

The fair value of the redeemable bonds at 31 March 2018
and 2017 was estimated by RHL, an independent firm of
professional valuers not connected with the Group.

The Group held listed debt securities with principal
amount of HK$98,981,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$77,015,000) which bear fixed interest of 4.5% to
8.75% (2017: 1% to 12%) per annum and will be due in
2019 to 2025 (2017: due in 2019 to 2021). The Group
also held listed perpetual debts with principal amount of
HK$29,387,000 (2017: HK$25,559,000) at 31 March
2018 which bear interest of 6.375% to 7% per annum
(2017: 6.375% to 6.875% per annum). The fair value of
these debt securities amounted to HK$123,307,000 (2017:
HK$101,620,000).

The fair values of the debt securities at 31 March 2018 and
2017 were estimated with reference to the price quoted by
independent brokers.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

26. %%*ﬁﬁ - IIE

Wi 5E

@

(0

AL A B A LA\ B AT I R
CE - NEEZAET AR
19,500,000 G (—Z&F—14F : 19,500,000
W IT) 2 AT ¥R R SR o AT B AT 4 o
i [ 7E A ) R (. F — L 4E  gJH)
FHEST R JUAEEI (L
AR S AEF ) (AT 42 i
M) o MR EER —F - NF=H
Z—H2Z A AME£519,692,000% 7 (—
F—-L4F 1 23,424,0004 C) °

A% 4 ] ] 45e 52 % ] S U
{6 0 T 9T 44 00 MR A T 0 S
2 AT 8 93 2 R A o
13N 2 380 i -

CIELY %) 3/t S NG S I
H 2 %> SU{E ) piy B A A [ 10 4 [ 2 2.
P8 7. S Sl (L B AT K R AT A T

AZE—EZH = —H > AEEE
A T AR T I AN 428 £5450,000,000
W0 (—F — L4 1 460,000,000% JT) i
2 [ 22 AT F K7 ) g (& — LA 1 7
JEE10/E) FHEZ —H (. FE—L4F W
TH) TEE RS o A B n] I R Tk —
F—NET T H N BB E
— AEEIM] (B — LA s AT —L4E
BRI (A THERTHER) - i
PRI E RS AR AT H &8
I 319 ALt 25 T B [ i 25 0 B e 4 0 AR
FUME AR 25 TERE o

C e e SN o S S i s
== 02 AR E T i SASE
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AEBMPPEAR -F—/FE=Z=+—
H 2 7 4 %8 /598,981,000%% JC (&
—-B4E 1 77,015,000% 5T) 2 i E B
W5 AR R R R R4S )E
875 (L FE—-LAE - FFFREE
128) 5tEW R —E—LFE %
THAERIW (T FE L F R
EETE T FEE]) o AR IR R
AR _F—-NF=H=+T—HZRK
486 7429,387,00005 70 (& — L 4F ¢
25,559,000% 70) 2 E K A H
FEAE R 26,375 By (& — LA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—NESA=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

26. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

— continued

Notes: — continued

(d)

At 31 March 2018,

the registered capital of London Riverlea One Limited

the Group held 10% interest in

(“Riverlea One”), a company established in England and
Wales with limited liability and engaged to purchase and
develop a parcel of land in London, the United Kingdom.
Total investment made by the Group up to 31 March
2018 was GBP10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$109,748,000) which GBP4,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$43,989,000) was paid by the
non-controlling shareholder on behalf of the Group
and reported under
shareholders”

statements.

“amounts due to non-controlling

in note 31 to the consolidated financial

In the opinion of the directors, the Group and another
shareholder of Riverlea One have right to appoint one and
four director(s) in the board of directors of Riverlea One
respectively. All decisions on operation, financial and other
policy-making processes in the board of directors’ meeting
should require majority vote. Those four directors appointed
by another shareholder will make same decisions on behalf of
another shareholder. Therefore, the Group has no significant
influence on Riverlea One in accordance with HKAS 28
(2011). Accordingly, the equity investments together with
capital contribution are accounted for as available-for-sale
investments measured at fair value. The fair value of the
investment in Riverlea One at 31 March 2018 was estimated

with reference to net assets value of Riverlea One.

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

26. %%*ﬁﬁ . IIE

Bt &E - - AR

(d)

27. A F

AR NFE=ZA=+—H &4
[# #F A London Riverlea One Limited
(I'Riverlea One ) E it & 4 Hr10%HE
i > Riverlea One/s — [H] 7 & 4% BE K Ja
WS, 2 A B 7] > e L i e
Do BH % 55 B Al 20— & b o AR R
BWEF—-NAF=H=+—HEH
2 HBEE 1510,000,0008 88 R A 49
109,748,000% 7C) - & 14,000,000
85 (FH 5 T4 #143,989,0005 o) T FF
PR B AR A 4R B S A > Sl R AR
5 e 2 B R 3 1 DA TR 28 M M K
TH ] 2 e

EH GRSy o AL KRiverlea Oness —
JBe AT HE 22 AT 43 Bl — 44 B V0 44 Riverlea
One%% A2 ek T A B R

~ BAHS B oAt PR B Sy 2 P
Zﬁﬁlfgﬁgﬁ?%@i@ o W%V 4 3 41 i
7 RORBAT > AR — R AAE
AR P E o B A4 BRI A5 s &
FHUERI 52858 (—F ——4F) ¥ Riverlea
Onelli #EH K FZ 2T o I > A
L] ) AR S Aol R 2 AT A
G AR © R Riverlea OneZ & %
CFE ) EZAZ T HZ AR
% # Riverlea OneZ & {FHAZ b 5]

RIE B K H b WU

RECEIVABLES |
2018 2017
ZB-N\F| “EF-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Prepayments TE A 3] IH 1,253 1,300
Other deposits HoAth #2 4> 3,729 1,548
Other receivables At A 3 IE 17,343 16,079
22,325 18,927
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Year ended 31 March 2018

28.

29.

30.

BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’
monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions

(note 30).

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 0.96% (2017: 0% to 1.15%) per annum.

28.

29.

IRITER—"FFERF

AL HEEGRHENETZE
A B U BRI R R P B A
R Z W 4E - WERFF RKBETIER—
A8 285 L RATHRF o A5 M O i
SR 0] 5 B & P B At i A S A 2
T (K 5E30) ©

RITEBR - —REFRAS
ARFEQEAEEFAZ B4 2
B A 17 85 R 3R (4 F) R A F-0 )8 £0.96
(L oM ELISHE)) FHEZ
i HAERAT A K o

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 30. B HRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E LA
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHR Tt 5t
Accounts payable arising from the WHREHEEGPEAZ
business of dealing in securities: JE AT R IA
— Cash clients —He%F 148,234 441,434
— Margin clients —REEEF 315,238 256,923
Accounts payable to clients arising from the MEGHEEEH DESE
business of dealing in futures contracts Z BEATE P HRIA 18,992 24,423
482,464 722,780

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients and securities clearing houses are two days after trade
date. Amounts due to securities margin clients and futures
clients are repayable on demand and carry interest at 0.25%
(2017: 0.25%) per annum. No ageing analysis is disclosed
as, in the opinion of directors of the Company, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of business of securities margin financing. Included in
accounts payable to margin clients arising from the business
of dealing in securities are amounts due to directors of the
Company and their close family members of HK$23,000
(2017: HK$90,000).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l

JEAS B4 % 5 T 95 45 55 T 2 BRTELIY
EWRGEEMAZS HEMA - XiEH
REEEF LI EEF RIEH R EK
e fE 32 0 B 4%0.2508 (=& — L4
0.258) Z 4 F| F 5T o it 3 5 R
AR EER 2R RN E EHR
7 R B 43 BT N7 AR AME R o T O A
PR - B EHEEBEAZ
JEAT PR 3% & % P HRIE > A3 455 AT A
UNEIE & Y & & Pl $F 339 =i0E
JH23,000%5 76 (& — L4 1 90,000
JG) °
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

30.

31.

32.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - continued

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received
from clients for their trading of futures contracts on the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “HKFE”). The
excesses of the outstanding amounts over the required initial
margin deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to
clients on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of

business of futures contract dealing.

AMOUNTS DUE TO
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

30- JE{#;I\EIE . IIE

31.

MEaHHEXETELEZEBNER
ARIE > J2 4 ] % 5 SO LUAE 7 o I
oA RAR () REHE
BHZRE LS BRI E
Jir s Z 0020 DR 8 4 4 4 2 i R IR R K
o HNEFE ERIHE - BN A
BREEEBZME AR FERER
I MR % o0 A Sz SR AME R > R e Sl
e FR IR e 1 AT o

RFEZBBRARE
B RCOR B S G L RR R BER

A2 -

ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER R.EFEAREMENRE
PAYABLES

2018 2017
—EB-N\F R L
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT T 7T
Accruals e 2 5,975 5,471
Other payables A A R IE 5,724 4,699
11,699 10,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. R1TIEE
2018 2017
—E-NF| —ZZLH
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Secured bank borrowings, variable rate A HEAT SRAT A5 B > a4 A A 60,000 -

The maturity of the bank loans based on repayment
schedule (ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

clause) is as follows:

Within one year — R

AR BRI ] 2 SRAT R B (AR5
B A5 BORE AR 2 B I

2018 2017
—E-NE| % LH
HK$’000 HK$000
FExT T T
60,000 —

The interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings is HIBOR

+ 1.8% per annum.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had banking facilities
totaling HK$710,000,000 (2017: HK$935,000,000).
These banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of
the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$650,000,000 (2017:
HK$935,000,000).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 iR B R A &l

AL 2 SRAT S 8 2R Ty A s
SATIF PR B N8 JE o

W oE—NF=H=F+—H  A%£H
B A5 4 4£710,000,000% 76 (—F — &
4 1 935,000,005 70) 2 BRATE FUAH o
A RATE BFEURF 2 D%
5 RALEE TYEZ MR > DLEAAK
ATV 2 N A AERAE B ISR o AR
B O HE R 2 R OO AR A RS i
F M EE41 P05 -

MRoFE—-NE=ZH=+—H &K%
] AE 5 SR AT AR B R P Y R 4R UK
% £5650,000,000% 6 (=& — L4 ¢
935,000,000 JC) °



R R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A 34. FTMIBARIRITZARKRE

LISTED SUBSIDIARY
On 1 September 2017 (the “Bond Issue Date”), GNFG

issued convertible bonds, with coupon interest rate of 2%
per annum, in the principal amount of HK$525,000,000,
which defined as GNFG CB before, to not less than six
independent placees who were professional, institutional
or private investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial
owners were independent third parties. The coupon interest
is accrued at the outstanding principal amount of GNFG
CB and shall only be payable by GNFG to the bondholders
once every six months from the Bond Issue Date if GNFG
CB are neither converted during the conversion period nor
redeemed prior to 1 September 2019 (the “Bond Maturity
Date”). GNFG CB can be converted into maximum
500,000,000 ordinary shares of GNFG at a conversion price
of HK$1.05 per share. The conversion period commenced
from the Bond Issue Date up to and including the date
falling on the seventh day immediately prior to the Bond
Maturity Date.

Assuming all GNFG CB were fully converted into the
ordinary shares of GNFG, the Company’s shareholding in
GNFG would be diluted from 72.99% to 60.82% which
would result in deemed disposal of the equity interest in
GNFG. Accordingly, the equity component of GNFG CB
is reported as “Potential non-controlling interests” in the

consolidated financial statements.

At initial recognition, GNFG CB are separated into a
liability component and an equity component representing
the conversion options of bondholders which is reported as
potential non-controlling interests. The fair values of the
liability component and the equity conversion component
were determined at the Bond Issue Date. The fair value
of the liability component was calculated using a market
interest rate of 5.94% per annum for instruments without
a conversion option of comparable credit status which
is referenced to professional valuation conducted by an
independent professionally qualified valuer. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, has been reported as potential non-controlling

interests.

As the fair value of GNFG CB is determined using
valuation models for which involved unobservable inputs,
the day-one loss, which represented difference between the
nominal value and the fair value of GNFG CB at the Bond

Issue Date, is not recognised in profit or loss immediately

but is deferred.

%

o E—-LERA—H ([EHEBET
H 1) o &4 4 @l R D i oS 4 8 51k
B N (R 2 - R FA AR E >

HAG R HERESWA N ABLE
=) AT AR 4 B £5525,000,00045 I
22 2 B AT R A S (&5 4 & @l
B AR ) o T2 0 ) FFi 4 by 4 i AT
W R E R A SRS WK
S Tl R 4 AR 2 A 6 I U T R A 4t
R ZF— U JUH — B 200 R A
B (&2 HE D > HE S E 5
17 B R FHFE SR A B &S b 4 Rl
FRE A NSAT o &5 U 4 R nT e B 5
A i 4 AR A 1,05k T B R A f
500,000,0008 &% - 4 il 35 40 % o #
WHEESETHMAG HE LUK
HAEHBIHASE L HE B R -

I8 4% oy 4 R M 48R O 1 o 2 S 4t
YR o el R )i R N/ DN o 4 o
il 2 1% K B 72.999% 3 # £60.82% >
A O B A A R R
B > &b by 4 R AT 4 A T 2 BE 25 R4
T & R 2 b DA TV 7 JF 458 i RE
%5 | 2 o

T W) A W R IE 5 G < A AT AR R R
or I AUEER oy B R AR w0 o RS
FrA N 2 B > LAV AE JF 28 JBC i 2
R o BRI KM AR AR 2
REREFHFET A EE - AREA W
PR FR ULz e il 2 T B H A
#R I 2 x SUAELA T 35 4 R #65.94% T
B T92 %5 L B E A R AL (R
HEAT 2 A (E AT o BRAT (AR AR
PR Sy 2 (B (ED) WAVEETE JF 42 FBOME 2 A
HE o

&5 i < B AT 4 IR 2 2 N AR AE TS
W B M BB N\ BHE 2 Ak (B A B
E > HOH R (RD&S 47 < @l £
FHEEREFBETHZARMELZE
) o ol M BV AR £ R - ME T LU
3T o
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Year ended 31 March 2018

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A 34. LB ARIRITZARKRE

LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued

The carrying value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component of GNFG CB is net of the
deferred day-one loss which is allocated to the liability
component and potential non-controlling interests on the
same allocation basis of the allocation of the fair value
of GNFG CB. The deferred day-one loss in the liability
components were amortised over the term of the convertible
bonds on the basis similar with the effective interest method
and included in “Interest on convertible bonds” in profit
or loss and the deferred day-one loss in the potential
non-controlling interests will be accounted for in the same
basis as the equity conversion component.

The effective interest rate of the liability component of
GNFG CB on initial recognition, which excluded the
impact of the deferred day-one loss, is 7.43% per annum
and is subsequently carried at amortised cost.

GNFG CB recognised at the end of the reporting period are
calculated as follows:

% - &

A 0 < TR R 40 S R O A RERT 0 MM AR
$§>T§‘&iﬁ > MR THIEL TS 41 BR AR AE ¥ H s
B B nﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂTi‘ﬁ%Hﬂf#/\fﬁ
{EL 73 BE AR IR 2 73 i 22 e ) ic 28 6
or B Y AE JF 1 R A o R AL M}Z
IEAE 1 H s 18 DA BELE PR AR B 2
L e 7 A B o A 0 R Y Sl
{8 4 T A B 2 2 FLE AR > T
T VEETE I 452 IO HE 4 2 R SE T H gl 1R1F
LA B HE i 40 350 A ) 2 B HE AR

T U R IR > &5 T <l AT I B 0
B 2 H AR AR (PR IEE E H
Wi 1B 2 5288 J47.43% > FLAR 1 4 i A
AN o

A 4% 0 ) R R R 2 & I 4 AT e
BHEFHEWT -

Gross Deferred Net
Amount _day-one loss Amount
A%  EEEABR RH
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
Fibi Fibi Fibi
Liability component SRE¥D
Fair value of liability component AEWARERETH
at the Bond Issue Date 2NN 480,615 (173,694) 306,921
Issue costs BITER (7,665) - (7,665)
472,950 (173,694) 299,256
Interest expenses: FERL :
Imputed interest expenses AR EEY 17,040 - 17,040
Amortisation of deferred day-one loss BT H Esia e - 40,669 40,669
17,040 40,669 57,709
Interest paid/accrued Efft/ 25t HE (6,125) - (6,129)
Liability component at 31 March 2018 RZF-NE=N
“t—HZEERHY 483,865 (133,025) 350,840
Potential non-controlling interests BhEFERER
Nominal value of GNFG CB SRR R 2 822,421 (297,421) 525,000
Fair value of liability component AEBIRERETH
at the Bond Issue Date AR (480,619) 173,694 (306,921)
[ssue costs BITE A (5,460) - (5,460)
Potential non-controlling interests REFBETHRZF—N\E=R
at the Bond Issue Date and at 31 March 2018 =+ —HZ B 336,346 (123,727) 212,619
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

35. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the deferred tax (assets) liabilities

35. EE R IE

DR AREE F— /ExK -F—+

recognised and the movements thereon during the years EZA=+—HILFEEFECHERZEIL
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. BIE CEE) AL H )
Revaluation Collective
of available-  impairment on
Decelerated Revaluation for-sale loans and
tax depreciation of properties investments advances Total
EffUE e
NERERE Efth% HERE ZEEHE &t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Ac 1 Apil 2016 REZZ-AELA—H (632) 6,631 (267) (5) 5727
Credit to profit or loss for the year (note 15) R AKFE R (HiE15) 126 - - - 126
Charge to other comprehensive MRAFE LA T
income for the year - 02 41 - 493
At 31 March 2017 R-F-LE=A=1-H (506) 6,693 164 () 6,346
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) HEB A A (543 - - 15 - 15
Credit to profic or loss for the year (note 1) FFAZAE [ A 2 s (W 3E15) §7 - - - §7
Charge (credit) to other comprehensive B GEA) A A 2 T
income for the year - 140 (862) - (722)
At31 March 2018 RZF-NEZB=+-A (419) 6,833 (683) () 5,726

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$92,983,000
(2017: HK$93,288,000) available to offset against future
profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to
uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried
forward indefinitely.

AWK AR EH 4792,983,0004
gt (. FE—-L4F 1 93,288,000 70) Z A&
wh R B A0 TE i 18 AT DL B R 2 R
Fl o H A K g 1 AR 0 R AR
K] I NI 0 e 8 B JE RS 48 A B s 1R AT
4HE PR 30 44 .

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets) IRAEBTE (GE) BEMMEHREN S
liabilities for financial reporting purposes: SHTUNE -

2018 2017

—E—N\& —E LR

HK$°000 HKS$’000

FET THs T

Deferred tax assets A SIE B T (1,266) (1,281)

Deferred tax liabilities IR SE B TH B A 6,992 7,627

5,726 6,346

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, no deferred tax has been W oE - NFE L - F—LiFE=ZH

recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiary (“Great
China”) established in the Macau. In the opinion of the
directors, it is probable that any undistributed profits
are expected to be retained in Great China and not to
be remitted out of Great China in the foreseeable future.
The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution
of retained profits of Great China were HK$nil (2017:
HK$nil).

= B B A B2 R P S
Z WS 2>\ (TR P g ) 22 R BEE i 8 A
e ZH S A 2 T A0 B e R AR SE L IH -

FR S > TEEHE AT R 2 IR fi A AR T AE
(30 APNGIE S NEIBTIY L 7
MR F - E}E%{Jﬁjﬂj%ﬁé éﬁ?’FUZ
fEstEmMB B ATET (“F L
£ FHET) -

Annual Report 2018 F3

189



190

r A BB R R T R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR A&
Number of shares Amount
BiE L Ex
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-)\F v S ta “B-N\% i S
000 000 HK$'000 HK$’0@
Tk T TR T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRmE 0.10 Bz @k
Authorised: e
At the beginning and s R
the end of the reporting period 30,000,000 30,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRAISR
At beginning of reporting period e 8,052,256 6,710,214 805,225 671,021
Issue of shares on 29 August 2016 (notea) B ZF—AEAHZHLHE R
(Jf3k a) - 1,342,042 - 134,204
Issue of shares on 20 September 2017 REF—LENAZTAETRG
(note b) (JfE b) 1,610,450 - 161,045 -
At the end of the reporting period REESHL 9,662,706 8,052,256 966,270 805,225
Notes: bif
() MIZE—ARNFENAZTILH > KA

(a) On 29 August 2016, the Company allotted and issued
1,342,042,000 shares by way of placing at a placing price
of HK$0.225 per placing share. The whole amount of net
proceeds was used as general working capital and prospective

plans for future expansion of the Group.

(b) On 20 September 2017, the Company allotted and issued
1,610,450,000 shares by way of placing at a placing price
of HK$0.26 per placing share. The whole amount of net
proceeds was used as general working capital and for future

expansion and business development of the Group.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

DA B 24 A B i 65 T 4750.225 7 It
2 Tic 65 18 i 9% M 95 171,342,042,000/8%
ey o JT A5 3K JE IR E C A BOR 1B —
A AR R T R R R 2 T R

= o

AT LA T H o AAF L

e 85 7 2 e B 5 4 1 B R 19026
W5 6 it ¥ M 5 471,610,450,000 % ik
Py o BT AR E R B A BUE — s
WA MO AR R L CE R R
%o
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 37. BIRREGTE

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 16
May 2002 has expired on 5 June 2012. The Company has
adopted a new share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 August 2012. On
20 August 2015, the refreshment of scheme mandate
limit (671,021,393 Shares) under the Option Scheme
was approved by the sharcholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting by way of an ordinary resolution.
The major terms of the Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

(a) The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for eligible participant to work with
commitment towards enhancing the value of the
Company and the shares for the benefit of the
shareholders of the Company and to retain and attract
persons whose contribution are or may be beneficial to

the growth and development of the Group.

(b) The eligible participants of the Option Scheme
include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holding an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and (c) any such
other persons (including but not limited to supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, contractor, business
partner or service provider of the Group or any
Invested Entity) who in the absolute discretion of the
board of directors has contributed or will contribute to

the Group.

(¢) The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

(d) The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed the number
of shares as shall represent 10% of the total number of

shares in issue.

ARAFRFR AR H N H RN
ZHEBRESHER T~ HEANHAL
HIE - AN FACRER -F— 4F
ANHAZ U HER 2 R RERN—IH
B R TR (TS RSB D) o A
F—HFE/NHZ+H o AN A B F R
Ji SR A R e b DA A ek 2 U
Y B I R B TE T R 4 PR A
(671,021,393/%) - [ I HE 5 &) 2 & 2
(C3¢ 731 A

(a) B T B A S & B s 2 B

B AR TEA 7] BH By 2 A8

{8 LA 2 AR 2 5 e A A A 2 - i

Fi5 LA B W 5 R JRK B AR 4R

IR Mg AT M AT e A R 2
AN+t e

(b) HEBCHERT B 2 & B A% 2 B 4
(a) A 42 ) AR 42 T 45 A7 L I A
i HH (THRZEHE]) 2F
TUAT 3 S5 U B (A a2k il
B 5 ) AEE SRR EER
FEAT R LA T (45 5L AT
) 5 (o) S LA B I
RERE /b £ A8 S0 & B A S [ AF
B Z AL A £ (AR EH AR
T A S B B A7 BB 2 I
B R R R
BLT - SEHE I PF SIS 1k 1)

(c)  RIAT (o R 4% ol GG 5 ) S A 4 1)
AT A A B R ) BT 4 R
W AR AT 8 2 BT A I JRCRE I AT g 6
TEBITZ M E ERE R A
38 A 8 AN RE B AT IROAS AT
ol A A &% 25 BRI 2 30% ©

(d)  DRIAT (o R 4 1 O A 5 1) R A 4 [
AT ] At i TR T B T AR 2
JIT A B A T AT BB ZE T AR AT 2 M
13 B BA T AS 15 68 18 AH BRI 5%
TR A # B 0% 2 By 2 -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

()

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

A share option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 5 business days from the date of the offer

of grant of the share option.

The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i) the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company.

The Option Scheme will expire on 23 August 2022.

There was no share option granted to eligible participants
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. There
were no outstanding share options at 31 March 2018 and
2017.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

37. BIRAETE - &

(e)

®

(g)

(b)

(i)

()

T AT AT 1248 400 ] B AT 08 AR %
P HE i ) % AR S T AT o At i A
RE 3 Br % i 2 B e HE > T2 )
# 2 B AT Jon] REZH ) 4% 2 Bl
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o B AR AT O I A ) > A
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38.

39.

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 38. Hv R & REH
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from AEEEMESHELE AEZEH)
financing activities are as follows: ==
2018 —E-N\fF
Non-cash changes
E3EY T
Potential
non-
Atl Net Interest Interest  controlling At31
April 2017 Cash flows expense accrued interests ~ March 2018
R-B-t BE R-B-NE
EmMAE-B BERFE  MEEX  EHAE  FERER =A=1-8
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TiEn TiEn TiEx TiEn Tan Tién
Bank borrowings RIS - 60,000 - - - 60,000
Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary LM A R T 2 - 506,625 57,709 (879) (212,619) 350,840
Total liabilities from financing activities BERHET: L ABLE - 566,625 57,709 (875) (212,619) 410,840

Bank borrowings and convertible bonds issued by a
listed subsidiary are disclosed in notes 33 and 34 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting HK$835,000 (2017:
HK$857,000), are charged to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

39.

B SRAT A K LT S R B AT 2
Al R 2 2 REAE 43 A RS 4 A RS
e = B 5E33 %34 -

EHRERGTE

A 45 1) AR 5 5 o S B A A6 4
Z B B R 5 B WS T A S E SR B
2 BUR R AR A 5H 8] (M5 a st 3 )

5 B 4 T B 2 6 el — R S B
éﬁﬂ#ﬁ $¢@E$E%%1&i£%1
HHLE - A SRR B H A B
B Z5%Ht 3K - £ #4835, oooﬂém QZ
—t@ 857,000 70) Z it
i ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%m%?ﬂﬁ%
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

40. COMMITMENTS 40. i
(a) Lease commitments (a) FHEXRIE
The Group as lessee 7 5E B 75 R TN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had AR R > AN AR B R AT R
commitments for future minimum lease payments Pt /NEL Y/ RS EVANEC: I
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of B T A A 10 580 A1 49 19 R ok i AIK
office properties, berth, car park and staff quarters HEFRBEZFHHEWMT -
which fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—B-NF | SF L
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T#C
Within one year —FR 551 399
In the second to fifth years inclusive BAEESE LER
(B4 & R W 4F) 252 -
803 399
The Group as lessor o £ B 1 R
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had AR R 5 DL R A A A2 kA
contracted with tenants for the following future 5 RS 3T 2 4 #  5  B (IE FiL S
minimum lease payments: HOTE
2018 2017
—B-NF | % uR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T#T
Within one year —FR 11,081 324
In the second to fifth years inclusive BEEE LER
(L4 R W AF) 40,396 40
Opver five years TAERL k 46,131 -
97,608 364

Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from 2 years
to 10 years (2017: 2 years).

194
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

40. COMMITMENTS - continued

(b) Loan commitments as lender
The Group had the following loan commitments,
which was the unutilized part of the revolving facility

at the end of reporting period:

40, EIE - 1B
b) BHREE-EHER

$EEEA$&¢%§*7€LJT% R
W& > THER o R B TG ER AL

2018 2017
—E-NF| —E oL
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T#T
Within one year — R 100,000 80,100
(c) Capital commitments (c) BREIE

2018 2017
—E-NF| & LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#T

Capital expenditure contracted for MEYEZIRECHT

but not provided in the consolidated FIE A &7 G P BS T =

financial statements in respect of WS 2 B AR
addition to investment properties 54,497 -

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. BER

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

DAH BRI 2 B O AR > R AR
5 B SR AT A5 SR A

2018 2017

—2-NE| —T-L&

HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#TT

Hong Kong Rt

Leasehold land HE + 71,465 73,906
Buildings T 34,430 34,240
105,895 108,146

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also secured oh s P EFE—-NANE=ZHAH=+—H >
by charges over clients’ pledged securities of fair value of AEBZEFTEEHNTHAS REL

approximately HK$773,626,000 (2017: HK$980,960,000) 5773,626,0004 6 (& — £ 4F -

at 31 March 2018 and corporate guarantees issued by the

980,960,000 70) Z & P B HEH 75 2 DU

Group. B ARy w B A AR RAE AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42,

In addition to the transactions and information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties:

BEALIRS
Wi 5 5 BB % 2 L Ath 38 3 i Bk 5% 2 52
Gy FUE RLAL > ABE H A AR R HEAT DL R
BHEANExS

(a) Transactions @ X3
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2018 2017
BEALEE, 28 RHHE —e-NE | EoiE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE% ikt
Messts. Hung Hon Man, Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Brokerage commission income
Kam Leung Ming, Hung Sui Kwan, (Note 1)
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, Cheng Wai Ho,
Ng Hon Sau, Larry, their close family members
and controlling entities (note v) 2,187 1,692
U SORA  HRE S WA AR E WA (B FED
Bhm A - AR - BRI EL
REEEE - HEZERRRRE UK
PEHIEHE (W 5ky)
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Kam Leung Ming, Interest income (Note ii)
Hung Sui Kwan, Cheng Wai Ho,
Ng Hon Sau, Larry, their close family members
and controlling entities (note v) 461 67
WSO SR S Wb A FEMCA (W i)
et - RMREs SRR
1B DR BRI (W)
Mr. Hung Hon Man’s associate Rental income (Note iii) 504 504
WA ZHE AL AU (B i)
M. Lung Hon Lui’s associate Consultancy services (Note iv) - 300
HEERCE 2B AL LR S (B i)
Notes: R

(i) Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2017:
0.1% to 0.15%) on the total value of transactions.

(ii) Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.252% per
annum (2017: 7.236% to 9.252% per annum) on the
outstanding balances of margin loans.

(iii) Monthly rental fee was charged at HK$42,000 (2017:
HK$42,000).

(iv) Consultancy fee was charged at arm’s length with
reference to the workload and estimated costs to be
incurred. Mr. Lung is the Company’s former Director
who resigned on 1 March 2017.

(v)  Mr. Kam Leung Ming was appointed as Director of the
Company on 28 April 2017.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

() MEHEZTHBEMEZ01%E0.25% (—
F—L4E 0 0.1%%0.15%) W HL -

(i) M B ¥H%7.236%%9.252% (—E —+k
A 7.236%%9.252%) &2 F R K AR 7
SR AR AE R G AR -

(i) B H W Bz 4 F42,0009 6 (—
—-B4E : 42,0004 5T) ©

(iv) TR T 45 0 7 ORI A 255 T AR &
b 1M Bk AT 2 AT S » HESEAE
AAFEESE > O F—LFE=A
— H&HE -

v HaBELEER - F—-LtHFWH
T NHERAL AN FES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

— continued

(b) Remuneration to key management personnel

The remuneration of members of key management,
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements, was as follows:

R2.FAEALXRE -&

(b) EEEBABZHM

B & 05 S 6 B k14 P B 68 2
WA HEEEM AR ZH
BT

2018 2017

ZB-N\F| —“EF-LF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THs T

Salaries and other benefits W N A s 5,813 6,192
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B ARAE A E A 2R 115 129
5,928 6,321

The remuneration of directors and other key P A BN B B

management personnel is determined by the

performance of individuals and market trends.

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018,

the Group

completed the following disposals:

(a)

(b)

On 22 May 2017, the Group completed the
disposal of a 72.99% non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Pacific Challenge Securities Limited (“PCS”) at a
consideration of approximately HK$71,121,000 to an
independent third party. PCS held type 1, 4, 9 licenses
regulated by SFC and was inactive immediately before

the disposal.

On 9 November 2017, the Group completed the
disposal of 72.99% non-wholly owned subsidiaries,
Superior Capital Assets Limited (“Superior
Capital”), and its subsidiary, e-Capitalist.com (Asia)
Limited (“e-Capitalist.com”), at a consideration of
approximately HK$13,724,000 to an independent
third party. The principal activity of Superior Capital
was investment holding and e-Capitalist.com held
type 1, 4, 9 licenses regulated by SFC and was inactive

immediately before the disposal.

TR AL AR N SR B T S B E

43. HEM B F

BEZ - NE=H=+—HI14
JE o AREEB R T HE
@ WHoF—LERH -+ H K%

(b)

EE ARE A ik NS e e S
B HA R A ([T %
I3 1 AN FIEAT72.99% M 4k 2 FE 4
o /) o ARE A 471,121,000
Wt o KT HHEFERFA hHEE
G HLE 2 S B4R R oR
HE B AT e

A E—-EFET-ARLAE S A%
@xﬁim%i%;ﬁtﬂ%Supenor
Capital Assets Limited ([ Superior
Capital | » A B HEAH72.99%HE %
Z B MR N K 2 ]
B MBUE (S AR R (TF
#&E]D) - fUEA13,724,000% 7T -
Superior CapitalZ ¥ B 3£ 85 £y 4%
B R A A A
TRUE Z 1B SR R 9B
N B R R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES — continued 43. HEMB AT - &

The following summarises the considerations and the DIN B EE M EER S R E
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities at the dates of e B T A B
the disposals:

Superior
Capital and
e-Capitalist.
PCS com Total
Superior
AFF Capital &
HERH EMRE met
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tkt Tk T
Net assets disposed of FrHEEEFE
Intangible assets WY & 553 - 553
Bank balances SRAT 45 61,827 3,737 65,564
Prepayments FEATRH 2 - 2
Deposits 1 4 196 - 196
Deferred tax assets R SiE o JE 15 - 15
Accounts payable e A BRI (1,472) - (1,472)
Other payables oA A+ R - (13) (13)
61,121 3,724 64,845
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWE 10,000 10,000 20,000
Consideration N 71,121 13,724 84,845
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$°000
Fil Fib Fit
Net cash flow on disposal of HEMBARZ
subsidiaries RERFHE
Cash Consideration BaRE 71,121 13,724 84,845
Bank balances disposed of Fir B SR AT 45 B (61,827) (3,737) (65,564)
9,294 9,987 19,281
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44, XA T Z B RN &R
OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-NF| —E oL
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET AREP
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property and equipment LIE Y &I 21 20
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries i NG P
FEHRE 44(a) 1,844,473 1,844,473
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE A 86 B 2 ) R T 93,156 93,156
1,937,650 1,937,649
Current assets REBEE
Tax recoverable W [e] o TE - 202
Deposits and prepayments i 4 K A KR 485 500
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFRE WA K o8 2 ) R T 2,715,216 1,977,305
Bank balances — general WATHIER — — RIRF &
accounts and cash W4 4,100 297,011
2,719,801 2,275,018
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges and other payables JEFEE K
Ho At B A 3KH 1,758 2,254
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A5 B ) > W A 551,135 512,735
Tax payable JRE At Fod T 37 -
552,930 514,989
Net current assets REBEEFEE 2,166,871 1,760,029
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,104,521 3,697,678
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital & A 36 966,270 805,225
Reserves i 44(b) 3,138,251 2,892,453
NET ASSETS BEEFEE 4,104,521 3,697,678

Annual Report 2018 F3 199



200

r & B S AR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TSEeE =TS AR E S
Year ended 31 March 2018

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

(a) Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries

(b)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

are deemed capital contribution amounting to
HK$60,840,000 (2017: HK$60,840,000). The capital

contribution represents the imputed interest on

interest free amounts due from subsidiaries which are

not expected to be recovered within 12 months from

the end of the reporting period.

44, RPNTF 2 BERREK - &

(@ RIBAFZIELHHELR
60,840,000 70 (=& — L 4 :
60,840,000%5 70) Z HAEH & o H
B F R 2 A R R (FE
AS B i R B R AL FF 1248 A ik
) 2 HEH A -

Movement of the reserves (b) FEEH
Share Special Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
REuE  sHEE  RE2RY 43
Notes HK$30()_() HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$"00_0
i3 ThR Thn TEn TEL
At 1 April 2016 A E—ANENA—H 2,679,198 194,549 3,884 2,877,631
Profit for the year - - 175,114 175,114
Transactions with owners: HEEAZRS
Contributions and distributions
- Distribution in specie (163,981) - - (163,981)
- Dividends to owners _ R NZ B - - (161,046) (161,046)
— Shares issued under placing - MR L 5417 Mty 167,755 - - 167,755
— Transaction cost attributable
to issue of shares (i) (3,020 - - (3,020
754 - (161,046) (160,292)
At 31 March 2017 R-F—-LE=N
2,679,952 194,549 17,952 2,892,453
Profit for the year - - 169,462 169,462
Transactions with owners: HEBAZRS
Contributions and distributions
~ Issue of shares upon placing - R 81T 0 36(b) 257,673 - - 257,673
— Transaction cost attributable
to issue of shares (i) (4,187) - - (4,187)
- Dividends to owners 16 - - (177,150) (177,150)
253,486 - (177,150) 76,336
At 31 March 2018 =
= 2,933,438 194,549 10,264 3,138,251

Note (): As included in the share premium of the Company, the
transaction costs of the placing were paid to its subsidiary, Get
Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”) and would be eliminated in the

consolidated financial statements.

Note (i7): At 31 March 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$3,138,251,000 (2017: HK$2,892,453,000) which
comprised the share premium, special reserve and retained

earnings.

BFEEG) - R RS TR A i - 2
N AR T el /AR
([ 4557 8 7 1) 2 BiL 6 32 5y A

RERE

SR 5 S 3 v e

Bt i) - R F—NE=ZH=+—H &
UNEIPANES S e & W - F )
7%3,138,251,000% 7C (— & — L
4F 1 2,892,453,000% 70) > AL 4E A%

3 i A

5 0 fke i e AR B LA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. T EWE D TS
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are as ARAF Z W8 AR RER IR
follows:
Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value of issued
Place of Class of share capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERTRAR KAARBRLZERORE/
i PR B AR FEROEH  RE/EREA HMEAEEED £33 3
2018 2017
2-0F I Slt:2

Directly ~Indirecly ~ Directly  Indirectly

263 [} E#k 3

GNFG Cayman Islands Ordinary HKS$25,000,000 72.99 72.99 - Investment holding
Gl REHE il 25,000,000 ¢ REHR
Get Nice Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 - 7299 - 7299 Investment holding
Island (‘BVI")
LEELTE Tk 100007 RE#R
([BEEELHE]
GNS Hong Kong Ordinary HK$860,000,000 - 72.99 - 7299 Securities dealing and
LR Bk broking and securities
Lk 860,000,004 7T margin financing
Non-voting HK$40,000,000
deferred shares
(note a)
ERER 40,000,000 1T HHEEREL LR RS
EALT (Hfita) EERE
Get Nice Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 72.99 - 7299 Futures and options
Company Limited broking
GIFMEERAR Fik il 20,000,000 76 e B E
Get Nice Capital Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 = 72.99 - 7299 Corporate finance services
GHBEERAR Fik L 10,000,004 ¢ PERBEET
Ger Nice Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2,000,000 - 72.99 = 7299 Asser management services
Management Limited
GERERARLAT Bk Lk 2,000,001 76 BEERRE
Genius Wise Holdings ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 72.99 - - Inactive
Limited
ERELHE Tk B3 3£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of Class of
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held
WEATER G AR R RAEH
Get Nice Silk Road BVI Ordinary

Investment Limited

BORABEEARAR  EEEAHE L

Get Nice Currency Hong Kong Ordinary
Exchange Limited

S AR & Tk

Quality Champion Limited - Hong Kong Ordinary

HEARAR i ik

Get Nice Finance Hong Kong Ordinary
Company Limited

ST ARAR & Tk

Allex International Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary

BERBARAR B T

Prime Pacific BVI Ordinary

Investments Limited

ERELHE il

Steppington Holdings BVI Ordinary
Limited
RBEAHE LT
Pacific Challenge Futures  Hong Kong Ordinary
Hong Kong Limited
ATEREMEARAR &b T
Pacific Challenge Management Hong Kong Ordinary
Services Limited
Ei Tk

202
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45. T EMB A BFE - &

Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value of issued
share capital / share capital / registered capital
registered capital held by the Company
ERTRAR ARARAZERRE/
B/ ERER aMEAEEAD L
2018 2017
ZE-N\§ “E-Lk
Directly Indirectly — Directly  Indirectly
=83 ] Hfk %

US5510,000 - 3.0 - -
10,000% 70
HKS! - 7299 - -
1T
HK$9,000 - 100 - 100
9,00076 70
HKS2 - 100 - 100
LT
HK$10,000 - 100 - 100
10,0008 G
USS1 - 100 - 100
BT
US$10,000 - 7299 - 7099
10,0005
HK$10,000,000 - 72.99 = 72.99
10,000,00086 ¢
HKS2 - 100 = 100
2L

Principal
activities

IRRH

Investment holding
HEHR
Inactive

HERE

m

Property holding
ESH

Money lending
A

Holding of motor vehicles

R RE
Investment holding
BERR
Investment holding
BERR
Inactive

ELE

Inactive

LR A
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TR A RFIE - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value of issued
Place of Class of share capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERTRAR ALAREZBRARE/
KEAEER G AR FERESH  RA/EREA HMEAEEAA L IRRE
2018 2017
23-N\f LR

Directly Indirectly — Directly  Indirectly

283 [} Hik %

Grace Field Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 7299 - 7299 Property holding
FERARAT Fik HER o VESHR
Gainventure Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Limited
EREATHE HER E30 8 gl
Clever Switch Limited BVI Ordinary USS1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE Lk 1% RELR
Get Nice Development Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
BIEEARLD Bk HER 1,000,000 ¢ R
Joyful Villa Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE Rk b3 BELR
Venturecorp Investment BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EREARE ik 1% RELR
Rich Mount Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
REARAT Fik Lk 1T WA
NobleNet Limited BVI Ordinary Us$1 - 72.99 - 7299 Investment holding
KRELRE i L 1% RELR
Get Nice International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - 80 - 80 Properties development
Limited
REREARAR &k Lk 100087 VES{
Dragon Rainbow Limited ~ BVI Ordinary Us$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE HEk b3 18 gl
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TEME A RFIE - &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued
Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value of issued
Place of Class of share capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERTRAR ALAREZERORE/
WEATER G AR FERESH  RA/EREA aMEAEEAD L IRRE
2018 2017
“R-0% “F-tE

Directly Indirectly — Directly  Indirectly

=83 ] Hfk %

More Profit International ~ BVI Ordinary US5$10,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERRAHE ik 10,0007 RE#R
Great Right Holdings BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
REBRARAH RBEAES Lk B RErm
Rise Fortune Group Limited BVI Ordinary US§50,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
AREAERA EBRLHE Tk 50,000 ¢ flex
Get Nice Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 7299 - 72.99 Holding of yacht
Limited
ERREARAR Bl ik 1T AR
Group Success BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
International Limited
ERELHE ik BT 554
Get Nice Entertainment ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
HERREARAT RBELHS Tk 1#x RErm
Peak Prospect Limited BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE Tk 1£% ig-eal
Vast Cheer Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 = 100 - 100 Property holding
&k Lk T B
Billion Times Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
RBRAER Tk £ RanR
Better Dynamic Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 = 100 - 100 Investment holding
EBELHE Lk £ RgsR
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—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TR A RFIE - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value of issued
Place of Class of share capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERTRAR ALAREZBRARE/
KEAEER G AR FERESH  RA/EREA HMEAEERA L IRRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\E ZFLE

Directly Indirectly  Directly  Indirectly

283 ] Hik %

Treasure Advantage Limited BVI Ordinary Uss1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
EREAHE HER b3 8 el
Get Nice Real Estate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$4,000,000 - 100 - 60 Property agency
Limited (Note c(ii))
REERARLA  FR Bk 4,000,000 ¢ UEJIS
(Witei)
Great China Company Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 - 65 - 65 Inactive
Limited
K EHRA B e 100,000 %1% HERE
Gain Peak Asia Limited ~ BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EREARE Ham 1% BRER
Infinite Treasure Group ~ BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHE Ek 1E7 BEER
Profit Union Holdings ~ BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Corporation
EREAHE Bk 1% RELR
Ace Way Business Limited BV Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
FRELRE L E3 BEER
Jumbo Excel Corporation ~ BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EREAHE Hk 1#7 RELER
Jumbo Excel Group BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 = - Investment holding
Limited
EREANE Rl E30 BRER
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—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TEME A RFIE - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value of issued
Place of Class of share capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERTRARE ARAREZBRARE/
WEATER HRALIEE FERESH  RA/EREA aMEAEEAA L IRRE
2018 2017
“B-0% “F-tF

Directly Indirectly — Directly  Indirectly

=83 ] Hik ifi7

Trillion Income Limited ~ BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - - Investment holding
ERRAHE il %7 RE#R
Trillion Way Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1,000 - 60 - - Investment holding
AERRAH Eik 5l 1,000 RELR
Apex Magic Asia Lid BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - - Inactive
ERELHE T %7 IRE%
Access Mission Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
EERARE 5l ES RE#RK
Bowell Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS§1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
HEARLH Bk Tk 1T REHR
Get Nice Property Hong Kong Ordinary HKS§1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Management Limited
BEMEERARAT B Tk 1T 635
Pacific Challenge Securities  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 - - - 7299 Inactive
Limited
KTERERFARAT Bk ik 60,000,000 ¢ £
Superior Capital Assets —— BVI Ordinary Uss1 - - - 7299 Investment holding
Limited
ERRAHE T £ RERER
eCapitalist.com(Asia) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$19,500,000 = = = 7299 Inactive
Limited
BHEH (M) AR B EiL 19,500,000 7T HERx
i
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—NESA=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes:

(a)

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by a director
of the Company and a director of GNS, carry practically no
rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or
vote at any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the
assets of GNS available for distribution among the holders of
ordinary shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares
shall be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary
shares the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary
share and secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting
deferred shares the nominal amount paid up or credited
as paid up on such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s
assets shall belong to and be distributed among the holders
of ordinary shares in proportion to the amount paid up or

credited as paid up on such ordinary shares respectively.

Except for the subsidiary established and operated in Macau,

all subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong,.

45. T EMB A BFE - &

Wi 5

(a)

MAANF —ZERE KL TER 4
R R 2 A SRR A R E R B
IR A B L 5 R S i B ﬁi‘ﬁ#
A0 JI% SRR i 6 B K EOn
AR o ATE ARG > &R #Tﬁt’\
IR T Lﬁxhﬁ}\&ﬂ&m%ﬁiﬂx
FrA N 2 B M SE DA S AN A TS
11,000,000,000,000% JC 2 #K H T 3
MR A N > T DUE A B0y
2 BB B A IR A SO T E T A
ERERRREA N > M EEZE
JEE i MR O A A SRR AN 0 Sl 40 S
Fie A0 5 A B A 2 R SR B
Py B2 Bk 2 b B 43 IR o

B A R ) B S % 2 Wi Jeg 4 W) A
e A Wi Jog 2 ) 35 T s R

Annual Report 2018 F3

207



r & B S AR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TEMBLRIFE - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Notes: — continued B 5E - — 4
(c) The table below shows details of non-wholly owned () TFRIMINIALMEGER IR Z I
subsidiaries of the Group that have non-controlling interests: G B F 2R

Proportion of

Principal ownership interests and
Place of place of voting rights held Profit allocated Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation business by non-controlling interests  to non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERERBEL
MELARAE EMELEY  EREXRBE  FAERSRRRENS  DEFHEREZEN EHES:T $5
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“B-NE CE-LE CE-NE CZ-bE ZB-NE CEtF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000
ThL T AR T

GNFG (note i) Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong 27.01% 27.01% 74,805 74,030 1,022,852 978,150
Bt (k) Gy itk
Great China Company Limited  Macau Macau 35% 35% 1,052 16 30,216 29,164
KAEFRAF i i

Immaterial non-controlling

interest of Get Nice

Real Estate Limited (note ii) - 191
BITEEHRATZ

FER B (M aki)

Immaterial non-controlling

interest of Get Nice

International Limited 2 2
HHEBERATZ

EE DN 33§ £

Immaterial non-controlling

interest of Trillion Way

Limited (2) -
FUEA R

ZHRERF LR

1,053,064 1,007,503
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-NFE=ZA=+—HBItFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes: — continued

(c) - continued

(i)  With the listing of the shares of GNFG on the Stock

Exchange on 8 April 2016,

. an amount of approximately HK$1,506,775,000
was capitalised by the issuance of 1,982,445,519
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each from GNFG to

the Company;

. 167,755,348 ordinary shares of GNFG of
HK$0.01 each were declared by the Company as
a special dividend by way of distribution in specie

to the Company’s qualifying shareholders; and

. 507,554,481 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued by GNFG at HK$1 per share to the

public for a total gross proceeds of approximately

HK$507,554,000.

With the issuance of GNFG’s shares to the public and
the Company’s qualifying shareholders, the Company’s
equity interest in GNFG has been diluted from 100%
to 72.99%. Although there is a reduction in the equity
interest in GNFG, the Company is still able to exercise
control over GNFG and the effect of the reduction in
the Company’s interest in GNFG of approximately
HK$443,753,000, being the difference between
the fair value of consideration of approximately
HK$507,554,000 and the non-controlling interest in
GNFG of approximately HK$951,307,000, has been

recognised directly in reserves.

(ii)  In October 2017, the Group acquired additional 40%
equity interest in Get Nice Real Estate Limited at a
consideration of HK$150,000. The Group’s equity
interest in Get Nice Real Estate Limited increased
from 60% to 100% upon completion of acquisition.

The financial impact of acquisition to the consolidated

financial statements is set out as follow:

ks

]

@

(ii)

45. T EMB A EFE - &

B 5k - - A

Bl 2 45 0 S AR A — % — N4
(DS ANNE IR R

DO R~ I S - [ NS/
B 171,982,445,519 0% & I
0.01¥c 2z EE k> 4
1,506,775,000% 7 Z 4% )5
WAREAR

o ARAFE AL FEA B IR
H IR 167,755,348 % B I
TA (0.0 135 JC 2 45 47 4 fil 3%
T A L0 04 B 0 DR R L
B &

o B LT A Rl R R TS T I AE
& 18] 2> R 85 47507,554,481
Jit 4 B T (B 0.017 ot 2 %
> BT A R IH AR A
507,554,000%% JC °

B 17 A AR AR ) A R A TR
FEEAT S5 I By > AR LS AR
5 0T 4 0 IR RE © 1€ 1009048
A72.99% ° fi B &I 4 mho i
REW D > AEAL /A7 98 e 4 3 45
U BAT R IR > AN R &S
MM TRZEERE
443,753,000% 70 > A UEA L
B £9507,554,00075 7C 5L 4% 7 4 Fil
2 FEHEREHE 45 49951,307,0005 7T
Z B 2250 O B TE M b e

277
[

o E—bE A AL
150,000 TT U M 45 07 & S A B
I BV SN0 IERE o 7 58 B IS I
% > ASE A G5 4 A IR )
Z B RE B 60%3 N 22 100% o Wi
B hp A P R 2 W R A8
mr
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-N\FE=ZA=+—HBILtFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TEM B RFF - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Notes: — continued MG - — 48
(c) — continued (c) — 78
(ii) — continued (ii) — 44
HKS$’000
Fitt
Net consideration paid to non-controlling interests £ 45 IF 4 Al 5 2 15 A0 (150)
Carrying amount of non-controlling U WA i I 2 R 2 2 MR T (L
interests acquired 97
Difference recognised directly in equity A RE 5 ERE 2 22 HH (53)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
HZ=A=1+-HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
CE-NE O CF-FE O “F-NE O “F—LE | ZB-N\E
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T TAT
(Note 1 and 3) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)
(Bt 3k 1 33) (B 3E1) (W3ED) (H3k2) (Mf&t2)
RESULTS Ed |
Continuing operations BEEERE
Revenue I 4 227,818 362,581 581,242 513,600 584,840
Profit before taxation B AT A 190,362 316,824 543,938 488,577 453,364
Taxation B (26,745) (47,745) (80,272) (73,291) (80,364)
Profit for the year from REREEEER Y
continuing operations AR A 163,617 269,079 463,606 415,286 373,000
Discontinued operations RIS
(Loss) profit from discontinued KACKILEKZ
operations (B8 i Al 498,137 - - - -
(Loss) profit for the year R (ER) A 661,754 269,079 463,666 415,286 373,000
As at 31 March
RZA=+-H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“E-lE S ZR-RE R/ ZR—18 | ZE-N\E
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T TEn
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)
(W3ED) (k1) (H3ED) (H3E2) (H&E2)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEE 5034248 5,539,199 6,048,618 6,843,343 | 7,837,144
Total liabilities BafE (1,153,051) (1,703,639 (1,179,617) (954,968) | (1,155,603)
Total equity M 3,881,197 3,835,560 4,869,001 5,888,375 6,681,541

AnNuAl Report 2018 F3
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Notes:

1)

)

)

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been
extracted from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

financial position as set out in the Company’s annual report.

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 have been extracted from the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position which are

set out on pages 94, 95, 96 and 97 respectively.

The Group completed its disposal of hotel complex and certain
assets on 17 July 2013. Accordingly, the operating results of the
hotel and entertainment business for the year ended 31 March

2014 were disclosed as discontinued operations.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##ZERBR A A

3

(1)

@)

3)

H

A MM EE K ARTIT A
AN T AR T 2 RS 1R T A A
T A i 7 S AR B B AR DL R -

AEBBE -F - NER -F—LE
ZA=Z1T R EEZ ERREE K
B TS A BB AR 94 > 95
9697 E Tk 2 &5 A B 4w K H AL A T
Wi i 2 55 G BRI & o

KEBCKR_F—-=4LAt+LH
56 J B T G AR S A B T
b s Te 5 48 ST 2 —F - AR
SAET R LR RSO
e A A 1L 28 o



GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
% ¥ 2 B B R 2 F

p rated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
E’\Fﬁ ﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬁZ_LZﬁ[‘EAT

o B 1 R G — ol .




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

